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W HILE traveling in Ireland during the 
sumn1.er of 1926, I obtained copies of 
the Ulster Journal of Archaeology, a 

· quarterly magazine, no longer published. 

There appeared in the 1900 and 1901 nun1-
bers of this quarterly a serial article, uThe 
Stewarts of Ballintoy," by the Rev. George 
Hill, written by him in 1865, and corrected by 
him in 1900. 

Thinking this article would be interesting 
to the . Stewart Clan on both sides of the 
Atlantic, I have had same reprinted. 

I am collecting data on the Stewart or 
Stuart fa1nily, prior to 1800, with the idea of 
preserving same and perhaps helping those 
who 1nay be seeking inforn1ation about the 
family of Stewart. Any manuscript, family 
record, or printed 1natter will be appreciated. 

"i I C d .. , 

J. ADGER STEWART 
4780 Crittenden Drive 
Louisville, Ky., U.S. A. 
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Bv THE REv. GEORGE l-IILL 

COLERAINE: 
JOHN l\1 'C0~1B1F., 7, l\·1EETING-HOUSE-STREET 

1865 

ltbe Ste\\,arta of :113alltnto~ 
"Out of monuments, traditions, private recordes, fragments of stories; passages of 

bookes, and the like, we doe sa\'e and recover somewhat from the <le luge of time."-!3aco11' s 
Advancement of Learning. 

[The extreme scarcity of this parnr,hld-the writer's first work-renders a- reprint mo~t desir.1ble. A few 
nott:s and some corrections have been made under the guidance of the RcY. George Hill, who is able to revise 
the proofs of a work written by him thirty-live years ago.-En1TOR.] 

THE Stewarts of Ballintoy, in conunon with rnost other Scottish 
settlers on the An trirn coast, were originally descended frorn 
an Irish stock. According to our 1nost con1petent authorities, 

this whole race n1ay be traced backward to a very ren1ote period in 
history, and n1ay fairly clai1n as its founder a prince narned Loarn, 
who, in conjunction with his two brothers, Angus and Fergus, led an 
expedition fron1 l)alriada, on the .A.ntrin1 coast, into Scotland, about 
the year 506, and pern1anently laid the foundation of the Dalriadic 
l\1onarchy in that kingdon1. 1 'fhe descendants of Loat·n and Fergus 
occupied the highest positions in the Scottish kingdorn during the 
entire period of its existence fron1 the con1mencernent of the sixth to 
the close of the sixteenth century. Fron1 the fan1ily of Loarn sprang 

1 It is remarkable that manr traditions still exist in :\rgylcshire and the Isles pointing to the Dalriadic 
invasions from the Irish coast. The l:ist and most successful uf these invasions was that aln·aJy mentionc:J in 
the te.:ct. Loam, the ddcst brother, cstablisheJ himsdf in the :--!orthcrn p;1rt of Ar~rlcshin:; Angus. the second 
brotht:r, held lsb anJ some adj,)iniog is!:tnJs. whilst Fergus to,>k rosscssion of tht: whole peninsula now known 
as Can tire. It is more than probable that the l.1tter landell in I\bchrihanish Bar. nc·:i.rl}' oppositc: to B:illy­
castle, as the lw:\lltif ul glt•ll stn·tchi:!g e:istwarJ from th:it hay, in C:intirc, has hnrne the name of Tirft·rgus, or 
"the tcrritory of Fergus,'' frnm tlw :nnutcst times. It would appear that the i11haliit:rnts of this (.;!en, proh:ibly 
more than those of any other lucality on the Scottish coast, continu.cd to kt:ep ;din: an intercourse, from age to 
age, with tht·ir killsf.;lk Jwellin~ alung the ,\ntri111 shnrc. Tlu.: Chronicat1 Scotorum recorJs that in the yc:u.!I 
(i8~ anJ 695 this ch:111nd was fr~)Zt~ll quite o\·er, :rnJ that the Jwdlcrs on the opposite coasts were in the habit 
of p:1ying rcciprrn:al visits to t'ach otht·r whilst the ice remai1w~L J. F. Campbell, the t·Jit,Jr of "Pup11for TtJ!fi 
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several of the earlier Dalriadic kings,· tog.ether with a vast 111nl titude 
of great thanes and chieftains, an1ong who111 pron1incntly appear the 
hereditary Stewards of Scotland. 'fhe family of Fergus, the younger 
brother, supplied by far the greater nu1n ber of occupants to the throne, 
including Robert Bruce, the hero of Bannockburn. l\:fargery Bruce, 
daughter of the latter, bccan1e the wife· of \Yalter, the Ste,vard of 
Scotland, and thus husband and ,vife belonged to the sa111e illustrious 
race, although ti1ne had obl_ite1~at~d ~11 traces of in1n1ediate relationship 
between theii· fan1ilies. 'fhey reprt~sen teg. two leading branches 
sprung fron1 the san1e stein, and their :·son; ~vho becan1e Robert I I. of 
Scotland, was the first of the: Stewart- line of kings. 

During the n1inority of. the ·Jatter; his grandfather, King R.obert 
Bruce, conferred upon hitn a gr~nt of the island ·of Bute, w~hose fertile 
soil and salubrious air had long rendered it attractive as a royal resi­
dencc.1 During the- existence of the .. island. king9on1, the Lords of 
the Isles invariably spent a, pqrtio~1: 9(tlie-'seaS(?l:l··in Bu tc\ and hence its 
Gaelic nan1e, Eilcan Bl10id, '"th~--I's'lancCq/ th.q·:c6d1~t.,, ~.fhe I-lebrides, 
generally, were known as Hibudae or Ibudie, the Isles of Buda; they 
derived their individual or specific nari1es frorn incide;1ts ii~ their history, 
or peculiarities of soil or appearance, hut Bute, fron1 tin1e irnn1cn1orial 
has retained its original generic na1ne of Buda, or the "royaf residence." 
At ai1 early period it was held alternately, and son1etin1es as a j9int 
possession by the great fan1ilics of Stewart and ~,IacDonnell. About 
the year 1050, \Yaltcr, the first Stewart, obtained a grant of Bute fron1 
l\1alcoltn II. Afterwards, the island changed masters several tin1es, 
and its possession, becan1e a subject of fierce contention between the 

. . . 
of the West J/iglzla,uU, orally collected," devot•~s one ch::ipter of his highly int1:resting hook (Vol. I.. pp. 394--409) 
to a collection of \vh::it he c::ills riddles. One of thest~ ''riddli:s-'·1 .-undonbtedlv rc:fcrs to the frosts in the Ye.:irs 
684- ::ind 69;, ::ilthough thc,intrepret::ition docs not appe:ir to h::in pr~·scnted itself to C:irnpbdi's mind.· The 

riddle is as follows:-
"l can go onr on a bridge of gl:iss, 

And I can come over on a bridge of glass. 
And if the gbss bridge break. 

There's none in Ile (Isla) nor in Eirinn 
\\'ho can mend the bridge of glass." 

This ancient shred is, probahlr, with the exception of the brief notice in the Clzrot!icon Sro/omm, all th:it 
remains to us of the history ot those two dismal and disastrous rears. On the st;bject of the Dalriadic colonies 
there exists a helpless ignorance e\'en in quarters where. one wouU not expect to meet it. A writer in the 
North British Ret•it:l' (Vol. xxxix., p:igc lH,) actually spca ks of Dalriad.'.l, not ;:is .1 principality, but as the 
fllll!1t' of u prince who carnc from Scotland to establish himself in t;Jster! The following :ire this writer'3 
words:-"The mythi~al history of I rebnd rebtcs the formation of a Scottish settlement i11 Clstcr at :i \·er:, 
early period, under the l('.'.ldcrship 'of D::ilriada, :ind the fall of the Cruithnian capit:il before the forces of :mother 
Scottish prince." Truly this is mrthical histMy. for it has never bel'n written or re:i<l by any one in lrebnJ'. 
A Gaelic poem of grc~1t :intiquity, generally termed the Aib,inic /)u,,n, and a genealogical ~IS., the most ancient 
now known to exist, p,>int di~tinctlr to the Irish origin of the lslesrnen and Higlilan<lmen of Scotbnd. EHn 
so I.ate as the sixteenth ccnt.ury, the Lowland Sct)tch spoke of ,their ncii.d1bours in thl· Hi!!hb.nds and Isles 
as the "Yri.rhe" or th<.> "Yrisclu men of Scotl.inJ," or the Scottish •'"'lri~hrie.'' .ind of their l:ingu:i,!C as 
the "Eri.rrlzt," or "l~r.rt."-CoiZt,·t,111tcJ /)r Rdrns .1ihanici.r, pp. 2S, 27. 1-11. For ample inform::iticm rcspectin!,; 
the D::ilriadic colonies, sec Csl1cr's ll"or.l:J, \'c,l. VI., p. H7: O'Flahnty's O~vi:ia, p. ·H,-l; O,i:,ygia rindicarrJ, 
p. 162; Ch:.lmcr's Ca!rclnrti(I, I., p. 2t,9: lfC,rnnor•~ /)i.r.,atatinns. pp. 21.17, 307: Pi11kertnn's };'n7llir:,.•, \"ol. I!., 
pp. 61-87; Reeves's Ecd. Anti,1q .• p. 3 JI); Adamnan's !.ife of St. C1t!11111ha, edited by Dr. Rccns, pp. ·H3-43S. 

1 Another feature no less attr.1cti\'e is the picturesque ht"auty of this isl:111d. Prnnant, in spc:1ki11g of it, 
thus expresses his ::iJmira tion-"'fhc tbrostics, auJ other bin1s of sM1~. till the groves with tlit:ir n1d,,Jy· 
nothing disturhs their h;umonr, f,1r instinct, stronger than n·asnn, forl,ids them to quit these delicious sh:1lles, 
and w::indcr like their unh.1ppy m:ister (the tht'n Earl of Bute) into the ungratdul wilds of :1mhirio11.'' ~liss 
Sinclair, wht·n dt:scribing a s:iil thrnu~h the K}·les of B11te cxcLiims:-"I ~h.,ulJ likt' to li\'t' :i ltundrcJ sumrnc.-r, 
('quail}' divided among the 111111.ire.ll pl;1fes we p:1ssed during those: fc:I\' li,,urs." Dr. '.\1:tccullnch winds up .1 

lung, glowing account oi the.same localitr, by s:iying that "th!.' Krl~s uf Butr r<'~cmble rwthinb on tarth." 
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Scots and Norwegians. 'rowards the close of the eleven tli cen hiry, 
But·e was ceded to Mangus Barefoot, king of Norway, and his daughter 
having wedded the king of l\1lan, this island was given to the latter, as 
a portion of his wife's marriage dowry. Her daughter 1narried So111-
hairle, or So1nerled, the great thane of A.rgyle, and the latter soon 
afterwards seized Bute and other portions of the island-kingdorn, not 
in right of his n1arriage, but si1nply as a conquest. On the death of 
So111hairle, his you1igest son Angus, inherited Bute, who, with his 
three sons, was slain in the year 1210. J an1es, one of his sons, left a 
daughter and heiress n1arried to Alexander, the then high Steward of 
Scotland, v.tho, in her right, clain1ed the island. 'T'he last l\lacDonnell 
who owned this rernarkablc place was Angus of Isla, their descendant, 
n1arried to Agnes O'Cahan, a daughter of the chieftain of ])unseveric 
Castle. 

\Vhilst the young prince, Robert, resided in Bute, he formed an 
unauthorised union with a lady whose nan1e was Christian Leitch, by 
whon1 he left one son, John Stewart, created the first sheriff of Bute. 
Fron1 1445 to 1450 we find the crown lands of Scoulogn1ore, in the 
Southern Division of Bute, were held by a lady nan1ed Christian 
Leche, and the rents, together with on1e rnart, due yearly out of those 
lands, were regularly ren1i tted to her by gift fron1 J a1nes II. \Yas the 
lady of Scoulog111ore the rnother of John Stewart, the first sheriff? 
If so, she 111ust have survived her princely lover n1any years. In 
1510, Ja111es IV., confinned to l\,laster I-Ienry Lech, the lands of Kerry­
latnond, TVleikle Lowpas, and Little Lowpas, in the lordship and sheriff­
don1 of Bute, of the old extent of £6 16s Sd, ,:vhich had been held by 
his father I'ho1nas Lech, and his predecessors beyond the n1en1ory of 
n1an, the grantee paying yearly a silver penny as blenche fern1e, and 
giving his services as chirurgeon when required. 1 In connection with 
this point, it n1ay be worthy of re1nark that the fe111ale name Christian 
has been preserved in various branches of the Bute fain il y, and ,vas 
borne by several ladies of the Stewarts of Ballintoy. 

John Stewart, first sheriff of Bute, ,vas succeeded by his son Jan1es, 
in 1449. Jan1es died in 1477, and his son Ninian inherited the fan1ily 
estates, together with the hereditary office o · sheriff. Ninian was 
succeeded by his eldest son, nan1ed also Ninian, who rnarried Janet 
Dunlop, and by this union added considerably to the fa1nily estates. 
In addition to the lands inherited by him in the Southern Division of 
Bute, he catne, by his marriage, into possession of others in Rothesay, 
the Northern parish of the island. Ninian left two sons, J an1cs and 
Archihald, the fonner of whotn hecan1e hereditary sheriff, and the 
latter succeedcLl to his n1other's property in R.othcsay. I-le was known 

l Ori1:ine1 I'arocliialn Scotiat, Vol. II., p(). 213,831. 
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as Archibald Stewart, of Largyan, or Largeane, and, in 154-!, he becan1c 
an influential leader in the rebeHion which I\'1atthew Stewart, Earl of 
Lennox, at the instigation of I-Ienry VIII., organized in opposition 
to the Regency of Arran, during the 1ninority of l\1ary Queen of Scots. 
On the failure of that rnovetnent, the Laird of Largyan was an1ong 
the first to suffer forfeiture. In the vear 1546, Queen l\·Iary granted 

~ ~ . 
to Colin Campbell, of Ardkinglas, the 46s 8d lands of Largeane, the 
20s lands of Candgawan.e, the 20s lands of J)ownald l\Iac-murrich t, 
and the 20s lands of Downald l\·1ac-1nychaell, all of which had belonged 
in feufern1e to Archibald Stewart of Largayan, but had reverted to the 
Queen "by reason of eschea t for his treasonable going beyond the realn1, 
with rviatthew, late Earl of Leu.inox, who was a rebel, and at horn, to 
the kingdon1 of England, ren1aining there, giving advice and assistance 
to the Earl, and the (~ueen's enemies of England, and abiding with 
them within the realn1 of Scotland, for the destruction of the sa111e, 
and of the lieges by fire, homicide, and robbery, con1111itted within the 
bounds of Ergile, Bute, and ,Arran." 1 He was pern1itted to retain a 
sn1all shred of his estates, but this "fell swoop" reduced his fainil y to 
cotnparative indigence, and con1pelled the1n to look around for "fresh 
fields and pastures new." In J 559 the last ren1nan t of his property_ was 
sold, and soon afterwards his sons n1ade their appearance on the .A.ntrin1 
shore. 'fhe period of the Plantation of Ulster is erroneously supposed 
to have been the tin1e of their con1ing. 'fhe Stewarts of 'fyrone a·nd 
l)onegal, who can1e fro1n Galloway, settled in lTlster during the Planta­
tion; but the Stewarts of Ballintoy n1ust have con1e n1uch earlier, as 
several fa111ilies of the nan1e were residing throughout the R.ou te at 
the co1nn1cncen1ent of the seventeenth century. In the absence of 
positive evidence as to the precise ti1ne of their arrival, we would be 
disposed to fix the year 1560, as this date corresponds with the period 
when the fan1ily lost their estates in Bute, and also with the circun1-
stanc;.es of their subsequent history in this country. The first settler 
(his 

1

Christian nan1e is doubtful, but is supposed to have been J an1es) 
left two sons, Ninian and J)a vid, and two daughters, Jane and Chris­
tain. Ninian the elder was the father of a large fa1nily, but only three 
of his children, nan1ely, Archibald, Ninian, and Cathrine, lived to 
1nature age. 'rhese successions, however, occurred previously to the 
year 1600, so that the fatnily must have been settled on this coast at 
least as early as 1560. 

'T'radition affirn1s that their first place of settlen1cnt was I)unsevcrick, 
and that frotn thence the fan1ily ren1oved to a place called Ballinstraid 
(now Straidh), in the parish of Ballintoy. 2 In 1625, A.rchibald, al-

1 Origint.r l'arod1ialo Scotiae, \'ol. I l., p. 234. 
2 Tl11:re were several in011t•11ti:1l Limili,:s of this name in Balli11tdy parish, :1nJ also on tllc c,ppusitc coast of 

Cantin~. Tht·ir original sc:at or residence in Ballintoy was at Altrnorc, now known :u the Deer Park, from 
which the family rcmo,·l'd tn thl' castle built by them at an t>arly perioJ, near the site of the present church. 
This structure was afterwards occurird by the Stewarts, but it has entirely disappeared, nearly a century ago. 
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ready na1ned, received a grant fron1 Randal l\1acDonnell, first Earl of 
Antri1n, of the two districts kno,vn as Ballylough and Ballin toy, each 
containing four quarters of land, Irish measure, for the yearly rent of 
nine pounds sterling. This grant included Sheep Island and "the 
other little islands of the Ca1nplie," probably the isolated rocks where 
kelp could be obtained f ron1 the sea-wrack. The Earl reserved the 
salmon fishing of Portnalarabane, (now Larryban) and the Deerpark 
occupying the ,vhole ridge of highland sou th of the village of Ballin toy, 
and kno,vn then as Al tmore. Besides, he clai1ned as landlord, all the 
Ha,vks bred on these lands, which were no doubt numerous; but whether 
he expected Archibald Stewart to catch then1 for hin1, we cannot say, 
as the tenns of the grant leave this 1natter conjectural. Stewart ,vas 
bound to sub-let his lands only to Scotch tenants, and to supply a 
certain number of n1en at every general Hosting that 1night be found 
necessary. All ten an ts ,vere allowed to cut as many trees as were 
required to build houses and 111ake farm in1plemen ts, a privilege of 
,vhich they must have liberally availed then1selves, as the district of 
Ballintoy has been quite destitute of trees for a long period. In April, 
1625, John l\-1acNaghten, agent to Lord .A.ntrin1, gave formal possession 
to Archibald Stewart, of Lisfermling, in the name of all the other 
lands specified in the grant. ~ 

On the death of John NlacNaghten, in 1630, Lord .. Antrim appointed 
Arc hi bald Stewart to succeed him as agent. So long as the first Earl 
lived, this situation was desirable in 1nany respects, but his Lordship 
died in 1636, and frotn that year Ste,vart' s troubles and misfortunes 
began. The second Earl of Antritn ,vas imprudent and an1bitious. 
He had represented to Charles I. that he could raise and equip a large 
force in Antrin1, which would serve effectually to check the proceedings 
of his l\1ajesty's Covenanting enen1ies in Scotland. The King was but 
too glad to catch at any hope of aid, and wrote urgently to the Lord 
Deputy \Yentworth to encourage and assist Lord .A.ntrin1's project by 
every n1eans at his con11nand. Negotiations and inquiries of various 
kinds were instantly conunenced by Lord Antrim, not only with \Vent­
·worth, but with several of the ivlacDonnell chieftains in the Highlands 
and Isles of Scotland, and in all these perilous transactions Archibald 
Stewart was required to take a prominent part. In 1639, he was sent 
to Scotland for the purpose of ascertaining how far Lord .A.ntrim n1ight 
trust to the co-operation of the l\1acDon nells against their great enemy, 
the Earl of i\rgyle, who was then the recognized. leader of the Coven­
anters. He perforn1ed his task ,vith great tact and discretion; but on 
his return, he found that \Ventworth had begun to suspect that Lord 
Antri1n's pron1ises of assistance ,vere rnade without having the n1eans 
of practically carrying then1 out. Of course, all friendly relations 
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bet,veen these nobeln1en soon can1e to an end; but, as the King kept 
urging vVentworth to "set Antrim on f\rgyle" without delay, it was 
necessary that the Deputy should continue to consult with Lord 
Antri1n respecting the contemplated invasion of Argyleshire, and 
Stewart was the agent through whon1 such consultati~ns ,vere con­
ducted. At length, all idea of the projected expedition was given up, as 
neither Lord Antrim nor the Government had any 1neans at con11nand, 
and as vVent,vorth always doubted the expediency of co1nrnitting so 
important a trust to one whom he believed to be inco111petent as a 
leader, and of whose n1otives he had begun ·to entertain serious doubts. 
Indeed, the Lord Deputy did not hesitate to declare that Lord .A.ntrim, 
through a pretended zeal for his Nlajesty's service, ain1cd at purposes 
of personal aggrandisen1ent> and intended to employ the Governn1e11t 
troops in wresting fron1 Argyle certain lands which had forn:erly 
belonged to his (Antrim's) ancestors. Unfortunately for Ste,vart, he 
was regarded as a sort of accon1plice in the business, and was charged 
by the Council in Dublin with n1isleading them as to Lord Antrin1's 
capabilities and intentions. \;Ventworth, in ,vriting to the Duchess of 
Buckinghan1, speaks of her husband, Lord Antri1n and "his man 
Stewart," as acting deceitfully towards hin1self and the Go':'ernn1ent. 

In 1635, Lord Antri1n, then Lord J)unluce, married Kathrine 
l\1anners, only daughter and heiress of Lord De Roos, of I-Iarnh1ke, 
afterwards Earl of Rutland. This lady had been previously n1arried to 
George Villiers, Duke of Buckinghan1, who was assassinated in 1624. 
vVhen married to Lord Dunluce, she was enonnously rich, having 
inherited Jargely from her father, and being splendidly endowed by 
her first husband; but all this wealth, together with \vhat could be 
gleaned fron1 the Antrim estates, was not enough to meet their expendi­
ture in England. By way of econon1ising, the Duchess condescendingly 
ca1ne to reside in Ireland, in 1639, and made Dunluce Castle her principal 
place of abode. But she was compelled to .fly fron1 it by the events of 
1641, when she returned to England, and never afterwards revisited 
the Antrim shore. Her household \vas the last that ever wanned the 
old ,valls of Dunluce. 

On the 2nd of Septen1ber, 1639, she addressed the following letter, 
from Dunluce, to \Yentworth, then Lord Deputy:-

"My Lord, 1 was in hope, till very lately, that all your displeasure taken against my 
Lord had been past; but in letters sent me out of England, I was assuredly informed your 
Lordship was much disgusted still with him, which News hath much trouhle<l me. I cannot 
be satisfied without sending these expressly to you; and I beseech you that what you do 
conceive, deal clearly with me, and let me know it. I must necessarily be included in your 
Lordship's anger to him; for any misfortune to my Lord must be mine, and it will prove a 
great misfortune to me to live here under your Frown. Out of your goodness you will not, 
I hope, make me a sufferer, who never have dserved from you, but as your Lordship's most 
Faithful Servant, 

K B 
,, 

• . UCKINGHAM. 
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In \Vent_worth's reply, there is the follo,ving passage:-

"Your Ladyship desires me to deal clearly with you, and otherwise I never practised 
with any. And as for my Lord Antrim, your Ladyship might do well to advise him to the 
like mannrr of proceeding. For I must needs confess myself not satisfied, finding in the 
late prcceedings here with this state, his Lordship returned me artificial for simple and 
ingenuous_ dealing;-and that himself and his man Stewart, endeavoured to turn the 
improbabi]ity and impossibility of that design upon me as a fault, whereon to excuse 
themselves; whichn1ethought was not so fair, to make me accountable, for that in the 
conclusion, where I had no hand or privity at all originally."-Strajforde's Letters and 
Despatches, Vol. JI., pp. 386-7. 

Scarcely had this affajr tern1ina t_ed, when the rebellion of 16--11 burst 
in all its horrors upon Ulster. No n1an in the county of .Antrim ,vas 
more actively employed than Ste,vart in atte1npting to avert, or alleviate 
the dire calan1ities which then suddenly overwheltnecl the Protestant 
in ha bi tan ts of the Route. His chief, the Earl of An tri1n, had n1adc a 
hasty exit from Dunluce to Dublin, being undecided in his political 
sentiments and consequently suspected by both the Govern111ent and 
the Irish. Stewart was, therefore, con1pelled to meet the dangers of 
the crisis co1npara ti vely alone, and the difficulties of his position were 
very much increased by an act of imprudence in to which he was, no 
doubt, betrayed, by the influence of his landlord. This act" consisted 
in receiving and confidentially entertajning Allaster l\tiacColl l\Iac­
Donnell, "'horn Stewart had n1et in Scotland when engaged on his 
political n1ission in 1639, and whom Lord Antrin1 represented as a 
helpless fugitive fron1 the vengeance of Argyle. 

It was true that his father's house had been broken up in Colonsay 
by the calan1itous civil war ,vhich then raged in Scotland, but the son 
of Colla Ki ttagh, in coining to the An trim coast, at that particular 
crisis, ,vas suspencted of having another and less harn1less object in 
view than merely visiting his friend, Archibald Stewart, at Ballintoy 
Ca.stle. 1 These suspicions were fully borne out by subsequent even ts. 
On hearing of his arrival, the Governn1ent ordered his in11nediate 
seizure and i111prisonment, but Stewart interposed, and, as he was 
known to the civil authorities as a loyal and n1ost useful n1agistrate., 
his influence prevailed in screening Allaster l\iacColl fro1n the rigour 

l Alexander, or Allastt>r !\JacDonnell was the son of Coll, surnamed Kittaf!,h, or left-handed, who was the 
son of Gillaspick, who was the son of Colla surnamed duv r.a-gCappu/, or "Black Colla or the Horses," who 
was the son of Alexnnder of Isla and Kintyre, who was the son of John executed on the Burrow ~Iuir, J1('ar 
Edinburgh, in 14-)3, who was the son of John, \\'ho w:is the son of Donnell surnamed Halloch, or the "frecklul," 
who was the son of John surnamed Mor or "large-bodied," (married to Margery Bissett of the Glyn11s of 
Antrim), who was the son of the "good John of [ sla," Lord of the Isles by his see0nd wife, l\Iargaret Stewart, 
daughter of Robert l l. Coll Kit!agh, so well known in Scotl:ind during the ci\·il war in the reign of Charles I., 
was born ay CarnriR", or rather on a small islanJ in Loughlinch. \\'hen his grandfather, Colla du\' na-gCappul, 
died at Kinbann Castle, in 1S5S, his father Gill.1spick, then a mere youth, \\'JS sent to foster with ()'Quinn, the 
chief of Carnrig, whose <laughter he aftl'rwar<ls marrit-lL (;iilaspick was heir to the Routt·, through his mother, 
who was daughter to l\lacquillin, but he was killt'd, (it w;is said accidentally) at a lHiil tight which tni-ik place 
.at B:illrcastle, to cclcbr,lte hii. coming uf age. llis \\'ife, with her son Cull, ;iftt'rw;1rds surnamed f;._ittal!,lz, wa, 
compelled to take rcfu~e in Colonsay for protection apinst Surlr-::,.• Hoy, who rdu~ed to acknowled~e the child'a 
claim to the inheritance of his father. The second Earl of Antrim's grandfather, Sorl~y Bor, and Allaater 
l\facDonndl'li gre:it-~ranc.lfather, Colla of 1.inbann, were brothers.-OiJ ,HS. nf tht .Hai:Donntll Fa11:iiy. 
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.. 
which would at least have restrained hir11 from the dire events in which 
he was afterwards concerned. So soon as tidings of the actual out­
break reached the North, Archibald Stev.:art took every precautionary 
measure which a person in his co1nparatively isolated situation could 
hastily adopt. He collected and armed several hundred men, whom he 
placed in the castles of Ballin toy and Clough, and, as if to· show hi; con­
fidence ih Allaster lvlacDonnell, he gave him a co1nn1and in his own 
Regin~ent of Foot. But the latter took an early opportunity of declar­
ing for the cause of Sir Phelim Iioe O'Neill, who had already inaugu­
rated the insurrection in lJlster, and to ,yho1n all the Northern in­
surgents looked up as their especial leader and chief. This regiment 
consisted chiefly of Scotch· refugees from the islands, who had ac­
companied Allaster on his flight. 

As soon as it ,vas known that the Insurrection had commenced in 
other parts of the kingdon1, the inhabitants of the R.onte, R.on1an 
Catholic and Protestant, were instantly inflamed with a horrible fear 
and suspicion of each other. The exciten1en t ,vas fearfully increased by 
Archibald Stewart announcing publicly, on a Sunday at Church, in 
Dervock, that the Insurrection was in progress, and would soon over­
wheln1 his neighbours. In a day or two afterwards, the Irish on the 
vVestern side of the Bann, rose en jnasse, and Stewart's regiment was 
marched to Portnaw to prevent the insurgents fron1 crossing into 
Antri1n. Two con1panies of this regiment were Highlanders and 
Irish, one con1n1anded by .Allaster I\'1acDonnell, and the other- by 
·1-iriough Oge O'Cahan, of Dunseveric. On the night of the 2nd of 
January, 1641, these companies both deserted, and fell upon their 
brother ·soldiers whilst the latter were asleep, slaying them all but a few, 
who were saved by their Irish friends. This act thoroughly initiated 
the insurrection in the Route. 1'he insurgents in County Derry forth­
with crossed the Bann under a leader named John l'vfortimer, and 
united their forces with· those of Allaster iviac Donnell and Tirlough Oge 
O'Cahan. Fron1 Portna,v they n1arched to the residence of Sir James 
Mac])on.nell, 1 who dwelt at the .. Vo,v, in the parish of Finvoy. ,-fhey 
,vere there joined by such of his tenants as ,vere able to carry arrns, 
and also by the tenants of Donnell Gorn1 rviacDonnell, of Killoquin, 
in the parish of R.ashnrkin. 2 In the 1neantin1e, the Irish inhabitants 

l This member of the CbnJonnell was the son of Coll, who was the son of Alexander, the leader of an 
insurrection in 161-1, who w:is eldest son of Sir J:imes of Duat•1ce, better known by his snrname of Na Hanna, 
or, "of the Bann," poisoned in 1601, who was the son oi Sorler Boy, and hence generally known also as Sir 
James :\bcSorlry. The Vow at the present day is the name of a small village, near to which is a circular 
grave-yard, close to the Bann-ferry. ·. 

2 "Now known under the form Killrquin, :is the n:ime of an estate containing thirteen townlands, in the 
\Vestern part of Rasli:1rkin parish. In the journal nf Phclim O':\'eill, hy his cl1:1pb.in. O').lcllin, the name is 
written Coil in-Cui,111, the \Vood of O'Conn. In ltiH Donnell Gorm ~hcDonnell resitkd here. This territory 
seems to h:1ve included Rash.1rkin and the four WWI!$ nf Craigs.''-Rcevcs's Eccl .• -1,:tin., p. 331. Donald 
Gorrn ~fac:Donnl'll, who resided here. was :1ppointcd to holJ Ibllrc:istle for the Irish, an<l w:is sl:iin in 16-1-2, at 
Glcnmaguincy, Countr Dunepl. His residence at K.i!l,)quin in Rasharkin \Vas occupied about a century 
later by the late Lord Slane, wh,1 was rcbtc<l to the Antrim familr, :ind w:is interred in their vault at Bun-na­
m:irgit•. llis house, in the tL1wnb11J of :\nticnr, Rash:1rki11, \\":IS occupied by :i f:trm .. ·r named \V:dbce. His 
daughter, ~bry-Jc-Flt:ming, marricJ ;111 humble pt'rs,m 1umcJ Fc:lix O'Connor, antl his death sht! was obliged 
to give up the hnu$c in AntiCL)f. She :iftcrwar<ls liwJ :it the villa~e of Craig!!, until her son, who had gone to 
America, sent for her. She JicJ there abnut the ~•ear lS35. Iler son was thc rcprc:scntativc of the proud 
De Fleming, who came to Ireland with Sir John Jc Courcy! 
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on both sides of the Bann, fearing .. Arc hi bald Stewart, and such soldiers 
as he could collect in the absence of l\-IacDonnell, O'Cahan, and fv1orti­
mer, asse1nblcd in 111ultitudes, with their wives and children, burned a 
little town which then stood at the Cross, near Bally1noney, and after­
wards burned Bally1noney, siaying all the British inhabitants they 
could lay hands on \vithout distinction of age or sex. 1~hus, the 1nere 
mob, frightened and frenzied by the prevailing excitement, did actually 
much 1nore damage to life and property than the regularly organized 
forces of the insurgents. 

The records of these sad events have been published. 1 The originals 
are preserved in a large l\1Ianuscript \T olun1e of Depositions, lettered 
Antrhn (F. 3. 9. 1562), belonging to the Library of 1~rinity College, 
Dublin. From this curious volu1ne we shall n1ake a few extracts; but, 
in addition to these, it 1nay be mentioned that the following docun1cnts 
form part of its contents, and refer especially to affairs throughout the 
Route during the year 1641-2: 

1. The Examination of Gilduff O 'Cahan, of Dunscveric, in which he says that he and 
Archibald Stewart kept the peace in the Route, and that his son, Tirlough Oge, and Sir 
James l\IacColl l\1acDonnell plotted the desertion and massacre at Portnaw. It will thus 
be seen that the son joined the insurgents, v .. ·hilst the father, who was a .:\Iagistrate of 
the County, remained, for a time at least, on the side of the Government. . 

2. The Examination of Brian l\Ioddere ~lac H. O'Cahan, ,vho fled over the Bann from 
terror of the British, in 1641; had previously resided in the Route; afterwards got lands 
from the Earl of Antrim, and served as lieutenant under Owen Roe O'Neill. He stated 
that the massacre at Portna,,, was perpetrated by his brother-in-law and Allaster i\IacColl 
l\·facDonnell, and that he saw the Irish burn Dunluce Castle. In this latter statement, 
however, he was mistaken. The Irish bu_rned the town which then stood on the other side 
of the road opposite Dunluce Castle, but they could not seize the castle, which was 
defended by a small garrison under Lieutenant Digby. 2 

3. The Examination of Donnell Gorm ~facDonnell, who stated that Allaster i\Iac­
Donnell and Tirlough Oge O'Cahan, ,vho had command of two companies in Archibald 
Stewart's _regiment, were the chief actors in the massacre at Portnaw. This witness, also, 
gives a lengthened statement of the proceedings of Allaster i\-lacDonnell after that oc­
currence. 

4. 'fhe Examination of Fergus Fullerton, of Billy, who stated, among many other 
n,~ttprs th:1t thP Tt·ii;:h in Arrhih:ild "tPw:-irt'c:: rpa;, ..... p,nt ,n11.-rJ,,. .. .,,1 r.," .. ,.,; .... (~!,.,.,= .. ',- ••• h_._,1,,, ___ ,_ ... __ .. -, _ ....... - ........ _ ..................... _ .. -- ------ ..... -- - _._ ........... ...,. .. -;::,···'"'-··~ ·-·-· ..._._. _..._.. ._, .. "Y'- ......... '-.JI.IV • ...,, ~ "JlV.l\., 

company. 

5. The Examination of Henry t\IacHenry (O'Neill), who mentions Thomas Boyd, 
Archibald Boyd, \Yilliam Fullerton, Allaster i\lac Donnell, and others. 

, 
\Vhilst the Irish were burning the· village of Cross and the town of 

Bally1noney, the regularly disciplined force, which had deserted fro1n 
Archibald Stewart, was led by the two l\IacDonnells, J a1nes and :\llaster 

1 This period h.ts been dealt with in a work of John ~!acDonncll, i\f. D. Tiu· Cl.rter Citii/ War of 1641. 
Duvlin; M. ll. Gill & Son. 1879. Also in \1iss Hickson's lrt!and in tht S,·:•tntuntli l'tntury. 

2 The town of D11nl11c<' mu1-t ha\'c been of srnue impc,rta111.:c, n.>11L1ining its ">,farrh:ints," most of whum, 
no doubt, were Scottish settlers in thr J;1ys of the tirn Earl. In the Church-rard of Dunluce then: ;ire m.iny 
rc:m:ukable tombstolll'S, which, however, will be fully givt~n .ind the arms illustratc<l in a subsequent number. 
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IviacColl> against the Castle of Clough, defended by \Valter J(ennedy.t 
After the capture of this place, Ja1nes .l\1acDonnell wrote the following 
letter to i\rchi Gald Stewart, whorn he addre3ses as cousin> and ,vho 
must have been in Coleraine when he received it. This letter is pre­
served in the l\"1S. volu1ne already n1entioned, at F. 3. 9. 3--102: 

"Cossen Archebald, I reccaved your letter, and, to tell the truth, I was ever of that 
opinion~ and soe was the most of a11 these gentlemen; that your owne selfe had no 
in you; but certainly had I not begun when I did, I and all these gentlemen, with my witfe 
and children had been utterly destroyed; of which I gott intelligence from one that heard 
the plott a laying; and those captains of yours (whom you mar call rather cowboyes) were, 
every daye, vexinge ourselves and our tenants, of purpose to pick quarrells which noc flesh 
was able to in<lure; an<l judge you whether I had reason to prevent such mischcfc; And I 
vow to ·the Almighty, had they not forct me, as they did many others beside me that 
would rather hang than goc on as they did, I would stick as firm to your side as any of 
yourselves; though I confesse it woulJ be the worse thinge for me and mine that ever I 
sawe.-To speak to you really the truth and the true information of the whole kingdome, 
upon my creditt I now do it, All the whole kingdome in generall are of our side except 
Dublin whoc hath 20000 men about it, in lcager of it, if it be not now taken; Drogheda 
whoe hath 1600 men about it and are these ten days past catinge of horse-flesh; Carricke­
fergus, Coulraine, and my lord of Claneboys, and my lo. of the Ardcs; this is the truth on 
my credit; ballemeanagh, Antrim, and all the garrisons between this and Carrickefergus 
are all fled to Carrickeforgus; soe that it is but a folly to resist wh~tt God plceseth to hap­
pen; but certainly they will have all I rd and presently whatever time they keep it.-· You 
may truly inform my friends in Coulraine that I would wish they and 
if they yield me the tmvne it shall be good for them and me, for the booty shall be mync, 

1 This gentleman was the representative of the family of Kennedy, which then held a highl:r rcspcct:1ble 
position in the Route, He was placed hastily in command of a sm.'.dl garrison in the C.'.lstie of Clough, but 
there was no time to get his force disciplined or provisioned ag:tinst a siege. \Vhen the insurgents arrived, 
Kennedy was summoned tu surrcnda by Henry O'?'-:cill, who had also joined them in their march on Clough. 
Kennedy replied that he would never surrender to an O'Neill the castle which he longed to the :VfacDonnells. 
It was true that the whole district, with its castic, was included in the Antrim Est,:itcs, and this rep!:,- plc:ised 
Allaster l\focDonnell so 111uch, that he came forw:1rd and swore to Kennedy by the cross on his sword th:it if 
the castle were quietly given up, the garrison \\·ould be permitted to pass out in safety, everyone taking with 
him whatever property he had brou~ht there. This was quite as much, and even more than .Kennedy c:,;­
pectcd, and therefore he surrendered, being unable to resist with any prospect oi success. 

The family of Kennedy is of Irish origin, but W.'.lS among those ·who cmigr:i tcd to the Scottish coast at a 
very early period. The district of C.1rrick, in Arrs!tire, seems to have been almost exclusin·ly occupied by 
Kcnnedys in the sixteenth and seventeenth centuries, and, indeed, at a much e:i.rlicr period. In a curious 
description of Carrick, written by William 1\bercrurnic, minister of I\finibole (~hrbolc), about the middlt': of 
the seventeenth century, there is the following passage: •'The inhabitauts of this countrey (C:1rrick) arc of 
ane Irish original!, as appears both by their names being generally .'.ill :1\facs; I mean the vu!i;:ir: their hills 
are knocks, their castles Ards. • . • . The KcnneJies continue still to he both the most numerous and 
most po\\·erful cla11. Besides the Earl of C:issiles, their chide, there be Sir Cilbcrt Kennedy, of Gin·a:imains, 
Sir Archibald Kennedy, of Col:irne (now Colzc:i.n ). Sir Thomas Kennedy, of Kirkltill. K.ennc<ly of lk~tcrsan, 
Kennedy of Kilhcrque (now Ki\kcnzie), Kennelly of Kirkrnic!wcl, Kennedy (Jf Knr,ckcbnc, Kennedy of G!t:nour, 
Kennedy of Bcnnan, Kennedy of Carlock, and K.enncJy of Drummellan. But this name is under gre.:tt 
decay, in comparison of what it was ane age ago, at which tyme they flourished so in power a11J number as to 
give occasion to this rhyme-

''Twixt \Vigtown and the town of Aire, 
And laigh <loun by the Cruvcs of Cree, 
You shall not get a lodging there, 
Except ye court a K:cnncdy.' " 

The feuds among the various branches of this i;reat fomilr contributed more than any other cause to bring 
"the n;ime under great decay." Th~·se ft-uds had become particularly fierce, :i.nd of very frcque:1t occurrence 
at the beginning of the seventeenth century, and, no doubt, induced or compclkd one branch :it least, viz .• 
the Ke11neJys of Balsar:igh, in tht· parish of Kirkoswa!J, to seck a quieter l10rne on thc Irish shore. They held 
lands in Turnarobert, near the ,·il!:i.c:c (if Armor, and at B:dlrlo11).!hbeg-, now lbllylough. in the parish of Billr. 
\\·alter Kennedy rcsidcJ at the.: former place, and Anthony Kennt:dy at the latter. Thes,:: bnds, which ,,·ere 
held of the Crown by hnight's service, ,•;ere alicrut,:d to the 1irst Earl of Antrim, in 163-', as appears by an 
lilster l nquisition. In tlie old burying-grollnd of Billr, nt•ar Bushrnills, there is still presern·d an a!al>oratd:r 
sculptnred tombstone, ,,·ith the Kt'nnc·dr arms, which will be given in a suhsequ,:nt number. It is curiou, 
that the tt'n:i.nt of tliis old gra\'c, ;dthuugh residing- in 1bllylougli at the time of his de:ith, seems to l1:ivc ~re­
ferred being known, eve11 011 his tn111l,st,1nt·, as of lblsar;1L:!i, his Sc"ttish ho111e, in Kirkosl\':dd. On the ilrst 
of Au~mt, lo25, another Antony Kennedy, pr,,lialilr ~1 s,m of th.: gentleman now m:.-r:tinnt.'d, <lit."d at Ballylou~h. 
These Kt-11nrdys frt·,lue11tlr i11term:1rrie:d with the :\1,,orcs, ;iftn c0rni11g tn st·ttlc on the Antrim i.·uast. Among 
the i\{,Jores, the Christi;rn name ()uintin seems t,J h:n-e been in frequent use at tk1t pcri,JJ. 



The Stewarts of Ballintoy 11 

and they shall be sure of good qrtrs., for I will send for all the Raghlin boates to Portrush 
and from thanes (thence) send all the people away into Scotland wch, if it be not done 
before Sir Phelim is [his] army comes to the towne, who comes the next week 
thousand men and piece of Artillery; All my desire of doing them good will be to no 
purpose, therefore send me word that you doe therein; as for both your houses they shall 
be safe, and soe should all the houses in- the country if they would be persuaded by me; 
The Oldstowe fOlclstone, now Clough] was rendered me, and all they within had good 
quarters, only the Clandcb~yes souldours and the two regimen ts from beyon the ban 
were a little greedy for pillaginage, which could not be helpt; As for killinge of \V0men 
none of my souldiers dare doe it it for his life, but the common ·people that are not tinder 
rule doth it in spight of or teeth; but for your people they killed of women and children 
and old people about 3 score-wly Lo: and Lady are gone to Slain-to whom I have sent; 
tell my bror. Hill and rvtr. Barwicke that their people are all in good health, but 
in my own company.-! desire you not to stirr out of that till I be neere you myselfe, 
for fear you should faII in the hands of the seaven hundred I have in the lower part of 
the country, whoe would give you noe quarter at all> but when I have settled thingcs here, 
you may come to me yourselfe, and your dearest friends to a few, and the rest to transport 
them with the rest into Scotland; as for goinge again the king, we will dye so6ner or my 
Lo: of Antrim either but their only aime is to have their religion settled and every one his 
own ancient inheritance; thus wishinge you to take my counscll which I protest to God 
I will give you as really as to myself, and haveing the hope of your beleavingc me herein, 
I rest your very loveinge conssen still, "JAMES MAcDoNNELL. 

"From the·Catholick Campe at Oldstowe, the 11 of Jan. 1641." 

Sir J an1es 1\1acJ)onnell refers to the departure of L_ord Antrim and 
his wife, the Duchess of Buckingham, from their Castle of Dunluce. 
His Lordship's indecision had involved him in serious difficulties, and 
at times he knew not to what· party he might trust for protection. 
Accon1panied by his Duche_;s he first went to Slane Castle, county 
l\1e~th, then the residence of the nineteenth Lord Slane, who had 
married .the lady Anne J\1acDonnelI, Lord i\ntrim's sister. Fro1n Slane 
they were soon obliged to remove to l\,1addenstown, in Kildare, the 
residence of the Earl of Castlehaven. 

The writer of the foregoing letter was not only related to Archibald 
Stewart, but evidently lived on very intimate terms with him as a 
neighbor. 1 This letter ,vas ,vritten in reply to one he had received, 

• 
1 There were intermarriages, and, consequently, relationships between the O'Haras, O'Cahans, Stewarts 

1\1:acHenrys, ~fagees, O'Quins, O'Neil!s, and :--.IacDonnells. These relationships were considerably multiplied 
by the marriages of the five d.1ughters of Cahill O'Hara of Loughguilc. ''His e!Jest daughter was married to 
Art Oge O'Neill, of whom the family of Shane's Castle arc descended. His second dau.ghter was married to 
Phclim O'Neill, of whom French John O':\'cill is come. His third daughter was married -to Gillduff O'Cahan, 
of Dunseveric. His fourth daughter to John Stcw:i.rt, of Lisadavan (in Bute). And his fifth daughter to one 

-of the l\facl-Icnrrs, of the B:rnn-side."-Ow j\1S. u·ritten by the Rev. John JfacArthur, Curate of Layd, once in 
the po11n1iori of t!u Rm C!:1s1on Porter, of Larne. [The editor has tried to obtain possession of this l\'1S. for 
other purposes; so far. without success. Can any reader assi!lt him?] 

The Stewarts of Bute and Ibllintor, during many years after the settlement of the latter on this coast, 
kept alive their family con111:xion by rt'ciproc:i.l visits and occasional intermarriages. It is curious to observe 
how complt:tely the :\lacQui!lin;; must han: been swept away from the Route by lbnd.:ill :\facDonnell, assisted, 
it is said, by the powt'rful rnnniva11ce of J;uncs I. Of the geatry class throughout that district, at the com­
mencement of the eighteenth century, not one oi the surnamr of :\L,cQuillin is to be found! 

The O'Haras of Antrim :1nd Cn·an :ire branches of the ~~rc:it Sligo family of that name, which claims 
and has its cbint allo1\'t>d, t,) be J,•sccndd from Oilioll Olum, J.,;:ing of :'1.1unstcr, in the third century. Charles 
O'I-l:ira, above mentioned, was the sn·cnth in Jcs(ent from Cucon.:icht O'lbra, 1'.'ho 1\·.:is the son of Hugh 
O'Hara, wh,) w;1s scn·nth in dcscc-nt from ~fagnus, SD!\ L1f Eadhr:i, or E:ira, wh,> was tiftcenth in d("scent from 
Cormac, the 8fC.'.lt gran,ison of Oilliull Olum, of the race of Heber. Ch.irks O'll.ira owned ;di the lands of 
Lough~uile, in the Route anJ L1g~:rnlic, in Crebillr. In lU)(J, he received :in ad<litiunal grant from James I., 
being warmly rernmmenJt·d br R:lllJall :\lacDunndl, whose family intacsu in the Route had been always 
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and is highly creditable to Sir J a111es 1\1acDonne11, as expressing anxiety 
for the safety of his friends, although opposed to him_, and also regret 
that he felt hirnself con1pelled to join the insurrectionary n1ovement. 
He disclai1ns in the strongest language, and, no doubt, with en tire 
sincerity, any design of cold-blooded n1assacre on the part of those 
under his control, but laments the in1possibility of preventing his 
fo1lowers fro1n the perpetration of such foul deeds. He 1nentions an 
instance in which about sixty women and children were 1nassacred by 
Stewart's party, but evidently never thinks of n1aking his friends 
responsible for this inhu1nan act.. Indeed,· he writes under the in1..,. 
pression that he and his fan1ily and friends had a narrow escape fro1n 
some pJot laid for their destruction and that he owed his escape to the 
fact of his striking pron1ptly, and striking first~ 1 

As his letter failed to produce the desired i1npression, and, as the 
insurgent anny had been considerably augtnented at Clough, the Irish 
leaders resolved to 1narch on Coleraine. Stewart, in the n1ean tin1.e, 
had collected a second force, with which he can1e out fro111 Coleraine 
to meet the insurgents. The opposing forces met at a place called the 
Laney, about a n1ile from Ballyn1oney, where a desperate conflict took 
place. 'fhe English and Scotch, co1nn1anded by Stewart, were u tt_erly 
defeated, and, as no quarter was asked or given, only three hundred 
escaped, whilst six hundred were slain in the engagcn1ent and retreat. 
'fhis battle was fought on Friday, the 11th of February, 16-!2, ?\ew 
Style, and such was its disastrous results to the Protestants and Presby­
terians, that the day on ,vhich it occurred was spoken of for n1any 
generations afterwards in the Route as Black Friday. 2 

After gaining such a decided advan~age at the Lan~y, the insurgent 
leaders divided their forces, the larger l)Orti~n, c01n1nanded by Allaster 
.l\JacColl, proceeding to invest Coleraine, whilst the remainder, under 

steadily supported by the O'Haras. Ch.1rles O'H:ira died in 1639, and his heirs lost their entire possessio:1s in 
Loughguile by the insurrection, which commenced in 1641, and continued until 1652. The matrimonial con­
nexions formed by his five daughtas sufficiently indicate his hii:h soci:il pc,sition in the county. The O'Haras, 
in all their branches, ,vcre among the most acti,·e of the Irish insurgents in the Route, during 1641. After the 
surrender of Clough Castle, many wom:-n and children, who had been permitted by the ).facDonnclls to go 
safely aw:1r to Larne, were followed and massacred, on the banks of the Gknravcl \Vater, bra party under tr:e 
command of a son of a Hugh O'l-1:ira, and, no doubt, connected with some of the families of that name then so 
numerous in the parishes of Loughguik anJ Ballrrnoney.-Sce JJ•SJ.:immin's History, 3rd Edit., p. •16. Tr.e 
present Bishop of Cashel and \\'aterford, formerly Dean of Belfast, whose father was rector of Coleraine, is of 
this family. · 

1 It would be difiicult now to discover who "Brother Hill and ii-fr. Barwick'' were, farther than that t:iey 
had probably resided in the neighbourhood with the writer, and ltad gone into Coleraine for protec_tion. The 
first settler n:rn1eJ Iii!! in that digtrict was John Hill, of Altncanum, near Ibllycastle, who died in 1610, and 
was buried in Ramo.in olJ church-nrd. Fwm him came the numerous families of the same surname in 
Ramoan, and also the Hills of Ballinjl."rIT, Banbridge, and Bcllagliy Castie. 

2 The following cxtr;1ct, from a Life of Bishop Bedell, written by his stepson, and generally known as the 
Clogy I\1S., con:itins a vivid, but some\,·hat exaggerated acwunt of this battle: 

''The Scot!. then, throughout all tht: whole provinct of Clstcr, where they wen: most numerous heto-:ik 
themselves to holds. lc:ivinf: all the open l.'Pllntry to the enemy. For the first attc·mpt of Coll hitt;ich (:\i!:;.ster 
?\facColl), h:td Sl1 frii.:hted them tliat tl1t·y thought no man was able to sr:ind bdore that son of An:ik. In his 
first cncounta, at the hl'ad of a ft·\,. Irish I li,!!hl:tndas :ind SOIHl'. of :\ntrirn's Irish Rd1c-lls, that were brethren in 
eYil, against eight hundred Eni:.lish auJ Scotch, having commanded his murdt·rers to !:tr down ,111 their r"ire­
;•rm's he fr!! in among ihern with swords :tnLl durks or 5C:111es. in rnch :1 foril•t1s :ind irrestible manner, th:a 
it was rt·purtnl not a m:tll t>f tltl·m t·sctpl·J ()f :di tht· cii:.ht hundn·J'.'' 
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James I\1acColl and others, were ordered to seize Ball in toy Castle, 
Dunluce Castle, and the town of Ballycastle, all on the coast. As a 
prelin1inary to the attack on Ballin toy, J an1es IVIacColl lVIac Donnell 
addressed the following letter (F. 3. 9. 340-!) to certain country gentle­
n1en who had hastily collected a s1nall force, and placed it in the castle 
at that town: 

"Loveinge ffriends if soe you please I thought good to informe you of the folly you 
undertake in bringinge yourselves to ruyne where you may quietly and without trouble 
worke the waye of your safety, in ta.king of faire quarter for yourselves, your wives, and 
children, as others have done t,hat were in greater safety, and were better able to subsist 
than you are; where likewise you are not in any case like to rcceave any succor from any 
place, for those of Coulrainc are strictly besciged on both sids and by reason of their great 
diseases and dearth of fire and corne doe daily dye apace, bcsids many wcr dayly cu tt otf 
them by sixes, eights, fifteens, and the last daye killed and drowned 20 at once; and they 
have not left above a vcrie few musketts in the whole towne, by that they lost in the great 
conflict.-Anntrim is beseiged and all your people soe many as was left are gon to the 
Clanaboys though 1 confess that part was not caused by our valour, so that uppon my 
creditt your state is ill unless you take quarter, which you shall fairly have as I have done 
with Duuluce which is to sett them a booty and to sufler all such as plcaseth to depart 
freely and such as will stay to live in the country with som::! such g::!ntlcmen in the country 
as they will chuse to be with hereafter, wch if freely you will take I vow before God to 
performe by the grace of Jesus Christ.-And of all men I would wish l\fr. Fullerton 1 to 
take it if the rest doe not, for I had direction from l\,fr. Thom: Oge O'Neale, Governor of 
the County of Armagh, to send him and his family, to his bro. iviaxwell whoe lives in his 
owne house as quietly as ever he was, only that his church benefices is tak~n from him, 

1 The Fullartons, who wae an influential family in the Route, came from the Scottish island of Arran, 
and settled on the Antrim coast about: the s:1me time as the Stewarts and Dunlops. They were ori):.'in:dly a 
Norwegian rnce, known as l\fac Leosaigh, who settled in Arran, at the close of the eleventh century. when 
that island, with severnl others, was Cl·Jed by :\helkolf, King of Scotland, to ).f.:tgnus Bcri.:iet, King of '.\"or­
way. In 1266, ,"..rrnn rind the other isles were surrendered, or restored again to Scotbnd; but, in the inten·:il 
the families that formerly occupied them had almost all <lis:ippcarcd to make room for si~ttlcrs from i\or·.,·:i.y. 
Among the latter were the i\fac Lwsaid1, whose name in Arran had become :\faclouis, .\bcleod, or ).faclowe, 
and whose representative was styled ~bclouis of Foulartown. According to a prevalent custom in Scotland, 
the family name l\focLcod ,,·::is dropped, and Foulc:noun or F11llarton, the n:imc of the family property, was 
adopted in its ste:1d. A member r,f this family distinguished himself by his devoted adherence to R,.1bert 
Bruce during the most trying periods of that monarch's career. \Vhen Bruce bnded on Arran from the 
island of Raghery, in the Spring of 1306-7, .\faclouis of Fulbrton bec:une his guide, and embarked with 
him to Carrick, from a place still known as Kingcross, on the n0rth of \Vhitinf{ 13:ty, in :\rran. Fur his faithful 
services, King Robert Bruce afterwards granted Fullarton the lands of Kilmich:1cl, and the cro\rncrship of 
Arran, in heritage. The lineal descendant of Fullerton was Captain Archib::ild Fullarton, of Kilmichael, 
p:irish of Kili)ride, island of Arr:rn, who had in his po~session the several charters granted to his farnily s::ice 
the close of the fourteenth century. These curious old documents record the following grants to the family: 
"fin 1391, King Robert III., gr::intcd tn Fcr~;us of Foulertoun, of Arane, the land, uf l-:rqwhonnrne, in the 
lordship of Arane anJ Shcriffdom pf Bute. of the old extent of two marks stnling yc:irly, for rcarlr payment of 
one penny of silver in the name of Blcnchfrrme, at the King's Castle of Brethwic, on the feast of Pcntec,Jst. 
In HOO, the same king confirmed to John of Foulcrtoun, the son and heir of the ckcc:ise<l, Fcrchard (or fcn:;us) 
the lands of Killemichacl, in the !biliary nf :\r:tn, tugether with the office of crowner of th:it b:1iliary, which 
belongcd to FcrcharJ in hcritage, for the usu.11 services. In 1-127 ur H2~. King .James I., contirmed the cinrter 
of HOO. In 15 ll, the two nurklands of Kilmech:dl with the crnwncrship of Aranc, anJ the two m.1rklands 
of Forbnd or Ir;ichonanc, were rcsig-ned with rcservztion of the lifcrcnt by :\Ian Fo•.•:lartounc or :\hc!ow~, 
and were granted by James, E:1rl of :\rant·, in heritage to Fergus Fowl:irtoune the son anJ heir of Alam. In 1523, 
the same Earl granted a precept of seisin of the tour mark lands old extent of Kylmychdl :lllJ ()uhytfoirland, 
in the Ear!Jorn of Arrant·, and of the ntiice of crowner of the sarnl', in favour of Alexander, the nephew and heir 
of the deceased Al:rn :\bdowe or Foulertoune, who died seizt'd in thc s:1mc at the faith anJ pc:ice of the Kin~. 
In 1526, Alexander FowkrtL)Ulle of Kylmychcl, crowner uf t.he Isle oi Aran, g::ivc seisin of the two markLinJ, 
of Kylmyd1cl for life tu '.\Lirg;1ret Tait in hcr virginitr, and the hcirs to he beg-otten in conju'nct inft-ftmcnt 
between tlH:m. About 1572, King J:11ncs VI., c1inlirrneJ the charter of Killt~michd, granted in H-UO br R,Jbt:rt 
III. In 15')0, James, Earl of ~\r.1ne, adrnitt.,:J :\Lin ··Lard '.\bclowy," or F11ll:irtnn, as ki1hllr tenant for life 
of the 2Ss 6d l:inds of Sc:dplldt'n, the -IO~ l:ind:i of :\bis :ind Br:iidwick, the 2Ks 6J lands of Glenorrnadell, and 
the -!-Os land!> of Glt-nshcrwik, in thc I•::irldum of .\rane." 

The above mentio1w~I gr.lilts incl11dnl propnry sit11.1tcd in the parish of Kilbride. \Vt.: find the folln·,\'ing 
grants algn to 11wrnbcrs 1>f this f:tm:ly in the p:1ri~h uf Kil11\urie, Arran: "In l-U1 ~. j:1mc.:g 111. granted t,l Gwrge 
of Foubrto11n, the lands of Knrd1tishnd in tht' isle of Ar:lllc, with renuinder to !Jig brother \Villiam :inJ hi• 
ht'ir11, anJ to his own heirs \\·humsoe\·er. Io 15-H. j:1m\'~ V. gr:111tcd tu Jamt·s Stewart, Sheriff of Bute, the 
lan<la of Drurnridan, of the old t·x!t'nt of nine m:irk:i, which John Fo11lllrt•lU!I h:1Jr c~i){llt'J. About the ye:i.r 
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and so is his brother Ecklin too. Theforc gentlemen for abaydinge further bloodshcad, 
of wch I .vow I have noe desire if 1 could helpc, I would advise you to tnke this faire proffer 
or else blame your own obstinacy and not us; for he sure we will have our wills of you at 
]ast when it will be too late for you to cry pecavi: If you take this faire proffer, I will to­
morrowe goe to you and conclude, if not l ,vill be to )·ou as you \\-·ill be to me wch wold 
wish to be yor friend, 

"For the gentlemen in Ballintoy, l\1r. \Yill. 
Fullerton, Archd. Boyd, Thos. Boyd and 
the rest, these." 1 

"JAMES !\1AcDo~xELL. 

The town of Ballyn1oney ,vas head-quarters for J a1nes 1\1acColl's 
soldiers after the battle of Laney, and in that 'place no doubt the fore­
going letter was written to the n1en who he]d Ballintoy. It must have 
been written subsequently to the batt1e of the 11th February, for the 
writer refers to the "great confli~te," rneaning that, no doubt, at the 
Laney; and it must also have been written after the burning of l)unluce, 
I 700, I\fartin in his Account of the Scottish I sics, mentions th:1t ~Liclouis of Kirkmichacl, was said to be 
the most ancient family in Arran, and that he head or representative of it was one of the King's coroners, his 
perquisites being a firlot of oats, and lamb from cn·ry town in the isl:rnd"-Or:"6 ir.ts Pa;ochialn Scotiae, 
Yol. JI., pp. 2-18,255. The brand1 of tliis family of Fullarton which scttkd in the Route retained, as was 
natural, the Christian names which had been borne by their ancestors in ~\rran. Fergus _Fullarton resided at 
Bushmills in 1641, \Villiam Fullarton assisted at the defence of Ballintoy Castle in the same year, whilst 
George, John, and Alexander were names in frequent use among less distinguished members of the family in 
6Ubsequent times. There arc yet many respectable famili1•s, principally among the farmer classes, in the 
Route, bearing the name of Fullerton, and it is curinus that in some instances, even to the present time, the 
names !vlacloy and Fullerton are synonymous words among them. In one instance a man called Fullerton 
by his neighbours was known in the rent-office only as ::'\ladoy! Probably, an ancestor of the l.'.lttcr surname 
owned the farm before the more modern name of Fullerton had been so general!:; adopted. 

The man named William Fullerton, who assisted in 16-11 to hold the Castle of B:illintoy ag-ainst the 
insurgent Irish, is reported to have ldt a brnc family. Several of his descendants in the eighteenth century 
were well known. One of them, also named \\iilliam Fullert,.)n, married Rose :\fontgomer}', of .'.\foyarget, and 
the late \Villiam Hill of the same place was their grandson. Another brother, named Davi<l Fullertu11, was 
Presbyterian minister of Carrickfer~us, from 1756 to 1766, :ind died the rector of a parish near Kingston, 
Jamaica, in 1789. A third, named c_;corge Fullerton, emigrated to Virginia, in America, and was sl:tin fi1-?hting 
on the side of the Colonists, in the war of I ndepcndence. He left one d:iuid1ter, Catherine, who became sole 
heir to her uncle, Alexander Fullarton. The latter had been educated as a doctor, and accumulated a large 
amount of Wt'alth in Jamaica. On his return, he purchased the Ballintoy cst:1te for the sum of £20.000 and 
having no family, :i.lthough married, he bequeathed this fine property to his niece. as already stated. whose son, 
according to his will, was requircJ to take the name of Fullerton. This lady m~,rried Dawson Downing, Esq., of 
Ballaghy and Rowesgift, in the county of Derry. She left one son, George Alexander Fullerton, who was 
born in the Ivlansion, Ballycastle. l\ovember, 1775, and died at To('kington 1\1anor, Gloucester, in 184 7. He left 
three sons and five daughters. His eldest son and heir, name<l ..--\!cxander George, was born in 1808, and married 
in 1833 the Lady Georgiana Leveson Gower, second <laughter of the late Earl of Granville. Their son. \\'illiam 
Granville Fullerton, was horn at the British Embassy, Paris, in 1834-, and died just when he had attained his 
majority, in 1855. The Jkllintoy estate is till owned by a representative of the family. 

1 The Boydswereoriginally a branch of the Stewarts, being descended from Simon. second son of \Valter' 
the first Stewart of Scotland. Their name Bor<l is simply a corrupt form of the Gaelic word Buidhe, or Y cllov,r, 
from the prevailing foir colour of their hair. The many persons of this name throuf:hout the Route, in 16-H. 
were scattered mcmbe-rs from the great family in Ayrshire, of which the Earls of Kilmarnock were the chiefs 
or representatives. \Villi~m Boyd, the last Earl, took an active part in the rebellion of l 7-1-5. and after his 
execution. a large chest of family papers was placed in cmtody of the magistrates of Kilmarnock. A selection 
from these papers was published by the .Abbotsford Club. in 1837, from which \•.·e ma)· form an estimate of 
the high position cmjoycd by the family, from the days of Bruce until the sad finale in 17-!6. The following 
are the titles of a few of these curious documents: 

I. "Bond of l\fotuall Assistance by Queen ::\fargaret and the Lord l\lethvcn, her husband, to Lord Boyd, 
May 26, 1529. 

2. "Ane Agriement betuix Hew Erle of Eglintown and Robert Lord Boyd, anent all quarrels and slcighter 
of kin, i\fay 2, 1530. 

3. "Oblisement by the Eries of Argyle and others, to warrant and assist Lord Boyd of Kilmarnock, in 
all the actions he sh:dl have to do, 1543. 

4. "Agreement betuix ;\lary Queen Reg-ent, and Robert Lord and l\faister of Boids, for ::\fotuall As• 
11istance ag::rnis their e11<.·mies. Nonmber 6, 1557. 

5. "Cornrnissionc by ()uct'n :\Iary to Robert Lord Boyd, to treat with her subjects of Scotl:ind, anent 
anc rcconcili,1tione, June -1-, 15(,~). 

6. "Lcttn by my Lord Angus to my Lord Boyd, qnhairby he promisscs to S('t1d his serv:inds to his Court 
Holding, August 2, 1590." 

There are twc•nty-nine t):qwrs in this puhliglwd SC'l<'crinn, all of which ha\·c titlc·s somewhat similar to the 
above, and all indicating tht'. grt'at social and political sta11Jing of the various mcmlwrs of the family to whom 
ther s1wcially refer. Of this r:ice was Sir Rl>i>c:rt Buy,1, who accompaninl Rubert Brncc to the island of 
Raghcrr, during the winter of 13()(,, and one of whos~· desl.'.'t·11da11ts, an Earl oi . .\rran, 111:1rried .\bry, ckdest 
daughter of J;uncs I I., i11 H67. 13':siJcs the pri1Kipal h0usc uf Kilmarnock, there were many coll.itcr;d familit's 
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as their leader here 
of the latter place. 
massacred, and no 
as best they could. 

mentions how he had disposed of the inhabitants 
It does not appear that any of these people were 

doubt they were permitted to return· to Scotland 

J a1ncs IvfacColl's argun1ents n1ade no i1npression upon the party who 
garrisoned Ballintoy. 1'hey had not gone there to si1rrender at the 
first notice, but to die in defending then1selve., against an enemy, 
whom they believed to be without rnercy. i\s this enerny approached 
Ballin toy, fron1 Ballyn1oney, their whole route was 1narkecl with rapine 
and 1nurder. rfhc insurgent, were strong enough co1npletcly to invest 
Ballin toy Castle, and were at first quite sure of success, but the brave 
little garrison repelled every assault, and finally beat off their ferocious 
assailants. During these operations, the adjoining church of Ballin toy 
·was crowded with a trembling multitude of wornen and children, who 
were every hour threatened with destruction, either by fire or fan1ine. 
In heir dire extremity, a R.01nan Catholic priest, at great personal risk, 
interfered for thei · preservation. \Vith diHiculty he obtained pern1is .. 
of Boyds in the district of Carrick, among whom the Bords of Pinkill, and the Boyds of Trochrig, were best 
known. Of the former family was the cdcbr;i ted ~fark Alex. Boyd, who was born at Pin kill, in 1562, and 
James Boyd, Archhishop of Glasgow, sccon<l son of Adam Boyd, and cousin to the sixth Lord Kilmarnock. 
Andrew Boyd, appointed bishop of Argyle in 1613, was supposed to be son of Thomas, the fifth Lord Boyd. 
A son of the bishop died, and W:!S interred in Ragherr, as may be inferred from the following inscription, in 
Roman capitals, on a monumental slab in the church-yard of that Island: • · 

"HIC. JACET. JACOBUS . BODICS . ANDREAE . LIS:\!OR . EPISCOPI .· FILICS . CU7'1. 
UXORE • CHRJSTINA • CA~1PELLA • QUI . OBIIT • NONO DIE DECE.MBR AN~O . DOI\! • 
1665." 

From the time of the erection of the See of Argyle, at the close of the twelfth century, the bishop's seat 
was on the small island of Lismore, near the Scottish coast, and hence the bishops were always designated 
Episcopi Lismorensis. 

The Boyds of the Route most probably \\'ere compelled to leave their native district of Carrick, on the 
Scottish coast, in consequence of the terrible feuds whic:h raged there during the latter half of the sixteenth 
century. :t'\1any of them found comfortable homes on the Antrim shores, and a few had become int1uential 
inhabitants of the.Route in thl" following century. Of the latter were the Bo:r<ls, so actively concerned in the 
scenes of 1641. A rector of Ramoan, named \Villiam Boyd, early in the eighteenth century, married Rose 
l\facNeill, the only daughter and heiress of Hugh 1Iac.'.'\cill, of Dunananie Castle, and through this lady the 
Ballycastle estate came originally into the family of Boyd. Her son, Hu!?h Boyd, who huilt the harbour at 
Ballyc.:istle, in 1738, died in 1765, and his great great gr.:ind$on, Alexander Boyd, of Ihllycastle, owned the 
family estate in 1865. 

This branch claims descent from the house of Kilmarnoc:k, and, in the absence of positive proof, there are 
reasons to lead to the belief that their cl:i.im is well founded. The family trnditions and the family armorial 
bearings attest their connexion with that ancient and nobie house. It is more than prohable that positive 
proof might also be found. In connexion with this point, the foilowing extract from a letter, written by the 
celebrated Dr. Adam Clarke, will be interesting. This letter was written in Dublin, in the year 1825, ~,nd 
was published in Etheridge's Life of Dr. Clarke, page 415. The extract is as follows: "lam at ::,.rr. Adam 
Boyd's. Tell John that he provc::s positively that his aunt, my grandmother Clarke, was an immediate de­
scendant of the E:irls of Kilmarnock, whose family name was Boyd. His own grandfather was always wiled 
Kilmarnock, as standing cJoge to the Earldom." 

The oldest tombstone (of \\'hich the writer has any knowledge), marking the grave of a Scottish settler in 
the Route, was raised br John Boyd, in 1615, to the memory of his wife, Jane Peebles, in Derrykeighan Church­
yard. This man. preYious to hig coming to Ireland, had been se\·eral years Provost of Irvine, and was evidently 
one of the many Srntc:hrncn induced to come to the Route by Rancbll I\f:ic Donnell, when the latter, in 1603, 
procured a grant to hi1mdf from James I., of the vast estates which should have rightfully bciongeJ to his 
cousins and nephews. · John Boyd settled at Carncogy, near Dervock, and from him \\·as descended the 
late Dr. Boyd, of Coleraine, who, during many years, served as :\lc:rnbcr of Parli:rnwnt for that Borough. 

The fair complexion from which this race originaily derived its 11amc of Buidhe or Boyd, is still a distin­
guishing personal characteristic of the Ballrcastle branch. The Christian names which generally prevailed 
among the family in ScotLnd are yet preserved by their kinsmen on this coast, such :1s Robert, \\'illi:im. 
Adam, Alex:inder, Archibald, anJ Thomas. The n:1mc Hugh is also common, but it was tirst introduced from 
the !\lacNcills of Dunananit", and hy them from an c,1rly branch of the family t•f O'Nr:ill. 

Perhaps one of the most interesting family records of the Ballrcastle Boyds is a simple Baptism:.il Register, 
which w;i.s made by Alexander B,)y<l, of Clare Park, near lhllycastle, a brother of Hugh Boy<l, so well known 
for his prnisewnrthy efforts to prom,)tc the industrial prosperity of his native pl:ice. 1\loander Boyd married 
a lady name<l \\'ilso11, of the Carrickfergus family, and thcy haJ thirteen children, all of whose baptisms he 
regularly recor<ll'J, bt·twt·cn the years 1736 :rnd I 751. } )t" also mt'ntioned the Ila mes of the sevcr.:d goJfathers 
and godmothers who were prcst·nt on tlwsc uccasions, so that many dates, and not a few h-:ulin~ n:1mes of the 
district, arc found in this brid but faithful do1~1estiL'. recorJ. The ori .. i11al ~IS. was in the possession of Robert 
Gi\'en, of Coleraine, \\'ho w:1s 111:1ternaily L!n.;cendnl frnm Akxat:da B, 1rd, 
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sion to bring then1 water, and in doing so, secretly filled the water­
vessels with oat1neal, covering it ,vith a few inches depth of water at the 
top. In this way he daily carried to the captives as 1nuch food as kept 
then1 alive until relief came. 'Tradition states that this truly good 
Samaritan was called Priest i\JacGlaime, but nothing is known of hin1 
save this one noble Christian act. It is quite enough, however, to 
consecrate his mernory to the latest posterity-to preserve his na1ne in 
everlasting reme1nbrance. J t is recorded that he was considered a 
traitor by his co religionists, and subseuquen tly n1urdere<l. 

From BalJintoy, the Irish party retired, or retreated, to Ballycastle, 
having ,vritten previously to Alice O'Neill, Countess I)owager of 
Antrin1, ,vho resided at the latter place, inforn1ing her of their intended . . 
VlSl t. 

The frightful results of their visit to Ballycastle appear but too 
plainly fron1 an account of the exa111ination of Alice, Countess l)o,vager 

of Antrim (F. 3. 9. 4229), taken at Coleraine, on the 9th of February, 

1652, before Richard Brasier, IVIayor, and Col. Tho1nas Coote, Gover­

nor of that town. The Countess flatly denied all participation in the 
massacre ,vhich took place around the \Valls of her castle. It would 

appear that the English and Scotch inhabitants of Ballycastle, on first 

hearing of the approach of the Irish party, rushed into the castle-yard 

for protection, so1ne \Vo men venturing in to the hall, and even hanging 
on the skirts of Lady Antri111, and of her daughter, the Lady Sarah 

MacDonnell. 'f he naines of those preserved were A.n thon y I(nowles, 

tuck-n1iller; John Hunter, carpenter; John I\Jurghlan, smith; Alexander 

Stewart, corn 1niller; and John K~id,· stone-1nason. 
The following docun1ents, derived fron1 the 1nanuscript volu1ne 

already mentioned, and now printed for the fir.,t time, will further 
explain the state of affairs at this period in Ballycastle and its vicinity.· 

These witnesses are, in justice, sun1n1oned fron1 both parties, the two 
Stewarts being Prostestants while l\lacallister and O'f-Iagan were 
Ron1an Catholics: 

(F. 3. 9. 4049.) 

"I. The Examination of Archibald Stewart aged about 50 yeares, taken the 18th 
:[\,fay 1643 

. "\Yhoe being duely sworne and Examined what he doth knowe or con-
cerninge the massacre of \Villiam Ffynly and his brother \v·ith a numba of persons more 
of men woemen and children being of the Protestant persuasion, of the parish of Armor, 
wch fled thence towardes Bally Castell, 

"Saith that he was Informed by several! of the country after he came from Colcrane to 
Ballencoy, that these persons were killed in the Church of Ramone wth in a quartr of a 
mile of Bally Castell by Hugh ODullinam, Patrickc ODullinan, Donnohy I\l'Guigan 
f\l'Cawly wth severall others of the ODullinans and I\1'.-\llistcrs. 
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"And further saith that the persons above-mencond tooke into that Church for shelccr, 
by Reason they heard that Bally Castell where the Countess of Antrim was, was taken by 
the enimye as this Examinate And that the men that was in the sd howsc 
of Baliy Castell was commanded by Donnell Gorm l\1acDonne1l whoc was afterwards 
killed at Glanmaguiny 

"And being demanded whether Coll lVIacAllester was at the massacre of the persons 
above-mencond in the Church of Ramone, saith that hce di<l not heerc that hce was 
there that day, but did heerc that he came the next day to Bally Castell, And did also 
heere that he was present about the Hill ncere Portnagree hard by Bally Castell, when 
Donnahy :t\1'Ivison (?) 1\·l'Cawly kil<l ffoure Brittish in Portnagrce, And further saith not, 

"Taken before us, Geo. Rawclen. "ARCH: STEWART. 

Tobias Llovvice. John Peirson." 

The old church which stood at Ran1oan in 1641 \Vas rebuilt in 1812, 
and finally re111oved to an adjacent site s01newhat neare:· to the town 
of Ballycastle. On the old site, St Patrick founded the first Christian 
Chprch in that district, about the middle of the fifth century. 

(F. 3. 9. 4250.) 
2. "The Examination of Coll :rvl'Allester of the parish of Derrikigham, in the Co. of 

Antrim. Gent. taken before us the 14th day of March 1652, 
"\\1ho being ducly examined saith That it was Allester l\1' Coll 1vl'Donnell & Tirlagh 

Oge O Cahan 1 who (as he hath since heard by common report both of the Irish and Scotch) 
were the chicfe plotters and Actors of the 1viurder of the Brittish at Portnaw in Christmas 
1641, That after that mur<ler was committed by the Irish & Highlanders upon the Brittish 
at Portnaw the Irish being jealous of the English and Scotch and the English and Scotts 
jealous of the Irish, without any difference or distinction the Irish kill' d all the English and 
Scotts they co~lcl lay hands on, and the English and Scotts did the like unto the Irish, 
except some fewe Irishmen who shewed mercy unto the English and Scotts whereof this 

1 The O'Cahans of Dunseveric were originally a branch of the Cinel-Eogh:iin, and thus descended from 
Niall, surnamed the Great, who was monarch of lrcl:tnd at the commencement of the fifth century. As Dunse­
veric ,vas the last refuge of this family, so it more than probable that here was also the c;;.rlicst se:it of their 
power. The O'Cahans and other castles (in the county of Derry), but the principal family occupied Dunseveric 
during many centuries. Earl)· in the eleventh century, a youth of this princely house assisted i11 cutting to 
pieces by stratagem the Danish invaders of Irehnd. This event is referred to by Buchanan of ,\uchmar, in his 
admirable and most reliable Il istory of the Surname of Buchanan, pp. 15, 16. At the commencement of the 
fourteenth century, Angus Oge :\facDonncll, Lord of the Isles, married Ai:;-nes O'Cahan (surnamed Fionnghuala, 
or Fair Shoulders), of Dunseveric, and obtained, as her dmvry, a number of young men from each su rnamc through 
out her father's territory wherewith to strengthen his kingdom of the Isles. i\Iany of the more modern of 
the Highland clans are said to have had their origin in the families thus founded by these lJ!stcr emigrants. 
This curious arrangement between Angus Oge :\facDonncll and his father-in-bw, ()'Cahan, is referre<l to in an 
old MS. history of the Lords of the Isles, published for the first time in the Col!uta,ua de Rdn1s A!banicis, 
pp. 282, 326. It has been doubted whether the O'Cahans of Dunseveric were of the same family as 
the O'Cahans of Ciannachta, in Derry, but this curious supplcm.cnt to the history of the Scottish Higi1lands 
represents them as identic:d, :ind spt·:iks of the Dunsevcric chief as the actual owner of the O'Cahan country 
west of the Bann. The following passage, at page 29·1, refers to the matrimonial arrangements above-men­
tioned: "The portion or tocher he had by her was seven score men out of every surname under O'Kain: viz., 
the lvfonroes, so called because they c:-ime from the innermost Roe waters in the county of Derry, their names 
being formerly O';\Jillam. the Roses, of Killraack (Kilravock), the Fairns, Dingwalls. Glasses, Beatons, so now 
called, but improperly, that being a French name, whereas thl'y :-ire Irish, of the tribe of o·.:--;-eals, and took 
the name first from following the name of Beda. The .i\hcphersons, who are not the same with the :\fac­
phersons of Badennck, but are of the O'Dochartics of Ireland (:1nother county Derry surname); the Bulikes 
in Caithncss, of whom is the.: Laird of Tolingaill, an<l many other surnames, ''"hich, for brevity, we pass over, 
many of whom had no succession." \\ihilc the O'Cahans of Derry were reduced to ruin by the rclH"ilion of 
O'Nt·ill and O'Donnell, anJ aiterwar<ls by the Plantation of Ulster, the chid of Dunscveric still was able to 
maintain some semblance at least of the :rncicnt family state. I Iis day of doom, however, was not Ion~ delayed. 
Gilduff O'Cahan anJ his sons bt·camc actin and powerful rehcls in lb-I 1, :ind were all citlicr killed in battle or 
executed before the close of 1(>53. The f1>llowi11g brid t·x.tract from an old :\IS., formerly in possession of the 
Rev. Cl.i:-son Port('r, of Larnc, tells in n·ry business-like style the final catastrophe of the once great family 
who haJ <lwc!t in Dunscvcric since the expulsion of the Pictish Kin~s from th:1t n:-11owned fortress: 

"By inquisition taken at lbllynwnt'y, Cl). Antrim, 15 August. 1657. it is f1H111d that (;il!Juff O'C1ban, of 
Dunseveric. in the county :tfl1rt·s:1iJ, g1·11tlt-111:rn, was scizcJ as of foe in the Castle uf Dunst'.\"cric, and the 
'f\1wnbnd of So1nt.·\·;1llr, in the Han)Jly d Carl')', and county afort·said, containing 120 a..:n·s, anJ Sll s,·i?.cJ. the 
24th of !vbrch lfr! 1---2 at B:dlintoy, in th1• Cl)Ul\ty aforesaid, was. togcthl'r with ahl>Ut 100 traitors in rdiclliun 
;1g:1i11st .King Charil's, and in the s:1me did continue ti!! l(>S3, I\ hieh time he was executed for rd>elliun, by 
rrason whereof the premises unto his said l li~lincss ;1nd the C..,mriH.Jll\\Talth Jv helung." 
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Examinate was one who did as much for the preservation of the Brittish as lay in his power, 
And this Examinate further saith That he and Robert Oge Stewart were standing upon 
the Rocke over the Strande at Portnagree, &. one Gilcomy rv1'I tallgar as he remembers & 
noe more at all either Irish or Scotts with them when one Donnahy M'Guiggen IVl'Awly 
kill'd one Gilbert Gannill under the Rocke but none else were killed there soe far as he 
could see, And this Examinate being demanded wherefore he left his usual habitation after 
the said 1\-Iurder at Portnaw and others the murders committed in the Roote, He saith 
that the Reason thereof was because the British garrison in Ballin toy house was wthin 
three miles, and being demanded what need he had to feere the Brittish he being soe care­
ful to preserve as many as lay in his power, he saith because at that time the Brittish durst 
not trust one another, And this Examinate being demanqed if he was in the fight at the 
Layney1 when the English and Scotch on the 11th of ffcbruary 1641, called blacke ffridaye, 
were routed and bout 700 Brittish slaine he saith he came that very daye unto the Lainey 
12') cowes being lately taken from him for not compliance with the Irish to get restitution 
of them, And Allester rviacColl :t\1acDonncll (the British forces then approaching) made 
this Examinate to joyn him and his men, and upon joyning battell the British were de­
feated, and enough of them killed, but this Examinate saith he killed none of those who 
would have killed him. And being demanded if he did see or heerc of any Brittish killed 
in Ballycastell house or Towne, where the Countess of Antrim dwelt, he saith he was 
often at Ballycastell, and that the house of Ballycastell after the l\1urder at Portnaw was 
kept by Donnell Grome l\1IacDonnell deceased and his men, but he saith he never see or 
heard of any killed th~re, or at Carnkeerin or Ballylusk, which two Last mencond places 
were not distant from tl1is Examinates house, And this Examinate saith alsoe that he 
was not at any time at the siege of Ballintoy or Colerane save only once that /\llcster 
l\IacColl sent for him unto Colerane to bring him provisions & that he brought him at that 
time five cowes for the provisions of his men, And further he saith that he never mard1~cl 
through the country with the Irish to Dunluce or Oldstone (Clough) neither was he at 
any time betwixt the beginning of the Irish Rebellion & march of the Scotch armey into 
the Rootc at Dunlucc or Oldstone, and that he never heard of any Brittish murdrcd by 
the Irish at the salt panns of Ballycastle, or at l\Jargie l\Ioore, but of some few murdered 
at Ramoane Church by Dwaltoagh l\,IcAllester & the Dullenans, now dead. And 
further he saith not. 

''H. CooTE." "R1cH. BRASIER, l\lajor. 

Coll MacAllister, of Derrykeighan, was the representative of the 
various fa1nilies of that name in the Route, descendants of .A..lexander 
Carrach Ma'cDonnell, a younger brother of John l\1lor. The l\Jac­
Allisters for a time rivalled the MacDonnells of .A.ntrin1 in po\ver, but 
,vere eventually subjugated by Sorley Boy. This Coll 1\:fac.Allister 
probably resided at the place now known as Bellisle, near Stranocu1n, 
and in the i1n1nediate vicinity of both Ballylusk and Carnkerrin. 
Fron1 the questions put to hi1n ,vhen exa1nined, it was eviden ti¥ the 
general belief that there had been massacre:; at these places, although 
he n1ay not have been cognizant of the fact. Neither did he seetn to 
have heard of the slaughter at the Salt Pans, or at the ~'largeyn1ore in 

· Ballycastle, \vhich was not rernarkable, a : he lived at a considerable 
distance. But these also were n1el anchol y facts. The old 1\1arkc t-

1 A family namc<l Taylor occupil'd the L1rm of the L:ult>}' during man;• generations subsequently to 16-H. 
Dr. \Villiam Taylor, late of B:dly111oncr, stated that from its soil many fragm::nts uf old :trmour had been 
turned up by the plough anJ sp.1Jc. 
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House of Ballycastle stands on the ancient lviargeymore, or place 
where the large tnarket was held. 'fhe Salt Pans are situated at the 
rere of Bathlodge, east of Carrig tJsnach. 

(F. 3. 9. 1538.) 
3. ,"The Examination of Robt. Oge Stewart of the Parish of Culfaghtorin Gent, 

taken before us. at Colerane the sd 1 t of i\·larch 1652. 
"\Vho being duely sworne and Examined saith that about two days after the murder of 

Portnaw he was present and did behold and see (his life being then protected and saved by 
Coll ~1acAllester) when one Donnohy l\IacGuiggen ~IacAwly, murdred Hugh Hill, 
Gilbert Gannanclill his son at Portnagree. That there were at the same time present and 
looking on at the topp of the hill the sd Coll ~!lacAllester, Cormacke O'Dullenan, and 
Shane ~1acVicker lv1acCormacke, with above One hundred in their company, and this 
Examinate further saith-That Fferdoragh l\Iagee was at this Examinante's house the 

same day the former 1-Iurder was committed and that \Yilliam Giffon was murdreJ by 
Fferragher l\1ag.ee and Patricke :tvl'Ahoy on the backe of this Examina tes house the sd 
Fferdoragha :rvlagee being then present and beholding the sci l\lurder, :\nJ further he 
saith n·ot. 

"H C " . oote. R1cH: BRASIER, i\lajor. 

Robert Oge Stewart· was of the Ballintoy family, and nephew to 
Archibald Stewart. He resided near Ballycastle, and still nearer to · 
Portnagree, where he \Vitnessed the destruction of the three persons 
above-named. l'he Coastguard Station House is built in Portnagree, 
immediately below the "Rocke,, n1entioned by this deponent, and 
probably on the very place \vhere the 1nurder was perpetrated. In 
1738, when the Harbour at Ballycastle was being built, Portnagree was 
filled to its present level by sand removed from the ,vorks and placed 
there. In July, 1793, a n1aniac fell fron1 the R.ock into a kelp-kiln and 
was burned to death. His body was buried in Portnagree. 

(F. 3. 9. 4249.) 

4. "The Examination of Edmund o'Haggan of Ballycastle in the Parish of Ramoane 

in the County of Antrim Gent, taken before us at Colcrane 12th of l'.Iarch 1652. 
"\Vhoe being duly examined saith, That he was the Countess of Antrim's waiting man 

for many )"ears and lived at Ballycastell with her Ladyship. That the day after the 
!\1urder of the Brittish at Portnaw to this Examinate,s best remembrance, \\'illiam Glon:r, 
James Stewart and Thomas Stewart with some ten Scotchmen of the tmvn of Ballycastell 

came unto the gate of the Castle, That James r.'lacHenry Esq, who since was kill'd at 
Ennis as he hath heard mett with the said \Villiam Glover ,vithout the Gate where they 

were talkeing together this Examinate being present but not so neare as to heare what 
they said that James Stewart and Thomas Stewart went in at the wickett of the Gate the 
Broadgate being shut as it was accustomed to be, And. \Villiam Glover an<l the rest of 
the Scotch staid_without, That soon after the said James Stewart and Thomas Stewart 
were entred into the castle the sd James ~IacHcnry went in at the gate and this Examinate 
followed him, that, as soone as they were gone in they found the Porter of the Gate and 
the sd James Stewart and Thomas Stewart quarrelling and that the two Stewarts swords 
were drawne upon which the sd James ~lacHanry and Donnell grome :-..IacDonnell 
(since likewise killed with the men which he had in the Castle to kecpe the Castle for his 
own or what end he knows not) disarmed the sd James Stewart an1..l Thum:ts Stewart, 
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And being demanded upon what ground the sd two Stewarts <lrew their swords after they 
were within the Castle Gate he saith he believes it was to force the Porter to open the 
Gate and n1ake way for \Villiam Glover and the Scots without the Gate to come in, That 
soone after the said two Stewarts having their swords restored them were sent out of the 
Castle and the Examinatc being demanded if any of the Brittish came after unto the 
Castle for safety of their lives, he saith that all who came thither for shelter were received 
in and their lives saved, And being demanded who those were he saith John L\1urghlan, a 
smith, John Hunter, a cnrpenter, John l..:idd, a mason, Allester Begg Stewart, afterwards 
the said Countesses I\1oulte'rer and some other men and women whose names he doth 
not remember, That he did not sec or know of or heare of any murdred at Ballycastell 
but one Jennett Speir whoe was killed on the Backside of the sd. Countesses stable ncare 
the Castle, but by whom he knows not, That Allcster l\IacColl l\:IacDonnell and James 
l\'lacHenry came to visit the Countess at Ballycastell after the murder at Po;tnaw and 
in the Layney soe often as they pleased, and that this Examinate sometimes did see them 
and other there, and further he saith not. 

"H. COOTE." RICH: BRASIER. 

'fhe evidence of Ed1nond O'I-Iagan represents what took place at 
the Castle in a 1nore favourable light than even the Countess herself 
had been able to do. Donnell Gorn1 l\IacDonnell, of Killoquin, in 
Rasharkin, had been appointed to seize Ballycastle I-louse and hold it 
for the Irish. He was soon cornpelled to evacuate, and was slain son1e 
time aftenvards, at Glenn1aquiney, in County Donegal. James 
l.\'Iacl-Ienry (O'Neill) was a near relative of the Countess, with whorn 
she appears to have acted in concert. 
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The Stewarts of Ballintoy 21 

Lord Antritn had returned to Dunluce Castle for a ten1porary visit, 
and during his stay there General 1\1onro quietly took hin1 prisoner­
and lodged hi1n in Carrickfergus Castle. Another .,Archibald Stewart, 
who ,vas related to the agent, and who appears to have been Squire to 
Lord An tri1n, set about planning means for his liberaf on, which was 
acco1nplished with great tact. He procured a passport fro1n the 
Governor of Carrickfergus, as if for an invalid ]caving the place. L.ord 
Antrin1 was forthwith dressed as such, and no one recognised hin1. 
I-le was thus carried on board a vessel about to sail for Carlisle, where, 
when he arrived, he quickly dispensed ,vith his sick gannents, and, 
acco1npanied by Stewart, set out to visit the king at Oxford. After a 
brief sojourn there, Lord A.ntri1n and Stewart returned, carrying with 
them very irnportan t papers and letters to the chiefs of the royal 
party in this country. Their. n1ove1nents, however, had been closely 
watched, and no sooner did they reach the shore, than they ,vere seized 
by one of Monro's officers, and lodged in Carrickfergus Castle. 1."'heir 
papers were sent by l\1onro to the provisional (;ovcrnn1ent at Edin­
burgh. Stewart was soon afterwards brought to tr-ial for assisting 
Lord Antrin1 to escape, and having been convicted, was executed at 
Carrickfergus, in July, 16-!3. 1 

Fe,v families have sent out fro1n the n1ain stem a greater nti111ber of 
collateral. branches than that of the Ballin toy Stewarts. 1.~he first 
settler, J an1es Stewart, had, besides Ninian, his heir, a younger son, 
David, and two daughters, Jane and Christian. David n1arried and 
left three sons, and, in addition to his direct n1ale descendants, he is 
represented through the female line by n1any fan1ilies, a1nong whon1 
may be mentioned the lVIaconaghys, \Voodrows, l\'1acCooks, Gillespies, 
Ghahan1s, J\t1acCoys, Bro,vns, MacAllisters, l\1acQuoids, T'en1ples, 
Eglin tons, J ohnstons Andersons, and rviacilroys. David's t,vo sisters 
also n1arried and left fan1i]ies. Christian becan1e the wife of her kins­
man, Brice Dunlop, but ,ve have not been able to ascertain the nan1e of 
Jane's husband.'. 

1 General l\fonro's letter to the English Parliament, dated Carrickfergus, 23rd ~by, 1643, informing them, 
among other matters, of the capture of Lord Antrim, concludes in th<.",e words: "The E.'.lrl of Antrim sh:dl, 
God willing-, be kept close in the C1stle of Carrickfergus till I be ac4u:1inted from your honours concerning 
him; and the traitor who convercd him last away is to be cxccutt'd, since we can extort no discovery from him 
that is contained in the papers sent to Scotland." This letter is printcJ in Dr. Reid's Ili.,tory, vol. i, p. 410. 

2 The Dunlops must h:l\'e settleJ on the Antrim coast soon after their kinsmen the Stewarts. and were 
probably influenced in Joing so by their relationship to the latter. Bry:rn (sometimes written Bryce) Dunlop 
married Christian Stewart. a d:u1ghter of the tirst settler of th:tt 11:1rne from Bute. Tlu: Dunlops were originally 
a11 Irish race, knnwn in Ul:iJh as the O'Duinsleihbe, or \bcDuinsleibhe. now :\n~liciseJ D.rnle\·r in this 
country. l\fembers of this once p'.)\\·erful family wen: princes anJ chiefs in UliJia. s\t wlut period, or unJer 
what circumstances, they cmig-ratt:J tu Scotland is not kno,\·n, but in that kin~dn:n their <lescenJ;rnt.s were 
called Dun .. lepht:s, Dlll1shik Dunlaps, lhnlops, anJ Livingstoncs.-(St:e Irish T,ipa~ra,'>izical Puems. e<lit('J 
br Dr. O'O:m:JV.'.ln, xxv., lt>U.) H:tween the rears l3UG anJ 130'), King R1)h::rt Bruce g-1-:1nteJ Sl·vcn anJ a 
h:df sniem,irgis of lanJ in his l"rdship of K.intyrc tl) J:11w:s, the s:in of DLrns!t~ph. t!"1e grant,:e renJcring the 
forin"ic service of a ship of 2<> ,nrs. w:th its complem:!nt of 111en anJ victu:tls.-(//,di11t'J11'.r Cui!ection, vu!. ii., 
p. 77, quntcJ in Orit:in,·s />,iriichia!c:J" Scoticu. vol. ii., p. ~19.) in 1557, J,,hn :\Ltcl);1iBbif :q:ip,•ars in rcc.irJ 
as p.»se:;sing the l:tnJs L>f Audrntll.:rt·~:, in the L ,rJ-:hip 1)f Lcnrn. i\ snull freehl)lJ, ori~i11:tlly of t\\"dve acr,:s, 
but latterly nf ,rnly six, in Lsimm:, h:1s lll't'll held fl)r many centuries l>r a familr namcci Li\·inf~Stnnc, as cus­
tu.Jiers of th.: bish.)p's crozin strlc:.i the B.1duill nure. Tl1,:sc Livin.~stones arc ll>C:dh· knuwn as tht: Barons 
of lhd1:1ill. In the dnm.:-hy:irJ of .K.illiri,lc. Cantirc. there is a curious Ct\>ss, n,Jw bij as a gr;i.vcstone, with 
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Ninian, the representative, besides his heir, left a younger son, also 
named Ninian, and one <laughter, Catherine. Catherine 1narried John 
Ste,vart, of Red Bay,1 and besides many fan1ilies of Stewarts decended 
from her throughout the Glynns, her descendants in the fen1ale line 
intermarried with the fan1ilies of IvlacA.llister, lvlacNeill, lv1acGaghey, 
Black, O'Neill, IV1acCambridge, Delargey, l\1agill, l'v1oore, Kane, Downey 
MacAulay, MacCoy, l\1acShannog, lVIacCahern, l\'1acJv1ullin, 1\fartin, 
l\1urray, Robinson, lvfurphy, l\IacKendry, l\1acCormac, lVIacDonnell, 
<;)'Lynn, l\1acKinley, l\,fagee, Fullerton, Ran1say, and l\'1acPhaull. 

But hei brother Ninian (\vho ,vas also the younger brother of 
Archibald, agent to the second Earl of Antrim) was ancestor of th·e 
greater nu1nber of collateral fan1ilics. He n1arried a lady na1ned 
Jane l\1acCullough, by whon1 he left twelve children, five sons and 
seven daughters. The names of his sons were \Villian1, George, R.obert, 
Alexander: and Lewis. His daughters' nan1es were Christian, Isabella, 
111ary, Grizel, Jane, Alice, and Rose. 'fhe following notice of their 
fan1ilies, although so brief, will enable the reader to form an idea of 
the vast multitudes connected with the Ste,varts of Ballintoy at the 
present day. '.fhe · na1nes undennentioned only represent the fe1nale 
lines to the fifth generation fron1 Ninian. 

1. VVilliam, the eldest son, ,vho lived in Carey, left one son, John, 
and t\v,o daughters, l\Iary and .l\shley. John's daughter, Letitia,. 
married the Rev. Robert Rowan, of Oldstone, and J\;1ary, her sister, 
married Hugh Dickson, both leaving large families. Their descendants 
in the fen1ale line intennarried with the families of I-Ia1nill, l'v1acCready, 
Carey, Henry, Baillie, l\IacGuffin, Perry, Steele, and Blackhouse. 

2. Robert, the second son, settled at l\Iaghren1ore, in the parish of 
Ra1noan, about three miles from Ballycastle. His family consisted 
the crucifixion, surmounted by the latters, I. H. S., said to mark the grave of Livingstones, in Gaelic ).foc­
lanlea.-(Origines Paroclzia!es Scotiae, vol. ii., pp. 155, 163, 826.) It has been conjectured by Burke :rnd others 
that the Stewarts of Ballintoy arc descended from t\inian, the Sheriff of Bute, by his third \\·ife, Elizabeth 
Blair, but the much greater probability is that they arc his posterity through his secoud wife, Janet Dunlop. 
It does not appear that Elizabeth Blair left any but one son, Robert, who inherited from his father the lands of 
Ambrismore in the parish of Kingarth. and the lands of Queane in the parish uf Rothesay. See Origines 
Parochia!ts Scotiae, under Kingarth a11d Rothesay. 

1 The following deposition was made, no doubt. by one of the Red Bay Stewarts, but how this family 
was related to the Ballintoy Stewarts previously to the marriage mentioned above, is not known:-

The examination of Andrew Stewart of C'oshendonn in C'u!fagtrim parish, yeoman, 
taken before us the sd 4th day of :\larch, 1652. 

\Vhoe being sworne and examined s:i.ith, Th:i.t about nine or ten daics after the :\forder at Portnaw about 
24 Brittissh, young and old carriJ unto this cxaminants house at C'oshcndonn, (Alex. :\focKay haveing re­
ceived order from Alex. Cnlin ~\b cDonne!I, to secure this Examinant) which Brittish with thrir goods this 
Examinant put into his kill (kiln) that he this Exami11ant upon some occasion being angry with two Irish 
boyes, his servants, they went unto the said AlexanJC'r ~be Kay and the comp:rnie of Irish which were with 
him, about halfc :i mile thence, and told him how this Examinant had some Scotch hid in his Kill. l"pon 
which the s:1iJ Akxand{'r :\lacKav. with about sixteene men came unto this Examin:ints house, and demanded 
of him the key of his kill, and c:i"useJ the said Ex:i.minant to open the Joon• 1 tdling him he heard there was 
good store of gold and money thi~rc, and he would view it. :\nd as soont· as the doorc was openr:J, all the men 
with him m:nt into the Kill. and t(K1kc away and robbed the Brittish of tlH'ir packs. and fardells, and of all 
their goods and moneys \Yhatsocver, to the clothes upon thl'ir backs. That two 11irhts after, the Examinant 
and all the said robbt·d people for safety of their lives gott away in a boate for Scotland, and further he saith not. 

ll. Coote. R1c11. BRA~IER, ~bror. 
[\\'e arc now almost satisfied that the much-worn, unnamed armorial stone in L1yde churchyard (see 

vol. v., p. 42), which we were forn1t·rly unable to designate, marks the rt:sting-placc of Stewart of Red Bay 
Castle.-EI>ITOR.] 
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of one son, Jan1es, and two daughters, Rose and Jane. Rose 1narried 
Alexander l\.Iac.Allister, and Jane beca1ne the wife of J an1es l\ilacCook. 
Besides Robert Ste\vart's representatives in the 1nale line, his descend­
ants in the fernale line intennarried, in their generations, with the 
fa1nilies of 1\1ac.Allisters, iVIacCook, l\1acI11noyle, Baird, Sheil, Orr, 
Maclv1ullan, l\'1acBride, 1\-lacDowal, J\1acAuley, O'Neill, l\:Iacl-Iendry, 
and 1nany other~. 

3. Alexander Stewart, the third son, resided at Capecastle, also 
in the parish of Ran1oan, and adjoining l\·1aghremore. He left a fan1ily 
of two sons and one ~aughter. T'he daughter, whose na1ne was Rose, 
married John i\1acAulay. Besides his descendants in the n1ale line, 
Alexander's representatives in the female line intern1arried, an1ong 
others, with the families of l\JacA.ulay, Galbraith, i\,IacLoughlin, Boyd, 
Dellet, l\1acl)ouga11, l\iacl(enzie, Bruce, and Dennison. 

·· 4. Not much is knwon as to the descendants of George Ste\vart, 
the fourth son, who left only one daughter, Elizabeth. I-ler daughters 
intermarried with the fa1nilies of I\-lacCorn1ac, 1\ilagee, Hamilton, and 
Orn1sby. 

5. Le,vis, the fifth son, resided in Carey. He left one son, \Yilliam, 
and two <laughters, Rose and Jane. Rose 1narried a per~on nan1ed 
Horan Lee, but \Ve have not any additional inforn1ation as to this 
branch. 

6. Christian, the eldest <laughter of Ninian, n1arried-. Hutchin­
son, of Stranocun1. One of her sons became a distinguished lawyer, 
and accumulated a very large fortune, which he left to be disti·i bu ted 
among his relatives to the fifth degree. 

7. Isabella, the second <laughter, becan1e the wife of 'fhon1as 
Stewart of Esson, in Ran1oan. Her descendants in the female line 
intennarried with the fan1ilies of Campbell, lVIacNeill, Cusack, Lynn, 
Ditty, Lan1ond, Gibson, J\Iac.Aulay, lVIacllhatton, Craig, i\IacCoy, 
\Varri'ock, 1\-IacGarney, Scally, l\tacI1n1oyle, Steele, Hill, l)unkin, 
Macllroy, Boyd, i\Iontgon1ery, :\IacKee1nan, IVIacCurdy, i\Iac.-\llister., 
Cross, l\,faclean, l\Iacl\Iinn, Searight, Hopkin, Reilly, Dunlop, .-\nder­
son, Thon1pson, lVlacl)onnell, I\IacKeever, Ha1nill, and Boland. 

8. l\1ary, the third daughter, \Vas n1arried to l\Talcoln1 l\'1aconaghy, 
and is represented, at the present <lay, by the l\1Iaconaghys, l\IacX eills, 
1\1acCurcl ys, \Yallaces, Scot ts, S incl airs, l\'1ac.A tyres, ~lac Brides, 
Loughreys, Blacks, l\IacQuaigs, ~IacHenrys, l\1acA.rthurs, Den1pseys, 
Cahills, Boyles, Ca1npbells, Boyds, Kennedys, Lysles, l\Tontgo1nerys, 
l\-1 acEI vins, I-Ia yes, I\·1ac Jlha ttric ks, Rogers, lVIac{\Iullins, ~IacLough-
lins, Kanes, l)owneys, Browns, l~irkpatricks, and I-lulls. · 

9. Grizel, the fourth daughter, heca1ne the wife of Captain .-\ndrew 
Jollie, \vho resided at l)ru1nnakill, Carey, and whose lineal representa-
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tives were Charles and .. Archibald Jollie, of the san1e place. ..fhe 
descenclan ts of .A.ndrew Jollie and G-rizel Stewart in the fern ale line 
interrnarried with the fan1ilies of "fho1npson, Boyd, l\JacCurdy, Cole-
1nan, l-Iunter, Scally, .L\·lacCahan, ]\Iullan, j\IacFarlane, 1\·laclninch, 
]\1acCoy, Laverey, lVIacConnac, l\:Ieghan, O'Reilly, rvlac.Aleese, l\Iac­
Intyrc, Kelly, ~i!acAulay, Sharpe, l\:Iaclviichael and I(ane. 

10. Jane, the fifth daughter, n1arried Daniel I•'rizel, and left three 
daughters, Jane, I\ia1:y, and Catherine, ,vho beca1ne the ,vives of 
Rodger l\JacGilclowney, John 1\IacCaw, and \Villian1 '"fhornpson. 
Their descendants in the fen1ale line in tennarried ,vi th the fan1 ilics of 
l\1acBride, Brown, Duffin, l\1acl\1ullan, ~agan, l\JacKendry, Farrier, 
,vilson, FI all, l\Iacil vennah, rviacCorn1.ac, Ferguson, \Vhi tefort, l)ollan, 
Gillespie, Hynes, l\lacCoy, O'l\Iurry, O'Guillian, ~ilartin, Loughan, 
1-Iunter, ~IacCurdy, Dougall, ~IacAllister, and l\1acNcill. 

11. }\lice, the sixth daughter, 1narriecl 1\'Iajor .Aiexander I\IacAulay, 
of Glenville, near Cushendall, and left one son, Alexander, and one 
daughter, .A.lice. .A.lexander's daughter, l\1Iary, became the wife of 
John Cuppage, and left six daughters: viz., Sarah, Alice, l\-largaret, 
Elizabeth, l\.lary, and another whose nan1e is unkno\vn. Sarah n1arried 
the Rev. J an1es l\Ioore, and left eight children: viz., Alexander, J a n1~s, 
Mary, .l\dan1, Robert, Charles, Hugh, and Richard. .Alice Cuppage 
married the Rev. Lindsay Hall, and left seven children: viz., I\Iary, 
Jane, \Yalter, .Alice, Leonora, Sarah, and John. l\.fargaret Cupp.age 
married Surgeon \Villia1n Douglas, and left eleven children: viz., 
1\1ary) Jane, John, ~Iargaretta, Ja111es, Leonora I A.datn, rfhon1as, 
Anna, \Yi1lia1n Sharn1an, and Catherine l\Iildred. E]izabeth Cuppage 
married Surgeon lVIacCurdy, and left five children: viz., John, Letitia, 
Stephen, 1\Jary, and \Villia1n. ~Jary Cuppage n1arried a gentleman 
na1ned Cranston, and left one <laughter, Sarah, \vho becan1e the ,vife 
of Alex. Ternpleton. rfhe sixth 1'-liss Cuppage n1arried John Greer, 
and left four 'children: viz., George, John, .Alexander, and Sarah ~Iildred. 

12. Rose Stewart, the seven th daughter of Ninian, n1arried Neal 
l\1acN eill, of Cushendun, and left two sons, John and Lachlan. I-Ier 
descendants in the fcn1ale line intennarried with the farnilies of Lee 
Bellinghan1, Stewart of R.ed Bay, ])ru1ngold) l\Iontgornery, and 111any 
others. 1 

rfhe foregoing list is curious in one respect, as sho,:ving what a vast 
nun1ber of farnilies are descended in the fetnale line to the fifth genera­
tion, fron1 J arnes Stewart, the first settler in Ballin toy. It proves to 
us si1nply enough the truth of the proposition that all n1en, high and 
low, rich and poor, are "of one blood," or, what, perhaps, is n1ore diffi­
ct~lt to believe, that every peasant in the land descends, 1nore or less 

1 List of Cla :· m m:ts to tl:t II utch i n.ro,: Btl[ lit.rt. 
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remotely, fro111 princely ancestors. 'fake the hun1 bl est dweller on the 
Antri1n coast, for example; and whether he be a l\lacBride or l\Iegaghey, 
a Shiel or Scall~r, a iv1uJlan or ~lacConnac, we can trace his descent 
fron1 J arnes Ste,vart, the first settler of the nan1e in Ballin toy, and fron1 

. him to John Stewart, the first Sheriff of Bute. Fro1n this point we 
can easily proceed to den1onstrate that the ancestors of l\1ullan or 
Megaghey aforesaid were kings of Scotland and 1nonarchs of lrela.nd, 
for thus n1ay the several links of the genealogical chain be put to­
gether :-John Stewart, Sheriff of Bute, fro1n w hon1 our .An trirn peasant 
is descended, was the son of Robert II., of Scotland, the son of ~Iargery 
Bruce, daugh~er of Isabella, daughter of David II., son of Prince Henry, 
son of David I., son of rvialcohn III., son of I)uncan, son of Beatrice, 
daughter of J\1alcoln1 II., son of I(enneth II., son of lVIalcoltn I., son of 
Donnell, son of Constantine II., son of Kenneth I., son of A.lpin, 
son of Eachaidh II., or Achaius, son of r\odh Finn, son of Eachaidh I., 
son Domhangard II., son of Dornhnall Breac, son of Eachaidh Buidhe, 
son of Aidan, son of Gauran, son of J)on1hangard I., son of Fergus 
Ivlor Mac Earca, of Dalriada, in i\ntri1n, who fourided the Scottish 
monarchy in North Britain, about the year 506. Fron1 this prince the 
fa111ily line runs on through Cairbre Riada and Colla Huaish until it 
reaches Herenion, who was the first king of the Scoti in Ireland, and 
who reigned about one thousand years before the Christian era. Fron1 
Heren1on, genealogists endeavour to trace the line up to Noah and 
Ada1n, and although they 1nay not be able to do so very satisfactorily, 
yet we know to Adan1 it n1ust extend, for in the ,vords of an ancient 
Irish historical tale, "This .A.dan1 is the certain universal head \\"hich 
connects every genealogical branch, and the only beautiful wide branch­
ing trunk in every genealogy, and the genuine ancient founder and 
basis of every ra1nifying tribe, and the excellent solid stock of branching 
sides, in which unite and n1eet all the genealogical ra1nifications of the 
peoples, fa1nilies, and tribes of the earth, which have been, or will be, 
born, fron1 the first creation of the universe and fonnation of the 

- ele1nents, and of the nine orders of heaven, down to that notable daY of 
the general judgtnent, when the truth of the sentence of the redee1ning 
judge, passed upon then1 all, shall be seen proved." 1 

Archibald Stewart was succeeded by his son, nan1ed also Archibald. 
Of the latter, not rnuch is known beyond the facts that he was an 
influential country gentlen1an, and for a tin1e enjoyed the distinction 
of being a n1e111 ber of Parlian1cn t. In 1662, a dispu tc arose between 
hi111 and Dr. Ralph King, also a 111e1nber of the Irish House of Cornn1ons, 
respecting the possession of certain lands situated in the barony of 
Carey, and in the -~Island of Raghery. l)r. l(ing had been regularly 

l Hr.Ult of .l/(l_,:lzR,Jtl:, (fDun,,\·an's Tcansbtit>n, I'· ~1'.J. 
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receiving the rents of these lands, through his agent, \\'illian1 l\.1acKer­
rell,1 of Ballycastle; but Stewart was able to procure an order from the 
House of Lords, restraining the agent from collecting any rents in 
future fro1n the lands, and prohibiting hin1 from handing over to 
Dr. King any sums that had already been received. l)r. I(ing there­
upon petitioned the House of Co1nn1ons, the 1ne1nbers of which felt 
indignant that Stewart had appealed to the Lords, in a case wherein 
another rne1nber of their I-louse was concerned. I'he Co1nn1ons, after 
due debate and consideration, "ordered, that ivlajor Goodwin, with as 
tnany of the n1en1bers as please to accon1pany hin1, do repair to the 
House of Lords at their next sitting, and acquaint their Lordships 
with the vote which passed this day (6 1\1 ay, 1662) in this House upon 
the petition of Dr. R.alph I(ing, one of the n1e1nbers thereof, for, and 
concerning the proceedings of Archibald Stewart, Esq., another of the 
n1e1nbers of this I-louse, in obstructing the said l)r. I{ing fro1n receiving 
his rents in the barony of Carey, and Island of R.aghlins, in the county 
of Antrin1, upon pretence of orders frorn their Lordships, ~nd the said 
~1ajor Goodwin is likewise to declare unto their Lordships the grounds 
and reasons which n1oved this I-louse to n1ake the said order, and 
thereupon to desire their Lordships, in case their Lordships have given 
any orders, either for sequestering the rcn ts belonging to the !:>aid 
Dr. I(ing, in the barony and island aforesaid, or have done any other 
thing that cloth, or may, hinder or retard \Villiarn 1\-Iacl(errell, agent to 
Dr. l(ing, fron1 receiving the rents and profits issuing out of said lands, 
belong;ng unto said Dr. I(ing, that the said orders 1nay be recalled and 
revoked; that. so the privileges of the I-louse in general, and of their 
said men1ber in particular, 1nay be preserved free and inviolable." 
It would appear that Stewart at once sub1nitted to the decision o ~ the 
House, for, on the 3rd June, we find the following order: "\Yhereas, 
Archibald' Ste,vart, Esq., a 111en1ber o this I-louse, hath by his pron1ise 
publickly engaged, not to interrupt, directly or indirectly, the agent 
or agents of Dr. R'alph K~ing, a n1ember likewise of this House, in 
demanding, collecting, receiving and paying over unto the said Dr. 
I(ing, the rents and profits of such lands, in the barony of Carey, and 
Island of l{aghlins, as do belong unto, and are in the possession of, 
the aid Dr. King, in his own proper right; and that he will this day, 
by a letter under his hand, signify as n1t1ch unto the country, that so 
all lets and i1npedin1ents, which obstruct the said Dr. King's receiving 

1 \Vm. !\focKcrrcll, or l\facCarrc,11, was the representative of a very old and once powerful familr, the 
Ua Cairil, who \,.,ac princes in Uladh, :i.11L! whose :i.ncicnt resid<'nces were probably in the <.;Icn extending 
between Ballrc:istlc and Armor, on the north-western side of K.11ocklayJ. The sites of :1t lc:ist two such 
princely resi<lcnc1:s mar still he tr:H't•d. The power of the l 1a Cairil princes was broken by the t·ltonians, on 
the field of Ardag!i, in R:imnan, where :i. great battle w:is fought in the year 1097. The :\bcC:i.rrolls from 
that period graJu:illr s::rnk, throu)-!h the \":tfiClllS stagc:1 of family decay, until in the scn:nt1.·clllh century their 
head or reprt·st·ntatiYe onlr occupit·d the p0siti,111 c,i a l.inJ :i.i::('nt. Their burial place w:1s R:inw:in, where a 
tombstone recorded the Je:ith ,1f :1 \\"illi:1m :-.LicC:1rri)ll in 15K(L [This stone, \\·c han: bec.:n informed, had 
armorial bearings, but is bt·licvcJ w ht· burit•<l, and cannot now he tran:d.-EnnoR.] 
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his rents, n1ay be rernoved; it is ordered, that the n1essage, forn1erly 
appointed by the I-Iouse to be sent up to the Lords, concerning the 
difference between both the said parties, be no further proceeded in." 
In 1665, there is record in the Co1nmons' Journals of a somewhat 
similar attempt by the san1e gentlen1an against another 1ne1nber of 
Parliament. Under date 10th of February, ,ve have the follo\ving: 
"Upon consideration had of the petition of Peter Beaghan, a 1nen1ber 
of this House, con1plaining against Archibald Stewart of Ballyrnacfin, 
parish of Billy, and \Villian1 Boyd of Carnegullagh (now Carncullagh), 
for distraining petitioner's tenants without just cause, upon the quarter­
land of Islandtickarcl, three quarters of l\1oycregtnore, and three 
quarters of Lisnagall (Lisnagatt?), in the County of Antrin1, it is 
ordered upon question, that the said Archibald Stewart and \Villia1n 
Boyd shail be su1nn1oned by· the Serjeant at Arms forthwith to appear 
before the I-louse and answer the contents of the said petition." 1'his 
affair probably tern1inated as the last had done, by Ste,vart ,vith­
drawing his clain1, of whatever nature it n1ay have been, on the lands 
above na1ned, as we find no further reference to the question in the 
Commons' Journals. 

Of Stewart's children only one daughter, Bernella or Bernarda, 
lived to inherit the family property. 1'his lady ,vas n1arried, about 
the year 1650, to her kinsman, J an1es Stewart,. son of John Ste,vart, 
of Straidh, in the parish of Ballintoy. In 1664 her husband inherited 
the estates of his cousin, Ninian Stewart, of Kilcathan or Kilchattan, 
in the Island of Bute. These estates consisted of five n1arklands of 
Kilcathann1ore, three n1arklands of l(ilcathanbeg, three marklands 
of Langlelorid, twenty-shilling lands of Langilkechad, two marklands of 
Dungdill, or Dunzull, three n1arklands of l(ilda vanane, the £5 lands 
of Ballinkaillie and Biackhouse, of old called the £5 lands of the Forest 
to Bute, together with the fan1ily n1ansion of I(ilcathan, so beautifully 
situated on the Bay of the sa1ne na1ne. These properties were probably 
sold by J a1nes Stewart, of Ballin toy, soon after he came into possession 
of the1n,_ as we do not find his nan1e recorded as o\vning estates in Bute 
after the year 1664.1 

1 The descendants of John Stewart, the first sheriff. spread thcm~elve;i over the entire island of Bute, 
occupying it.s principal rcsiJcnces, and owning almost all its bn<lc<l property at the commencement of the 
~evcntcenth century. Thus, we find that in the p:1rish of Kin~~rath, which includes the southern division of the 
island, the lands of Killislou?h, or Kellough, Ct·rrecroy. Ambrismorc, K.illchatt:in, or Killcath:lll, Langill, 
Brigadill, Drumcly, Asco,L~, Killtlavanan, (;ilb..:h:inc, and Dunz.1111, were held by members of this family, 
between the years 1474 and ll>37. In like manner, thc lands throughout Rothcsay, the northern divi5ion of 
Bute, known as the F1)rt·st lhllinkaillie, Bl:tckhouse, Killdnnanan, Kilmorc, L:u~:abract:1nc, Cunningburgh, 
}hrronc, Bclldonc, Arlln11·lt'ish, Cn·cn:rn, K.erslag, I>u11:illirJ, Kilmich:u:l, L:iri..:t·:.nt·, lhrmon:, ()ueant>, 
Ardscalpsy, Drumacloy, Killquhoulik, ~\gh:irvolik, together with the lands occupied br the l\lill anJ Ca11tle of 
Rothcsay, were in possession of v.iriuus families uf Stewarts (all c.!c.:s..:cnJcd frnt11 thc tirst sheriff) between the 
years 1·180 and 16(,0. The above h11Js were all held by their occupants as gr:ints from the crown. Sec 
Originn Paroclziales Scotia/, P..1rishes or Kingrath a11J Rothcs:.iy. 
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Bernarda Stewart ,vas buried inside the Church of Ballintoy. On 
a red freestone slab beneath the east window, in the chancel, is the 
following simple inscription: 

Under this stone 
Bernarda Stewart 
doth ly who pangfull 
Death overcame 
victoriously. 

1663. 

Close beside this stone is another red freestone slab covering the 
grave of a child nan1ed ~icholas Ste,vart, ,vho ,vas, no doubt, her son. 
On this latter is the following inscription: 

Here Hes Nicholas 
Stewart who 
departed this life 
the X of September 

1667. 
When tender plants 
Such as this childe, 
By nature comely, 
Courteous, milde, 
Have, christian-like 
Out-run their race, 
Not earth but heaven 
Have for their place; 
Let us behinde 
Implore his grace 
That quickly we 
May see his face. 1 

.Among some papers found in an old chest at Balljntoy Castle, after 
the estate had passed into the hands of Dr. Fullerton, ,vas the follo\ving 
list, containing a vast nun1ber of denorninational narnes on the .An trim 
propertr. This document, which is very neatly \vritten on one folio 
sheet, was drawn up originally to facilitate the collection of certain 
"Lapsed ~-Ionies" intended to liquidate the im1nense debts inurred by 
the second Earl of .. \ntri111, who was created a 1larquis in 1643. The 
portion of this list here given includes all the names of p!aces returned 
fron1 the baronies of Dunluce and Carey. Readers throughout these 
districts will be able to compare, each in his own locality, the names of 
sub-divisions of land and the nun1ber of arable acres, two hundred 
years ago, with the modern nan1es and the acreage of the present day. 
\Yhen the .Antrim estates were forfeited in the time of the Common-

1 The armorial 6tones of Ballintor will shortly be E?inn in the journal.-Eo1T0R. 
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·wealth, Lord Ivlassereene had got hold of the barony of Dunluce 
against which he had laid large claims, which, indeed, were allowed, or 
admitted, in the celebrated Act of Settle1nent of 1662. By that .. --\ct 
the Con1n1issioners were required to cause the King's letters to be put 
into speedy execution "for the full satisfaction of the said Lord 1Iassa­
rene to all intents and purposes; which being done, your are then to 
cause the said estate whereof the said Lord ~1assarene is seized in the 
barony aforesaid, to be delivered to Daniel O'Neale, groom of our bed­
chamber, in satisfaction for an incumbrance of a much greater value 
wherewith the barony of Dunluce, set out to the adventurers, stands 
charged for the behoof of the said Daniel O'Neale.''1 

The same Act of Settle1nent contains the following paragraph, 
explanatory of certain i1nportant arrangements respecting the barony 
of Carey: "And be it enacted by the authority of this present Parlia­
ment, that one grant or lease made by Randal now l\1arquess of .. --\ntrim, 
on or about the 21st of November, 1637, of the barony of Carey, the 
lordship of Bally Castle, and the island of Rachlins, and all his lands 
and hereditaments within the said barony, lordship, and island, or 
any of them, unto .A.lexander l\fac Donnell, John l\loore, .,Archibald 
Stewart, and John Trayleman, for ninety nine years, from l\.Iichaelmas 
1637, which lease was made in trust in payment of and co·unter-security 
against his debts, shall be and remain of the like effect and force in la\v, 
and no other, as the same was before the making of this .Act; anything 
in this Act before contained to the contrary not,vithstanding. ..And 
_ that the said estate and term of years of and in the said demised prem­
ises shall be and is hereby transferred fro1n the aforesaid lessees unto 
and _vested and settled in 1\.-iartin Noel, Esq., Thomas Carleton, citizen 
and_ mercer of London, and John Bradbone, of the ~liddle Temple, 
London, gentleman, who shall hold and enjoy the said demised pren1isses 
from henceforth, for and during such interest as they legally have by 
the said lease, upon this trust reposed in them, that they, their executors 
and administrators, shall fron1 time to time, dispose and i1nploy such 
monies as they shall raise or receive by or out of the said p-remisses for 
and towards the satisfaction and payment of all such debts of the said 
l\1arquess as are yet unpaid, and vlere in tended by the said lease of 
ninety-nine years to be secured; and that all and every person and 
persons no\v seized or possessed of any part of the premisses, and 

1 Daniel or Donnell O'~ei!l was son of Con O'Neill, of Castlerc.-ai:h. whose fomily possessions were dis­
tributed among the i\fonti::omcries of the Ards. the: Hamilrons of Ki!Ii!eagh, the Hills of Stranmii!is, and 
others. The son of Con tr:,.;eill found favour at the English Court, and was thus. in some measure, compen­
sated for the loss of his ancestral estates. He dic:d in )663, and on his tomb. in Broughton :\blherbc Church, 
is the following inscription: "Here lies the hoJy of :.\Ir. Daniel O'.'.\'.c:ale, who descended fro:n that ~rear, 
honourable, and ancient family of the O'=--:c:tles of lrcbnJ, to wli0m he added r.cw lustre b:· his O\\'n merits, 
being rew:1rdcd for his cour:1ge anJ loplty in tht· ci\·il wars, unJr.:r King Charh-s the First anJ Ch:,rks the 
Second, with the offices of l\)sf.mastt'.r-Ccnnal of En).!i.:rnd. Scotia nd, .1 nJ I n:lan<l, :\faster of tbt: Powder, and 
Groom of his :\lajt·sty's BcJ Ch:1mber. Ile w:1s rnarric:J to the Right l·lonourablc Katherine Countesse of 
Chesterfield, who erectt·d him this monument ;1s one of the last m:irkc:s of her kin<lne5se, to show her .:irfection 
longer than her weak breath wuulJ st·n·e to exprt·s_s it." 
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reprizable by the rules of the declaration and instructions and this 
present act, shall be forthwith reprized for so much as shall be adjudged 
from them by virtue of the said lease." 

.rviartin Neoll, n1entioned above, ,vas a London scrivener, who had 
accon11nodatecl Lord Antrin1 with the loan of 1noney to a large extent. 
Noell was knighted in 1663, and died of the plague, on the 29th of 
Septe1nber, 1665. The list found at Ballin toy Castle refers to hirn as 
Sir Martin Noell, an4 it n1ust, therefore, have been drawn up in the 
interval between those two years, probably in 1663.1 Charles II. \vas 
observed to evince 1nore than a com1non degree of anxiety to have the 
Marquess of An tri1n restored and his estates relieved as n1uch as possible 
from all clai1nants against it. It \Vas whispered among his own cour­
tiers that i\ntrin1 had led the King to believe the whole vast property 
would be bequeathed by him, in due ti1ne, to a lady \vho was E aid to 
be 11early connected with the royal· fan1iiy. rfhe lVIarquess \Vas often 
en1ployed, to be sure, "in setting springes to catch woodcocks," and 
in this instance he nn1st have felt that his success was at least equal to 
his ingenuity. The affair is thus noticed by Pepys in his "Diary," 
under date February 22, 1663-64: "The King ha th done· hin1self all 
imaginable wrong in the business of my lord An tri1n, in Ireland, ,vho, 
though he was the head of rebels, yet he ( the J(ing) by his letters o,vns 
to have acted by his (the King's) father's and n1other's and his cotn­
missions; but it see1ns the truth is, he (the n1arquess) hath obliged 
(bound) himself, upon the clearing of his estate, to settle it upon a 
daughter of the Queen-1\Iother's, by 111y Lord Jermyn, I suppose, in 
marriage, be it to whon1 the Queen pleases; \vhich is a sad story." 

The folJo,ving explanatory note is appended by the co1npiler of 
this curious and valuable docun1en t: 

"Collums in Books of the Lapsed Ivionr containe, first ye Denominations, secondly the 
numbr of acres, and thirdly ye Snme to be Leavyed. 

"Only observe, that ye Pties. to whom ye sd. Lapsed l'viony is parable, having volun­
tarily abated three thousand pounds out of the grosse sume of 27,0001., which is a ninth 
part of the sd. grosse sume, a ninth part is to be deducted our of each particular sume, the 
apportionment being made for 27,0001., and then the remaining eight pares are to be 
divided into three parts, one third of which being only to be paid at t,vo Gales (vizt. i\1:iy 
and Allsaints 1699) to the Earl ofOrrery, ye other two persons to whom sd. Lapsed i\.Joncr 
is payable, not having ret applied for their shares. But Note, that if any of the LanJs 
taxed as papist L~nds are now in the hands of protestants by lawful purchase, such lands 
by a particular proviso in his 1\lajcsty's letters, are exempt from the sci. Lapsed ~'Iony." 2 

1 The diary of Samuel Pepys contains one or two curious references to Sir ~-Iartin Noell. .At the 27th of 
Feb., 1663, we have the following: "Sir Martin Nndl told us of the dispute between him as farmer of the 
Additional Dut)-, and the East lnJi:i Company, :che:J:cr calico be iinen or 110; \\ hich he says it is, ha,·i11g been 
ever csteerncJ so; they say it is madt· of cotton woolc, and grows upon trees, not like t1a:c or hemp. Bnt it was 
carried ag.,inst the Company, though they stan<l out ag:iinst thc verdict." 011 the C:th of October, 1605, there 
is the following notice of LaJ:, Noell: "Sir .'.\lartin Not:ll's bJy is dead with grief for the death of her husband; 
but it seems nubo<ly can m:ikc anything of his estate, whether he be dead, worth anything or no, he h;nring 
dealt in so many things, public .1nJ pri\·ate, as nobudy can understand whereabouts his estate is, which is 
the fate of these great dealers at evcrrthing." 

2 The "Lapsed l\foncy" was probaolr allowed to remain uncollected during the interval between 1663 
and 1699. 
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DuNLL"CE BARRO. (BARONY OF DuNLUcE). 

Acres. Sums Ler:ied 

l\loyover .... -....................................... . 430 1 0 03 07 -6 
Ballybragagh .... .- .................................. . 351 2 24 02 05 00 
Ballynegishellanc } ~=:~~1:etsJ~•~m .................................. . 426 2 16 04 IO 00 

Coolebane of the Same ............................... . 233 2 0 
To\\·renagree .... · ................................... . 
Knockgallon 1 qr. of Knell ........................... . 
Carrowgaragh, Do .................................. . 
Corkey .................. • • • • • - • • • · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

246 2 0 02 05 00 
212 0 g} 02 05 00 145 0 
369 2 16 00 18 00 

Logheele Castle ..................................... . 
Ballybradagh 1 qr. of Knell ........................... . 
Tullenknule, Do ................................ : ... . 

623 2 32 01 02 06 
215 0 221 

4 10 0 354 2 16/ 
Tontifenan ......................................... . 190 1 0 
Ballyveely ......................................... . 340 0 8 4 10 0 
Balh·wyanx Knock o Hollit ........................... . 350 2 16 5 17 0 
Ball)·any ........................................... . 354 3 8 3 7 6 
lv~or~y!1agooe ....................................... . 
L1ss1n1sk ........................................... . 

413 0 0 5 8 0 
191 1 24 I ,., 6 ,_ 

Artis and Tobbcrnagoole } .................. : ......... . 
.als Toperagoole 

408 3 4 2 9 6 

Ballina taggart ...................................... . 
Ballereagh ................................... • ..... . 
Drumnafevy and Drumhoulagh ....................... . 
Knockrun1ing ....................................... . 
Shanias ¼ of Bally bough .............................. . 

303 3 8 1.16 0 
321 2 24). 

3 3 0 320 3 8[ 
175 I 8t 6 10 6 268 2 0( 

l\lagherenehory, Do ................................. . 
.i\rteisford .......................................... . 

270 2 o} 5 12 6 330 0 16 
Shelton ............................................ . 400 2 23 2 14 0 
All trinedon ......................................... . 237 3 8 0 13 6 
l3allyknock ......................................... . 485 3 8 3- 7 6 
Ballyloop als Ballylooby ............................. . 300 0 16 2 5 0 
l .. vdrumderge ......... -........................ ; ..... . 
Aghegaddy ~ ........................................ . 

209 0 32 0 18 0 
109 2 16 0 13 6 

ivlagherevan ........................................ . 497 0 0 2 14 0 
Ballvlough ......................................... . 
Bally o l\lac \Villiam ................................. . 

258 0 0 1 7 0 
622 0 32 4 JO 0 

Killraghtis ......................................... . 
},1agh~ryboy ....................................... . 

419 0 32 3 12 0 
132 1 24 l 7 0 

Cannaboy .......................................... . 116 2 16 1 2 6 
K.nocknaf rim ....................................... . 129 0 32 1 7 0 
Lissboy ............................................ . 107 0 32 l 2 6 
Tarnagoe ........................................... . 193 0 16 l 7 0 
Tullegore 3 qrs ...................................... . 
2 qrs. ofTulloge called Cloghan ....................... . 
2 qrs·. of Tulloge cailed Levallymorard ................. . 

196 0 16 
230 I 8' 

75 3 24} 3 12 0 

. Cullinkeale ......................................... . 124 3 24 
Coolerin1on v ....................................... . 
l\1ulbghmo~e ....................................... . 
Cloughcorr ......................................... . 
Ballygobbin ........................................ . 
Stronockun1 ............................... ~ ......... . 

10s 31st 6 15 0 92 I 24; 
90 2 0\ 4 I 0 76 2 OJ 

277 0 0 I 4 9 
Cornecall and Rossgard .............................. . 168 0 32 
Kirkill l qr ................................. -........ . 
') . K. k·11 ... q rs. o t Ir · 1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Gremyhdld. ; ... ~-. · .. ; . ~- .. ; : ........................ . 
Killinraver ......................................... . 

68 3 8 
75 0 32 9 0 0 

351 0 16 
92 0 0 

l\Iillballinacrebegg .................................. . 
Upper Ballmoyl.~,; ................................... . 
Braekogc .......................................... . 

88 2 32 3 7 6 
202 0 16} 5 8 0 133 3 8 
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Lower Ballymoylan ................................. . 
Enogl1 . ............................................ . 
Ballyrobbin ............... , ........................ . 
Ballycubbadall ..................................... . 
Letrim ............................................. . 
Ffarron Leassary .................................... . 
Dunvarney ......................................... . 
l\t1 agacys als N egacy ................................. . 
Conagher .......................................... . 
Ballynacreemore .................................... . 
Draughindulke ......... · ............................ . 
Gregi tom pane ...................................... . 
Glanilough ......................................... . 
Ballynemough Carninany and Tarareagh ......... · ...... . 
Athoubuy ................................. : ........ . 
S . k . cm) coc .......................................... . 
The D~mesne of Glebe of Ballynemonagh ............... . 
Cornanine and Lork ................................. . 
Carn tull.1gh ........................................ . 
Cooledufle ......................................... . 
BnliynacotTce ....................................... . 
Cassdall als Glassdall ................................ . 
Drumnehegligh ..................................... . 
Cabrine ............................................ . 
Ard1nalphi11• ........................................ . 
Ardigoran .......................................... . 
'I' 11 · . oa 1g1n ........................................••.. 
1'aghifadd .......................................... . 
Coolcresheskin ...................................... . 
Ballyvatagh ........................................ . 
1'aghy . ............................................ . 
Balldonelly ......................................... . 
Scacon ............................................. . 
Kihnovle ........................................... . 
Sallyv;1tt Qur ....................................... . 
Dra1n1nace ......................................... . 
Coldagh als Collagh ................................. . 
Carvallagh .......................................... . 
¼ of IJallroge ........................................ . 
Cavallaght ....... ·: . ................................ . 
Rosske .~ ........................................... . 
Utall .............................................. . 
Killmovle .......................................... . 
Corvaliv and Crossregh .............................. . 
Ballvon~kin and Ball~\·illin ........................... . 
Clo~ghoin .......................................... . 
Tobbcrdernan ! Towne .............................. . 
]Jortrush ........................................... . 
Cloghoire and part of Spittle Land ..................... . 
Ballylough ¾ and halfe ............................... . 
Other pt Ballylough ................................. . 
Bunankn ½Towne .................................. . 
IJallyboggy ......................................... . 
Ballin tihbert ....................................... . 
1\Iore of the same ................................... . 
Bally home½ TO\vne ................................. . 
Ballykcclc .......................................... . 
Ball,·1nulecrc ....................................... . 
Ball)·nagarry ....................................... . 
Coolnegore ......................................... . 
l◄'tarret;leassery ..................................... . 
JJrcists l.Jand ........................................ . 
I~c1ke .............................................. . 

Deres 
98 2 16} 

155 3 24 
181 0 0 
180 3 24 
154 3 24 
]08 3 8 
156 3 0 
113 0 0 
96 3 0 

179 2 0 
106 1 24 
165 1 8 
163 1 8 
451 3 24 

71 1 8} 
40 2 32 

1330 I 32 
]20 1 24} 
124 3 8 
87 1 24 

146 2 32 
113 2 32 
136 1 24 

61 0 32) 
90 2 321 

109 2 16 l 
146 I 8J 
66 1 16 
96 0 32 
56 3 24\ 
60 1 16: 
s1 2 o} 

125 0 0 
109 2 0 
65 3 8 

137 2 16 
146 1 8} 
93 1 8 
65 0 16 

372 3 2 
76 J 4 
97 1 24 

113 0 32 
123 2 0 
63 0 16} 
32 1 8 
96 I 16 
66 2 32} 

114 1 24 
304 2 32 
62 0 0 

292 2 o} 
136 2 32 
133 2 32t 
115 2 I6j 
186 3 8 
73 3 24 

112 3 o} 
152 3 8 
96 l 8 

173 3 8} 
141 0 0 
94 3 8 

Sums Levied 

I 16 0 

2 14 0 
2 15 4 
4 I 0 
1 5 11 
2 17 4 
2 17 IO 
1 16 0 
3 12 0 
I 2 6 
2 5 0 
1 16 0 
6 ]5 0 
4 IO 0 

2 14 0 

4 10 0 

l 16 0 
5 8 0 
3 12 0 
1 2 6 

13 10 0 

2 14 0 

3 12 0 

2 14 0 
I 16 0 
1 4 9 

2 14 0 

1 16 0 
1 16 0 
I 11 6 
2 0 6 
2 0 6 
9 ') 3 ,_ 

- 11 .) - 6 

3 12 0 

5 8 0 

5 17 0 
l 19 4 

10 11 0 

3 12 0 

4 1 0 
1 7 0 

9 0 0 

,. 
2 0 :, 

1 13 2 
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Acres. 
Clon tuske. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 87 0 0 
Cloney. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • . . . . . . . . . . 86 3 24 
Tubbcrcoppane and Dunluce Village. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 81 1 8 
Ballysallagh. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 78 0 32 
Port ball intra Y als Port bell. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 66 0 32 
Lissaneduffe .'. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 132 0 0 
Gortnehil-.d1. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 75 ,., 0 
Mullagh1;10re. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 73 2 16 
Creghbanny. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 83 2 32 
Ballyhuntly. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 208 2 01 
Island Carrick t • • • • • • • • • . • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • 107 1 8 f 
Tullycapplc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 97 3 8 
Ballylurgan 4 Qrs ......... _........ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 116 ,., 0 
Parke ..................................... ·. . . . . . . . . 34 1 0 
Ballynarris. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 129 0 24-} 
Ballynass. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 101 1 8 
Ballyloughmore. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 282 3 24 \ 
Ballyloughucg....................................... 141 0 Of 
Glassncrinc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 152 3 0 
Ballynagore......................................... 218 1 8 
Urblerough. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 260 0 0 
Casdede,;·erick. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 124 2 2 
Island Rosse. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 198 1 8 
!\1alledohber. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 50 0 32 
Bally home 1 Qr ....... .'. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 105 2 32 
Carncbore........................................... 128 2 16\ 
!\lahebuy. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 0 OJ 
Ballybistock......................................... 183 2 16 
Carnekogie. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 194 3 8 
Lisscomon. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 199 2 1'6\ 
l\Iahereboy. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 1 8J 
Ballrloskey. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 421 2 8) 
Ballyduffady ...................................... 152 2 16> 
Island \Voagh....................................... 81 0 OJ 
Coole............................................... 51 3 24 
Knock \Yallen. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 138 2 0 
Carnuffe............................................ 104 3 8 
Knockanbuy. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 64 2 0 
Another Pt. of Same. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 63 3 16 
Ballyraghan. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ] 42 2 0) 
Aghnecrossie. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 44 I s J 
Abbadoney and Carnforck. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 59 I St 
Carnecollough . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 368 I 16 j 
Inchgran ....................................... .'.... 102 2 0 
Stroan 2 Qrs......................................... 195 2 0 
Leverrcy ¾- and l. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 146 1 8 
Qur. more thereof. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 56 3 32 
Dromcottagh. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 129 2 0 
Carnefoiek. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 124 0 0 
~1ullaghduffe. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 65 3 0 
Ballynefay. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 154 0 32 
Ballyncfaddy. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 204 0 0 

53196 3 30 

Sr. lv1artin Noell ct als for Paymt of Debts. 
~-Iarquess of Antrim ye Reversion. 

33 

1 17 
1 16 

8 
0 

2 S 0 
1 8 8 
2 2 2 
2 5 0 
2 0 6 
1 2 6 
1 16 0 

5 8 
l •7 
I 16 
0 13 

0 

0 
0 
0 

7 2 0 

2 17 4 

I 1 1 I 
I 13 2 
3 7 6 
I 17 9 
1 17 9 
0 19 8 
1 16 0 

1 16 0 

1 3 6 
1 16 0 

3 7 6 

8 2 0 

1 2 6 
2 14 0 
1 11 6 
I 7 0 
1 2 6 

3 3 0 

10 13 9 

2 5 0 
4 10 0 
1 16 0 
0 II 3 
1 7 0 
1 7 0 
0 13 0 
1 7 0 
2 5 0 

753 10 3 

1 CARRl0-RrAn,,.-This incluJes the vast isolated rock, a little way off the coast, opposite the hill nf 
Knocksoghy, anJ has been iiwariahly but absurdly writtt:n in the Guide Books, Carrick-a-RtJt; and still 
more absurdlr interprett•cl the "Rock-in-thc-Ro:1d'': mc:111ing-, as they say, the rnck in the ro:iJ of the s:dnhHl 
when journcriug wcstw;1rd ti) the net at L:1rrybawn. But the s:dmon cvidcntir do th•t rc;!ard the rnc-k in 
the light of an 011struc-tiou; fur, un the contr:1ry, tht'y ddight to linger arounJ it as they p:iss. Carrig-Riacla 
w:is the n:1me origin:dly c:mpl,>yeJ to distinguish it as tlit Rock most rcm:1.rk:1blc in D.dri:1J:1; or it m:1r have 
bct·n at first so n:11ncJ as bt·ing in some way associ:1tc:J with the c;1rccr of C.:irlicry RiaJ:1, the fuunJer oi Prin­
cip:ility. 
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CARRE BARRO. (BARONY OF C.-\REY). 

Drun1kett .......................................... . 
Drutncomon ........................................ . 
Crossali ter ......................................... . 
Bum1nemelloge ..................................... . 
Crisarch ........................................... . 
Glanackerine ............................... .- ....... . 
Dunards ¼ and ½ ................•.......•...•.•.....• 
Ballyvoy ½ Towne .............................•...... 
Ballyreagh ½ Towne ..... : ........................... . 
Bunargee ½ T O\vne .................................. . 
Acruell ......................................... • • • • 
Ballynagard called Drumnekelly ...................... . 
Bunaglen .......................................... . 
Duncarbett ..................................... • • . -
Creggbane als Bruaghmore ........................... . 
Ffarne mack allister ................................. . 
Coolenagappage 1 Qr ................................ . 
Dov,ne 1 Qr ........................................ . 
l\I ullcndugane ................................... , .. . 
Part of Roddings I Qr ............................... . 
Topland of Same ................................. • .. • 
Ballypatrick called Burmeine 1 Qur .................... . 
Other Qur. called ~laghercloughy ..................... . 
Ballynestraide ............................ • • • • • • · • • · · 
Ballylcrmine 1 Qur .................................. . 
BaJlyclohagh and Corragh 1 Qur ...................... . 
Ardimony 1 Qur ................................... ; . 
Lough an l Qur ..................................... . 
Ten Acres of Ramacadine ............................ . 
Twenty Acres of Farenmac I\1allen .................... . 
Torre 2 Qurs ......................... - • • • • • • • • • · · · · · 
Ballycoran ......................................... • 
Turmacroghane 1 Towne ............................. . 
l\1aghera Temple 1 Towne ............................ . 
The Parcell of Lossett ............................... -. 
Ballynagare other Qur ............................... . 
Ballyonan 1 Qur .. ·· .................................. . 
Cullkeine 1 Qur ..................................... . 
1\.1oyergitt ...................................... • • • • • 
Torrilosscan 1 Qur .................................. . 
!\1oyergitt other Qur ................................. . 
Corvally ........................................... . 
Ardmor One Parcell ................................. . 
A th leake ........................................... . 
Kilbrobbert ........................................ . 
Ballyvolly ....................................... · .. - . 
Dru1-i1nenine ........................................ • 
Drumholly ......................................... . 
T o,vzare ........................................... . 
Ballynalagge 1 Qur .................................. . 
Other Qur. called Tobberbally ........................ . 
l\Iagherimore 1 Qur ................................. . 
Drum \Yilliam 1 Qur ................................ . 
Carnsa1nson 1 Qur .................................. . 
Carncullagh 1 Qur ................................... . 
Killkeyne als I'\l yerbane 1 Qur ........................ . 
Carnen1onc I Qt1r ................................... . 
Clogdumnory 1 Qur ................................. . 
Carncbane 1 Qur .................................... . 

47 3 
44 I 
27 1 

191 I 
146 0 
140 I 
374 0 
207 0 
227 0 

99 3 
16 I 

101 0 
203 0 
198 0 
237 0 

14 I 
96 2 

105 0 
i06 2 
31 2 
83 2 
-5 ') I -

164 3 
159 2 
156 2 
318 3 
198 1 
190 2 
77 0 
67 0 

337 0 
319 0 
152 3 
87 0 

121 3 
91 0 
61 0 

126 0 
174 0 
106 0 
220 0 
170 0 
39 0 

350 0 
86 0 

270 0 
165 0 
178 0 
174 0 
113 0 
43 0 

138 0 
52 2 
51 1 

138 0 
89 0 

8 () 
106 0 

'"'O..., I .:.. 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0) 
O} 
OJ 
O) 

g~ 
gJ 
0\ 
Of 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

g} 
0) 

gj 
0) 

gJ 
0 
0 

g} 

~} 
O't 
Of 
0) 
O} 
OJ 
0) 

g}" 
0 
0\ 
Of 
0 

10 19 0 

I 4 0 
2 9 6 
2 17 0 
3 3 0 
0 13 6 
0 ~ 5 J 

l 1 4 

5 7 5 

6 0 4 

3 6 0 

2 5 0 

9 19 o. 

4 4 5 

6 2 5 

1 16 0 

4 19 0 

1 10 11 
I 10 11 

2 17 0 

4 16 11 

3 12 0 

5 17 7 

6 19 0 

0 8 5 

3 15 0 

3 7 0 



The Steivarts of Ba/lintoy 

A.C'reS. 
Drumargee ......................................... . 
Killgregg ........................................... . 
.l\lt1na1nine ......................................... . 

58 0 

8\ 216 0 
55 0 

Hol'ne ............................................. . 
Tenements of Ballvcastle ............................. . 
The Castle Parke.' .................................. . 

7 0 

8J 3 0 
6 1 

Drumsisske ........................................ . 
l.ealand ............................................ . 
Gortetrun1ine ....................................... . 
Carnduffe 1 Towne .................................. . 
¾ of Novilly called Gortmadre ......................... . 
Clare and Carncony ................................. . 
Portbritis .......................................... . 
Tunoshiss Concealed Land ........................... . 
Broon1 'J'o,vne ...................................... . 
Cape Castle ........................................ . 

85 0 
g} 43 0 

56 0 
82 2 O)_ 
55 0 OJ 

231 0 
81 15 0 

9 0 

8{ 460 0 
106 0 

Cloghcorre 1 Qur .................................... . 
Ra thmonea Parcell .................................. . 

3.38 0 OJ 
26 3 0 

Legeorre 1 Qur ................. · ..................... . 
Braughga1non ...................................... . 
Glassaghie 2 Qur .................................... . 

184 1 01 
119 0 OJ 
171 3 0 

Magherenhcre 1 Qur .... : ............................ . 139 1 0 
~'1aghere Castle 1 Qur ............................... . 
Crogcnie 1 Qur ..................................... . 

131 1 0 
92 l 0 

Lemneghmore 1 Qur ................................. . 37- 2 0 
Lemneghbegg 1 Q.ur ................................. . 
Cura.sheskin 1 Qur .................... ~ .............. . 
Ballynoc 1 Qur ..................... • ................ . 
Templeastragh ...................................... . 
Cregglappan ........................................ . 
Creganagh and Knocknagarvin ....................... . 
Ballinlea 1 Qur ..................................... . 
Proluske 1 Qur ...................................... . 

133 3 0 
166 1 OL 
78 3 OJ 
87 2 0 
67 2 0 

104 1 0 
132 2 0 
58 3 0 

1'obbcrkeigh ........................................ . 85 3 0 
Croghmore l Qur ................................... . 78 0 0 
Cregne1naddy ...................................... . 108 0 0 
Ballyeglough Qur ................................... . 171 0 0 
Island tvlacf\llen .................................... . 54 1 0 
Crogh hegg 2 Qurs ................................... . 214 0 0 
l\1oyreighmore 2 Qurs ................................ . 135 3 0 
l\.f oyreigh begg 2 Qurs ................................ . 194 1 0 
L. . 7 {) 1sncgrtnoge .. '<-urs ................................. . 219 0 0 
Brunegree 1 Qur .................................... . 
Lissbrenine Grogh ................................... . 

60 3 0 
140 0 0 

Shanvally 1 Townelan<l .............................. . 577 0 0 
Carnehcirke 2 Qurs .................................. . 189 2 0 
Ballymoge l Qur ..................................... · 
Ardoughtragh 1 Qur ................................. . 
Stradkillin ......................................... . 

138 0 g} 186 0 
113 0 0 

1\1aghereboy ........................................ . 64 0 0 
Donaghn1ore ........ ~ .................... ; ......... . 91 3 0) 
Ballylency ......................................... . 
Carnsidc 1 Qur ..................................... . 
Ardctragh .......................................... . 
Lisscrlassc 1 Qur .................................... . 

48 3 

gJ 9- .., :, -
108 0 
112 3 0 

1,~1ndo,v 1 Qur ...................................... . 121 0 0 
Clogher Towndand .................................. . 288 0 0 
Casslancgree 1 Qur .................................. . 134 2 O'l 
Killcubhin 1 Qur .................................... . - ") .., 

I - ... Of 
Ballyalaghty I Qur .................................. . 68 3 0 
Ballyntoy .......................................... . 456 0 0 
Ballintay lor ........................................ . 56 2 0 
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Sums Levied. 

16 8 0 

l 7 0 

11 16 0 

0 3 1 

1 7 0 

3 3 0 

3 15 5 
2 6 8 
2 5. 0 
1 7 0 
2 5 0 
2 0 6 

4 l 0 

1 13 'l ... 
1 'l 6 -
4 10 {) 

3 19 11 
1 7 0 
2 () 6 
1 16 0 
2 0 0 
4 13 4 
1 8 8 
3 15 5 
4 19 0 
3 6 5 
3 19 11 
1 19 11 
3 19 9 
0 9 0 
3 19 6 

5 II 4 

1 16 0 
3 7 6 

5 15 0 

'1 0 9 ., 
2 0 6 
3 12 0 

5 11 4 

2 0 6 
2 5 0 
1 7 0 
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l\1ullaghduffe ....................................... . 
Tynene Robart ..................................... . 
Ballany 1 Qur ...................................... . 
Acernagh I Qur ..................................... . 
Killault 1 Towne Land ............................... . 
Ballyneagh I Towne Land ............................ . 
Ballyvergan 1 Towne Land ........................... . 
Killpatrick I T0wnc Land ....... • ..................... . 
Ballygill 1 Town Land ............................... . 
Ballykerry ½ Townland .............................. . 
Kea,vran1er ........................................ . 
Parcel of 1\-fesson .................................... . 
Tulloyhore .......................................... . 
Gortanillagh ........................................ . 
Fincrcagh als Towaghreagh ........................... . 
Crumogt 1 Qur ....................... : ............. . 
Altrasagh I Qur ..................................... . 
Killeroe ½ Tov,rn Land ............................... . 
Dimane ............................................ . 
K.nockans .......................................... . 
rviimadoy I Qur ..................................... . 
Strnangallm.ore ..................................... . 
Braum als Brecme ................................... . 
Clcgine ............................................ . 
Bunshamlong and Tulloughpatrick .................... . 
Killmcon1eogc ...................................... . 
Killetragh }--;fowne .. : ............................... . 
Kiltillutragh ........................................ . 
Killincole ....................................... • • • • 
Island Carde 1 Qur .................................. . 
l\1onester ½Town ................................... . 
Lissnegett ¼ of l\loncster ............................. . 
Carnekeene ..................................... • • • ·· 
Lissmarerty 1 Qur ................................... . 
!vlassess I Qur ...................................... . 
Carkcloug:h als Carnecloughane ....................... . 
Carnercagh ......................................... . 
Carelolus 1 Qr ...................................... . 

Acres. 
12 1 o

0
} 

135 1 
81 0 Q\ 

92 o of 
173 0 0 
179 0 0 
169 3 0 
294 0 0 
170 0 0 
120 0 0 

18 0 0 
101 0 0 1 

144 J 
0
ol 

264 0 
156 o 

0
o/ 

98 2 
149 2 

0

o
0
J 

323 3 
52 1 

103 0 0 
336 1 O' 
40 3 oj 

204 0 0 
104 0 0 
659 1 0 
167 0 0 
284 0 0 
136 0 0 
121 2 0 
115 0 0 
155 0 O) 
43 o of 

123 o o
0

} 
65 0 

151 2 0 
55 0 0 

173 0 0 
118 0 0 

22636 l 6 

Sums Levied. 

3 16 6 

5 7 0 

83 8 0 

1 2 6 

1 16 0 

1 12 8 
I 2 6 
4 10 0 
1 7 0 
4 10 0 
0 13 6 
1 16 0 
0 18 0 

4 l 0 

5 12 6 

2 17 5 
0 13 6 
2 5 6 
0 14 1 

£311 1 4 

From the foregoing List it \vill be seen that n1any of the present 
names of townlands in fomer ti1nes were not used as such, although 
they were no doubt well kno\vn in connection \vith subdivisions. On 
the other hand, this List exhibits the na1nes of n1any leading divisions 
of land in each neighborhood which are now merely local names, applied 
to sn1all portions of townlands, and, in 1nany instances., to single farms. 
The parish of Ran1oan, in this respect, n1ay be taken as a fair illustration 
of the whole district. In 1663, the names .A.ghaleck, Ardagh, Bally­
durneen, Carneatley, Doonfin, l)ruznmans, Gortconny, and J\1ullarts, 
were not applied to leading di visions in this parish, al though they are 
no,v used as names of 1'ownlands. On the contrary, this old List 
preserves the nan1es of ,Alttna1nine, Hown1e, Lealand, Gortetrurnine, 
and Portbritis, ,vhich are now obsolete, or applied to very small sub­
divisions. 

These fifteen suhJivisions were situated in the Island of Rathlin. 
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J an1es and Bernarda Stewart" left one son, Archibald, who 1narried a 
daughter of Sir 'f oby Poyn tz; and one <laughter, 1'-Iary, ,vho becan1e the 
wife of R.ichard Dobbs. 1 

In the year 1653, the leading Presbyterian fan1ilies in the counties of 
Antrim and Down ,vere threatened, for a ti1ne with serious inflictions 
by the Con1111issioners of Cron1,vell's Run1p Parlian1en t. T'he Presby­
terians at this tin1e cherished 1nonarchical principles of govern1nent, 
1naintaining that the authority of Cro1nwell was a sinful usurpation. 
For this they ,vere sumn1oned to Carrickfergus, and required by the 
Commissioners to take an oath called the Engage111ent, by which they 
would have abjured or repudiated the Governn1ent of Kings, Lords, and 
Comn1ons. 1'he Presbyterian gen tlen1en loyally and resolutely. refused 
to co111ply, and expecting their refusal, the Co1nn1issioners had pre­
viously made arrange1nents for transporting then1 and their farnilics, 
en n1asse, from their hon1es in the North, to certain districts throughout 
the province of 1-Iunster, which had been depopulated by war. Proc­
lamation to this effect had been actually made at Carrickfergus, and 
transports were prepared, and lying off that place, to carry the Northern 
Scottish settlers into the South; but, fortunately for them, the R.u1np, 
from which the Con1n1issioners drew their authority, was suddenly 
dissolved, and the Presbyterians were allo\ved to ren1ai·n in their chosen 
homes. Among the fa1nilies thus threatened with ren1oval, we find 
the follo,ving names of several Ste\varts residing in the parish of Ballin­
toy, and throughout the Route, viz. :-~1ajor John Stewart, Captain 
Jan1es Stewart Captain A.lexander Stewart, Alexander Stewart, sen., 
Lieutenant 'fhon1as Stewart, and Quarter-master R.obert Ste\vart. 2 

1 Her eldest son. Arthur, was born at Girvan, in Scotland, April 2, 16S9. This Arthur Dobbs was author 
of several works which were much read and appreciated at the time of their publication. He wrote an essay 
on the Trade of Ireland, a treatise on the Probability of a 1\"orth-ll'est Passage to India, a!1d an account of Captain 
J[iddleton's Yoyagt to lludso1t'j Bay. By his solicitations and advice the Governm~nt sent out two vessels 
in 174-1 to find out, if possible, the tantalising North-West Pass:1ge. In 1753 he was appointed Governor of 
North Carolina, and died in his government, at Castle Dobbs, Cape Fear, near Brunswick. 

There were at least two other instances of intermarriage between the families of Stewart and Dobbs. 
Conway Richard Dobbs married Anne Stewart, daughter of Alexander Stewart, about the year 1752; and 
Francis Dobbs, the well-known orator and prophet, married Jane Stewart, daughter of Alexander Stewart, 
surnamed Graceless, in the year I i7 3. 

2 Besides the Stewarts, the following are the names of other Pn.:sbrterian landholders in the Route ,·.-ho 
,vere to be expelled from their homl·s:-Lieutcnant-Coloncl Robert Kc:inedy, Fergus ~\facdouga!I, John 
'.\bcdougal, John Boyle, John Gettr, J:11nes 1faxwcll, Captain ::\farmaduke Sha\\", John Henry, Cornet Robert 
Knox:, \\'illiam Hutchin, Robert Henry, Alex. Scott, Lieutenant James )..Ioncrief, Robert Harrutc, Andrew 
Rowan, Thos. Boyd, S:imucl Dunbarr, Alexander Dcbp, Adam Dc:iap, .-\ntho11y Kennedr, 2\lajor Huµh 
1fontgomery, Cornet John Gordon, Captain John Huston, Licutenant-Colollcl Cunllingham, Jc,hn Bell. 
Adam Boyd, John Reid, Lieutenant ..\rchibalJ Campbell, John Pt'.Oples,-.Cathcart, Captain Archibald 
Boyd, and Captain John Robinson.-Sec Dr. Reid's 11 istory, vo!. ii., p. 47 3. 

There arc numerous respectable families of tcnant-farmns throughout the Route :,t the present time of the 
Gettys, Scotts, Bells, Knoxes, Boyd~, Delaps, Campbells, Cunnini;hams. Cathcarts, Hustons, and Rvbinsons, 
the descendants, no doubt, of those wlwsc n:.mcs appear on the list of l(i53. 

The l\fojor Hugh ~lontgomery named in the above list, helJ frec:h,)!J property in ::\foyarget, parish of 
Ramoan. He was a member of the gre:it .Ayrshire family, of whom the Earls of Eglinton are the modern 
representatives. This 1-lu)!"h .:\fontgomery is not mentiollcJ in the well-known and very curious record entitled 
The Jlonti;omery Jlantucripts, hut the .:rnthor of that Record statt·s that many branches oi the :\l11ntgomery 
family settled in l'lster were unknown to him, and, consequently, unnoticcJ in his co!kctinns. .:\1aj(Jr Hugh 
::\fontgomery, of ~loyargt·t, ldt a Stm, .:dso named llugh, who Jic<l in 17I<i, anJ was buricJ in Ramuan church­
yard. The latter ldt two snns, llugh an<l Al1:x:1ndcr. llugh, who w:.1s hcir to the fa:nily property, sold the 
)::rt:i ter portion of it tn J,,hn \\"ils,m of Ca rric kfrrgus. He ldt also two sons, Hugh anJ Alexander. 1 l ugh sold 
the rem;1i1Hler of l he fr1·dwlcl in :\loy a r)-!t:l, e11g;1gcJ Jee ply in b usi II t:ss, ;111d w ;1s u ns ncce~sf ll I. For s< ,me y<:a rs 
bdnre his <leath, which occurred in l~Ul1, he li\·cd in tl1t• family of his rcLtive, the late \\'illiarn liill, of :\Ioy­
;irgct, llis brotht'r, .Alexander ~luntgomery, was ;111 oilicer in the 11 l th regiment of fuut, of which lluhh Percy, 
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Archibald came into possession of the ... -\cton· E.state, County Arn1agh, 
in right of his wife. 1 T'his property consisted of about 5,000 acres, 
and added very materially to the influence and position of its new owner. 
I-:lis t,vo sons, f\rchibalcl and .Alexander, ,vere considered as among 
the leading gentry of the county, and, indeed, of lJlster, at the con1-
mencen1ent of the eighteenth century i\rchibald was a clergy1nan, 
and in early life served as chaplain to one of Queen i\nne s regin1en ts 
in Spain. On his father's death he succeeded to the fan1ily estates} 
and becan1e at once landlord and Rector of Ballintov ~ He rnarried a ., 

daughter of Robert Vesey, Bishop of Tuan1, 2 and this lady had only 
one child, a son and heir, who unfortunately perished by an accident 
in his vou th . ., 

A 1\1S. ,vritten between the years I 780 and 1790, by the Rev. l)r. 
Stone, rector of Culdaff, Coun tr Donegal, and afterwards possessed 
by the farnily of the late Guy Stone, Barnhill, Co1nber, County of 
Do,vn, contains the following notke of l)r. Stewart, and of the n1elan­
choly accident by which he lost his only child: 

"There were some remarkable occurrences in the life of the late Dr. Stewart, of Ballin­
toy, which may be related here. He was chaplain to a regiment which was sent with the 
army under the command of the Earl of Peterborough to Spain, in the- reign of Queen 
Anne; when he returned to Ireland he resided in Ballintoy, where he was possessed of an 
estate, and was presented to the Rectory of that Parish, and afterwards promoted to the 
Chanceliorship in the diocese of Connor, on the death of the Rev. Jasper Brett. He 

Lord Warkwork, was Colonel. Montgomery's commission is dated October, 1761, and bears the autographs of 
George 111., and also of his distinguished minister, George Grenville. 

The first Alexander !\1ontgomery, above mentioned, lived and died in l\foyarget, lea,·ing one daughter, 
Rose, who married William Fullerton. Their daughter, Mary Fullerton, married Adam Hill, or ;\{oyargct, 
and their son, William Hill, of the same place, died in 1854, at the age of eighty years. The writer: of this 
account was a son of William Hill. 

The \Vm. Hutchin of the above list was ancestor of the Hutchinsons of Stranocum and Ballymoney, 
His lineal descendant and eldest heir male was Hutchinson of Ballymoney. In Derrykeighan church-yard there 
is an old tablet intended to mark the grave of his wifr, the inscription describing her as "A : FAITHFUL : 
SISTER: IN: THE:: LORD: so;-_tTY.\1: \VYFE: TO: W[LLIA:Vl: HUTCHIN: OF: STRA~OCU~L" 
This simple announcement is inscribed in Rom:i.n Capitals, without date or other inform.'.ltion respecting the 
departed, but the good lady whom it commemorates was :i\fary Anne Boyd, grand-mother to Archibald Hutch­
inson, of the Inner Temple, who, as an eminent !:i.wyer, accumulated an enormous fortune, which he bequeathed 
to be divided, at a long interval subsequent to his death, among all his known rcl:itivcs to tht: fifth degree. 
Two distributions under this will have long since taken place, but a considerable sum still remains to be divided. 

The testator·s arrangement in this case was found to be impracticable, as involving immense trouble and 
very great expense. There soon appeared such a ,·:ist multitude of claimants that the distribution or diffusion 
of the money amongst them would have given to each but ::i very insignificnnt amount. A legal enactment was, 
therefore, obtained by the trustees, restricting its distribution to the first and second generations of the tcsta tor's 
connections. and thus virtually dividing it amongst the Hutchinsons and Ste\varts themseh·cs. 

On the list of 1653, there are the n:imes of two h.ennedys, Robert and Anthony, which sholl"s that although 
this family h:id alienated extensive landed property to the first Earl of Antrim in 1635, it continued to occupy 
a respectable position in 1653. Of the Kenncdrs in the Route, no doubt. was the Rev. Anthon:, Kennedy, 
Presbrterian ).finistcr of Tcmplcpatrick. from 16-}6 until 1G9i. A tombstone in the old burying-ground 
of that village testifies to his faithful p:istoral character and la buurs during the long period of 51 years. He 
was probably son of Anthony KenneJy, of B:dsaragh, who died in ll.;20, and was interred, as alrc.'.ldy stated, 
in the old church-yard of Billy, near lfoshmills. There was in 1865, .'.In Anthony Kennedy, a blacksmith, 
living at B.:illeny, not far distance from Turnarobert. the origin:1I pbce of settlement of this brniiy in Antrim. 

The Henrys of the above list had dropped the !\lac from their surname. which probahly they had come to 
regard as a vulgar prefix. but which indic.'.lteJ their descent from a Sir Henry o•:,foill. They occupied landed 
property in fee at Bravallin, near Ballymoney. !'\!embers of this family suffered he:ivy losses in 1798, having 
taken p::irt in the insurrection of that ye:ir. 

1 "At Curriator, Lieut. Sir T. Poyntz possessed a tract of land, with a bawn of eight}' feet square and a 
house. On this he ercctt:d another b:iwn, one hundred feet square, and a brick and lime house. This appears 
to have been the first settlement at Poyntzpass."-Ste1vart's JI istory oj Armagh, p. 6-10. 

2 This lady was grand-daughter of Thom:1s Vesey, sometime Presbyterian minister of Coleraine. He 
w:i.s the first person in that town to accept the "Covcn:int," acknowledging the "sinfulness'' of the '·P.lack 
O;ith" \Vhich .he had previously t.1kc11, and denouncing the "cursed course of conformity." ?'fot long after# 
wards, however, he quarrelled with his Preshncri:111 brethren by endeavouring to establish a Pn·sbytery of 
Route in opposition to that Carrickfergus, which then (1650) man.'.lgcd all iml,ortant matters connected with 
Presbyterianism iu Ireland. lfo son, John VcstT, became cluplain to the rish llouse of Lords, and died 
Ard1bishop of Tuam.-See I\i'Skimmin's 1/i.rtory oj Carrickftrgzu, pp. 5-!-55 of 3rd edition, 1832. 
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married a 1'1 iss Vesey, of the family of Bishop Vesey; they were married near twenty 
years before his wife conceived of child, and was delivered of a son. Being solicitous to 
strengthen the constitution of this only child of their old age, they had it bathed in a 
large vessel of cold water for severaf mornings. J\1rs. Stewart, the widow of Ezekial 
Stewart, of Fortstcwart, being at Ballintor, undertook the office of bathing the child; 
and having dipped the child two or three times in the water ,.,,·ithou_t sufficient intermission 

for the child to recover its breath, he was wrapped in a blanker to be conveyed to the 
nursery; when the blanket was opened he was found dead to the astonishment and grief 
of the family."-Ulster 'Journal of Archaeology (Old Series), vol. vi., p. 107. 

This sad affair occurred in the Castle of Ballin toy, v.·hich stood near 
the church, and the lady visitor ,vho unfortunately volunteered her 
services on the occasion was the "daughter of the R.ev. Dr. Charles 
,vard, of l\1oun tpan ther, in the County Do\vn, and grea t-grandn1other 
of Sir J an1es Stewart, Bart., of Fortste\vart, in the County Donegal. 1

' 

The death of this child occurred about the year 1735. The sarne l\-1S. 
con ta ins also the following passage: 

"Another remarkable incident relating to this Dr. Stewart in his ol<l age:-He was 
travelling to Dublin and taken ill with the small-pox by lying in a bed on the road where 

some person had lately lain sick of the same disorder. However, he recovered of this 
contagious disease at a very advanced period of old age. Dr. Stewart's estate of Ballin toy 
descended to his younger brother's son, a minor, who was afterwards distinguished by a 

name in a ludricrous farce wrote by his mother, that of Roderick Random.. His son now 
possesses the Estate." · 

On the death of the Rev. Dr. Stewart, who \Vas thus deprived of 
his son, the estates were inherited by his younger brother, Alexander 
Ste·wart. In 1720 the latter was appointed agent to the .. Antri1n Estates, 
by Lord and Lady l\1assereene, the guardians of the fifth Earl of 4;\ntrin1 
during his n1inori ty. In this capacity Alexander Stewart's manage­
ment of the property gave such satisfaction to his ernployers that his 
appointn1ent as agent was continued by Lord Antrirn, when the latter 
succeeded to the estates in the year 173-!. During several years after­
·wards the n1ost cordial relations existed benveen the landlord and his 
agent, until Lord An trin1 began to feel that his vast estates were being 
subjected to an alarn1ing process of disintegration by his o\vn ruinous 
extravagance. 

His Lordship's habits ,vere such as to require large and frequent 
additions to his annual incon1e, and these sun1s could only be had by 
selling off extensive portions of his property. These sales, of course, 
\vere convenient arrange1nents to 1neet certain difficulties as they 
arose, but in this way the rental soon becan1e sadly curtailed, and Lord 
Antrin1 began to think, when too late, that his agent n1ight have con­
trived to keep hin1 afloat at a sn1aller sacrifice than had been n1ade. 
At length the Earl's suspicions shaped thernselves into a <listinct 
charge against Stewart, of conniving at cheap sales of the property to 
serve his own selfish purposes. 'fhis quarrel resulted in a rather 
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celebrated action at law, which agitated the county of ~-\ntrin1 in various 
\vays, and to no trifling extent, during the years 1740 and 17--11. It is 
interesting no\v, as an jllustration of the process. by which these vast 
estates ,vere broken up, and also because the papers prepared for the 
trial contain several topographical na1nes and statistical facts in con-. 
nexion with the Antrirn property at the tin1e referred to. For these 
reasons we 111ay be pern1itted to enter into the few following details, 
,vhich have been dra\vn frotn original manuscripts never before printed: 

I. Captain Rogers held the lands of Ballywincllans, Ballyvlattick, 
and Coldagh, in the parish of I3allyn1oney, at the yearly rent and fees 
of £92 5s. On the expiration of the lease, Alex. Ste\vart, the agent, it 
,vas alleged, represented to Lord Antrin1, that Hugh Boyd, of Bally­
castle, who held· other ]ands adjoining, on lease also, had purchased 
the interest of R.ogers, and was willing to give a fine of £500, provided 
he could get a fee-sin1pie grant of the ,vhole lot frorn Lord Antrin1. 
On the agent's representation that this sun1 was sufficiently large, and 
because Lord An tri111 was jgnoran t of the value of land, a deed was 
perfected in 1736, whereby the whole lands held by R.ogers and Boyd 
were conveyed to Boyd for ever. So soon, however, as this arrange­
ment was n1ade, it was alleged that Boyd, according to previous agree­
ment, handed over the one-half to Stewart, the latter paying the half 
of the fine and the half of the yearly rent. 

II. 1~he lands of Cosies, Cabragh, Ca van1nore, Kilt11ahan1oge, 
Clogher> Lagavar, 11aghernaher, l\Iaghrecastle, 1 Clegnagh, and 
Knocknagarvon, together ,vith the towns of Broughgan1on, Big Park 
of BalEn toy (.:\1 trnore, reserved in the original grant of 162-!), Len1-
neagbeg, Le1nneaghn1ore, and Creganewey, in the Baronies of Dunluce 
and Carey, ,vere held by t\lexander Stewart, and the R.ev. J)r. Stewart, 
his brother, except the five last, held by Alex ... Andrews, at the yearly 
rent of £91. On the expiration of the lease, the agent offered Lord 
.An trin1 £500 of a fine on behalf of his sister, Jane Ste\vart, for a fee­
simple deed of all these lands at the fonner rent. On his reconunenda­
tion, the deed was perfected in February, 1736. Lord :\ntrin1 alleged 
that .Alexander and Jane Stewart had arranged previously that she was 
to bequeath this property at her death to hin1 or his heirs, and that the 
lands she thus obtained for £91 yearly rent were fully worth £500 by 
the year. 

1 J\•fog!H·racashcl, "the field or plain of the c:ishel, or stone fort," already mentioned as the origin;1I residence 
of the ReJ Cliitftains. or Reids, who o\l'nc-<l this territory prior to the arriYal of the Stcwans; and, inc.lt·ed 
Jong prior to that of the ~bcdonndls, or ?\lacquillins. The ReiJs, or n·d-h:iired chidt:iins, ;n:re the descend­
ants of a f:!!"t".:lt Danish family who continued to reside in this locality long after the numerous other Danish 
settlemects on this co:ist h.1J bet·n brokt·n up :111d JisperscJ. The site of their st,rnc fort or fortress here was 
enclosed by two parai'ets. :ilso of stone, :rnd under11t·:1tb were very extensive :ind well constructed c:ives. It it1 
believt·d tii;1t in more modern times a castle was ercctt'd on th<· site of the ori,1:in:il f0rtn:s~, ;,nJ occupit·d during 
many ge:wr:1tiPns by the ReiLls or O'~laelJergs. :,cvcr:tl modern l1011schold uknsil~, such as tankards and 
pbted tire-irons, were found therein at tht· time of the tin:il demolition (lf the Ci:;tle. anJ many hot1ses in the 
,urroun<ling district were almL>St e.xdusivdy built frnm tht· sto11t·s of the olJ ruin. 
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III. \Vh~n the lease of Glenariffe, Bal.lynaries, Ballyloughbeg, 
Castlecat, ·Magherintemple, and Garyvindune expired, the agent 
proposed to take these lands for £98 yearly rent, and inforn1ed Lord 
Antri1n that no n1ore could be obtained for the1n. 'The latter, on this 
representation, gave the agent a deed of then1, forever, at the above 
rent, although they were worth £230 yearly, exclusive of a wood, the 
ti1nber in which \Vas worth £600. 

IV. Lord Antrin1 further alleged that the lands of Bun-na-rnargie, 
Brughan1ea, the five Irish acres of Ffarann1acartor I\1ountain, the five 
Irish acres Achraveelie, the Freestone Quarry, the forty Irish acres of 
Drumnagola, Dunnarnalaght, and the two Quarters of Carnside and 
Ballylinncy, were handed over to Hugh Boyd, in perpetuity, for the 
yearly rent of £147, ,vhereas the fair and proper rent for this property 
,vas at least £800 per annu111. 

To these grave cha-rges Ste,vart replied that his conduct in the agency 
had ahvays secured the approval of Lord and Lady lVIasscreene, by 
whon1 he had been originally appointed during Lord i\ntri1n's minority, 
and that the latter, on con1ing of age, ha<l continued· the appointn1ent, 
fron1 a knowledge of his character, and a conviction that he had con­
scientiously discharged the duties ·of his office. So soon as_ Lord An­
trin1 entered on the possession of his estates, his Lordship ordered. a 
survey to be n1ade of his entire property, to enable hin1 to issue the 
necessary directions for its 1nanagen1en t and i1nproven1en t. The 
n1ost experienced persons were en1ployed to n1ake this survey, and they 
were required to distinguish carefully the arable land fron1 the pasture, 
bog, and n1ountain, in every instance, showing the valuation of each, 
the quantity of land in every lease on the estate, with the rent and 
tenant's natne attached, and the present value of each fann, supposing 
the tenant's interest therein expired. Lord ... ..\.ntrin1 was thus quite 
co1npeten t of hin1self to forn1 a correct opinion on any case of proposal 
for the sale or letting of his lands. Stewart had copies of this survey 
n1ade and sent to the landlord, together ,vi th books con ta1ning ten an ts' 
natnes, the nun1ber of acres in each holding, ,vith the a111ount of rent, 
in ever_y case. Lord A.ntri111 ,vas regularly in the habit of consulting 
these docun1en ts before con1111 i tting hin1self to any arrangen1en ts with 
tenants or others. In addition to these precautions, Lord /\ntrin1's 
stepfather, R.obert I-Iawkins 1\-Iagill) en1ployec.l valuators on the estate, 
whose returns and valuations were carefully con1pared with the sur­
veyor's reports, with rent rolls, and with forn1er valuations. 'fhe work 
of cornparing lasted several days, and was perfonned at Stewart's 
office, Ballylough, b~· Lord .A.ntrin1, IVIagill, and Ste\vart. In his 
defence, Stewart also entered 111inutely into each of the several cases 
specified br Lord .:.\ntri111, indignantly denying the existence of collusion 
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,vith any party or parties to benefit then1selves at his Lordship's ex­
pense. On the contrary, during Lord A.ntrin1's minority, he (Stewart) 
had increased the rent-roll by £800 a year, in consequence of the 
discovery of forged lea.ses in Glenariffe. 1 As to the lands of Glenariffe, 
Ballynaries, Ballyloughbeg, Castlecat, l\-Iagherinte1nple, and Garry­
vindune, in the Baronies of Dunluce, Carey, and (1lenarn1, he had held 
then1 as tenant-at-will since 1737; and being encouraged by Sarni. 
vVaring, Lord Antrin1's attorney, to 1nake an offer for -then1, he pro­
posed £400 besides the rent, which ,vas accepted. The wood in Glen­
arn1 consisted of ash, alder, hazel, and sally, but he denied that it was 
,vorth more than £60. In concluding his staten1ent, Stewart asserted 
that in Dece1nber, 1740, or January, 17-1-1, Lord 1\ntri111 had ordered 

'-

his servants to seize and carry off an iron chest fro1n Ballylough l-Iouse, 
,vhich contained alinost all the papers relating to the 1nanagen1en t of 
the estate. ~fhesc docu1nents ,vere taken to Lord Antrin1's house at 
Ballyrnagarry, without Stewart's knowledge, his Lordship having 
induced \Vm. f-Iarrison (who had been a clerk in Stewart's office for 
thirteen years), suddenly to leave his services, and give up the keys 
,vith which he had been entrusted. Lord Antrin1 had also prevailed 
on John Cuppage, who received rents for Stewart, as his assistant, 
,vhen unwell, to surrender the keys of the iron chest, so that Ste\vart 
had been thus deprived of access to papers which would have enabled 
hin1 to specify na1nes, dates, and accounts with greater precision. 

lfis staten1ents, however, were a1nply borne out by the testin1ony of 
Hugh Boyd, of Ballycastle, at least so far as related to Boyd himself. 
The latter declared that he and Stc,vart were not, by any 1neans, dis­
posed to accon11nodate each other, but ,vere urged to becon1e joint 

1 It would appear that, at the period referred to, there had existed not only numerous forged lc:i.scs, but 
also considerable portions of concealed l:rnd on the estate. \Ve have before us a statement dra11·n up by some 
person who docs not sign his name, but who evidently acteJ in the capacity of a bailiff, about the year 1740 
which reveals a few facts illustrative of the loose style of doing business in those days. As this p::ipcr preserves 
many names of persons and places in the district to which it rders, we subjoin it entire: 

"To the Right hunouraL•le Lord of :\ntrir.i. 
"I make bold with your lordship yt I have found out the pcice of ground wch ,yas conccaicd from your 

lordship in the Barrony of Kerry [Can·rl and parish of Ard my (:\rmoyJ. Those yt li\·es upon the sd ground are 
James Gordon, Thomas Ramsy, Jolin Ramsy, They pay the rent to one James Clark wch li\·es in the sd parish 
or Ardmy." 

Next follows what the writrr terms "An Account of the Profit Rents that those rt has leases from your 
lordship in the Barrony of Glenarm, as near as I could find it out by their own warrc!lts. '.\fr. \\·::1. '.\1'.\"c\v 
of Killowtcr worth two hundred and sixty pound per annum never mention Duties, .\Ir. \\":ili.'.lm Blear of 
Killglew worth forty pound per annum never mc-ntion duties, :-.Ir. henry Shaw is worth a hundred :rnd forty 
pound per annum, ncv-cr mention duties, John Stewart worth nine pound per ye:ir. Arthur Stringer's \\'icl0·N 
worth nine pound p~r annumi.).lr. Dillcrton hamilton h.is !;ft:,- pound per year never mention Dut:e~. J:1:ncs 
metiall fprob.1b!y >.-brshall] worth four pound per ann: \\"illi~1m Rc.'.lsori worth ten pound i'a ann., \\.i!li.:im 
11ichae!l worth thirty pounJ per ann .. Sanders Eaton worth fifty pound per year, John \b:::11 ten r0und pa 
year, Patrick .'.\fa.gill worth tt·n pound per ann., Robert l\bttliews worth 60 per an., \lr. R0wic:n Bork \':orth 
100 pound per an., Thom:1s BorK ,vorth 18 per an., James Stt·w:irt v:orth 30 per an., \Irs. harper worth -1n per 
an., S.'.lnJcrs Donil!son's lease worth WU {)t'r an .. :\lr. ;\l'hclm worth ·W per an .• m:idam Dor,;;;s,)n worth I(X) a 
year, l\lr. John Donillsnu worth 250 pt·r year. :\fr. Coll '.\I'Donill \,·orth 30 p0und per year. \fr. Alex. Stn•::irt 
worth ·H pound pc::r year. ;\lr. Alex. :\1'Donell worth forty pound per year, :\lr. :\"eice ~l'D-,ncll worth forty 
.pound per year, Dani. l\l'K.'.ly worth tcn puund pa yc:1r. ir:ink :\f'Kally wurth tliirtr pound per re.'.lr. John 
!\l'Kny worth ten pound per year, Drnis l\1'l\1a worth seven pnund per year, one ~fr. thompson a presbutc::rian 
minister in the mulls I c:1n1h1t find out bow much he pays. 

"In lairn [Lame] I could nut find out the profit kascs but men yt lives there tdls me rt your lordship 
has not the: tt-nth penny out of it. 

"The old twon of karn [town of Larncl] is morgagc<l for four hundred pound with se\·er.'.ll t•:!nenwnts :rn~l 
parks bt•lnn~ing to it, with a corn mill :1 nJ clothit·rs mill, it pars now a hundrt·d a year as I am I 11fr,rmeJ 
eeveral other leases set to farmers wch labours the ground themselves in the same Barrony of Glcn:.rm." 
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purchasers of the lands in the neighbourhood of Bal1y111oney by Lord 
Antrin1 himself! 1 As to the lands near Fairhead, he was induced to 
take the1n, not fro1n any profits arising fron1 the1n on the tern1s granted 
by Lord Antri111, but because the works at the colliery and at the 
harbour of Ballycastle could not be conveniently carried on ,vithout 
them. Boyd denied that these lands were worth £800 a year rent, 
as stated by Lord Antrim, and declared that they ,vere let for the sun1 
of £240 yearly, subject to the chief rent of £147. The lands ,vere held 
by fifty-two tenants, all poor, with cottiers holding under the111. Boyd 
denied all con1bination \Vith Stewart, and dwelt very pointedly on the 
fact that Lord Antrim and his step-father, lVIagill, had their own 
valuations and surveys to guide them in all their proceedings as to 
the sale and letting of property on the Estate. 

Ste,vart's sister, Jane, denied also that she had any underhand 
agreement with her brother respecting a renewal of old leases, .or that 
she had ever, at his suggestion, proposed to pay a fine for the pt1rpose of. 
obtaining such renewal at the old rent. Her account of the tran~action 
,vas sin1ply this :-l·Ier eldest brother, Dr. A.rchibald Ste.wart, .had 1nade 
arrangen1ents with Lord Antrin1, or ,vith his attorney, 'Sa111uel \Y~i-ing, 
to have a fee-fann grant of these lands, for ,vhich he gave certain other· 
valuable considerations over and above those expressed in the deed. 
Some of the lands had been previous1 y leased to Dr. Stewart, but the 
old lease would not have expired until the year 17 51. The fol1owing 
,vere thus circumstanced, viz.: The quarterlands of Cosies and Ca van­
more, the half quarterland of Cabragh, in the Barony of Dunluce, also 
the quarterlands of Cloughcor, Kilmaha111og, Lag~var, and l\Taghern­
agher, together with the 25 acres of IVlagherabuoy, in the Barony of 
Carey. 'rhe leases of Clegneagh and Knock-na-Garvon, held by 
.Alexander Andrews, ,vould not have expired until the sa1ne year, 17 51, 
,vhilst the leases of Maghrecastle, Broughgen1n1on, and Al t1nore, or 
Big Park, held by the s~11ne gen t1 en1an, were not to end until 17 -:l 7. 
,.fhe lease of the quarterland of Craigane\vey, held by a Shaw, would 
not have expired until the san1e date, 1747 .• All the above lands, 
however, ,vere included in a fee-farn1 grant ,vhich was to be given to 
Dr .. A.rchibald Stewart, in lieu of certain considerations not specified, 
hut which ,vere regarded as perfectly satisfactory by Lord .A.n trin1, 
and by his law agent, \Varing. Archibald Stewart, however, ,vas 
bound by his father's ,vill to pay £1,000 to his sister Jane on her 1nar­
riage, and an annuity of £50 as the interest, for her support, so long as 
he held the principal. His own estate being in debt, and encun1bered 
,vith fa1nily settlen1ents, he was anxious to secure his sister Jane's 

lHugh Boyd, who <lit'li in 1765, hcquentheJ :1 yearly foe farm rent of .£41. pnyable out of the bnds of 
Coldaf:hs, B:tllrwi11dl:llls, :ui-1 Ballywatti12k, in tlu: parish of B:d!ym,inl'y, to his granJ-danglitn, .\brr Curp:,ge, 
wife of the Rev. Akx. Cupp:1gc, during her lift:, and from her ck,th, to hc:r 5on, 1 {ugh Cuppagl', and his ht·irs. 
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1noney by son1e such additional purchases as he had now rnade fron1 
Lord Antrin1, which would not be liable for his debts. I-le, therefore, 
offered to assign to her the deed of the lands above-111en tioned, sup­
posed to be worth son1ething above £60 yearly, as an equivalent for 
her £ I ,000. Instead of the assign1nen t con ten1pla ted, her advisers 
co11sidered that she would be safer to have the lands granted to herself. 

'-

I-1er brother, J)r. Archd. Stewart, applied, therefore, to Lord Antrirn 
for his consent to this arrangen1ent, and his Lordship's consent was 
readily obtained. Jane Ste·wart farther declared that she had never 
given any title of these lands to her brother Alexander or his children 
after her death. She was absolute O\vner of thern. T'he fee si111ple was 
purchased frotn Lord ,An trin1 at its full n1arketable value, as the lands 
after considerable irnproven1ents, were let by her for about £80 a year. 

Alex. Stewart died in the following year, 1742, after defending hin1-
self successfully at law against_ all the accusations of Lord An tritn. 
A.t the death of his sister, Jane Stewart, her landed property was 
inherited by his son, Alexander, and the Ballintoy Estate, when thus 
augmented, contained 3,505 acres, Cunninghan1 n1easure, including 
the townlands of Ballintoy, Broughgainrnon, Clegnagh, Craiganee, 
Glens taghy, J(il mahamog, I(nocknagarvon, Laga var, Lin1cnt:agh, 
J\·1agheranaher, 1\-fagherabuoy, .IVlagheracashe], and \Yhite Park. 

Jane Stewart bequeathed the sun1 of £] 5 annually, to pay a scool­
n1aster on her little estate, leaving the choice of this functionary to the 
parishioners assen1bled at the Easter ·vestry, "fro1n which circum­
stance," says the late Rev. Robert Trail, H.ector of Ballin toy, "it has 
becon~e the 111ost useless of all the Schools. T'he only qualification 
necessary on these occasions for the candidate to possess is the capability 
of drinking \vhiskey., and sharing it with the electors; and whoever 
entertains best, and drinks • deepest, is sure of gaining his election. 
I ha,Te made 111any atten1pts to redress this serious grievance, but 
having been unifonnly unsuccessful, I have now (1814:) ceased to make 
any farther efforts." 

During the period of J\.Iexander Stewart's agency the lands on the 
Antrin1 Estate ,vcre let on very 1noclerate tenns, even n1aking allo,vance 
for the difference in the value of n1oney then and no,v. 1'he entire 
yearly rent of the whole Barony of l)unluce, Upper and Lower, 
an1oun tecl only to the sun1 of £1,686 5s. 8d. 'fhe en tire year I y rent 
derived fron1 the Barony of I{i1conway was £1,17-1 7s. --!d. 1~he 
entire yearly rent of the Barony of Carer was £92-1 19s. 6d. The entire 
yearly rent of the Island of R.athlin was £109 7s. Ocl. 'fhe 
entire Yearly rent fro1n the Liberties of Coleraine was £408 9s. 8Ll. . -
The entire yearly rent drawn frorn the towti and town parks of Bally-
1noncy was £3.99 9s. 8d. 'fhc en tire yearly rent of the tO\Vll and de1ncsne 
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of Ballycastle was £23 19s. 7d. Our readers, in these various localities, 
will be able to fonn an idea of the con1parative value of houses and 
lands fro1n the above figures, at the present ti111e. 

I'he custorr1 of exacting "duties" in addition to the rent was general 
over the estate, and regularly enforced. l'he following is a list of the 
dutjes which ,vere collected, or taken in kind, about the year 1720: 

BARONY oF DuNLUCE 

]\Tames of Tenants. 

Peter Buirell, of Stana Jim 

Hugh Edgar, of Ballrtibbert 
John I\IacLeagh, of Cloughcorr 
James 1\'foore, of Ballynacreemore 
Archd. l\IacColman, Park 
Francis l\lacN aghten, Salmon Fishing or 

Portncen 

!'.lrs. Ann O'Cahon, Ballyemon 

Capt.James Stewart, Corkey 

Daniel Shawbridge, Salmon Fishing of ye 
River Bush 

John Stewart, Lcotrim 
\Villiam Stewart, Kervecruine 
John \Yilson and Partners 

Amount of Duties. 

Ten hushe11s of Oates, 6 Days' \York and 
6 Hens. No money in lieu of Du tics 

A barrel of \Yheat 

12 bushells of Oats and 6 Trusses of Straw 
2 Barrells of \\'heat and a Bowle of Oates 
6 Bushells of Oates 
Ye best salmon ,·t is taken in any of the ., . 

said Ports every day that fnsh is taken 
for kcttlefish, and a barrel of good, 
sufficient, merchantable salmon fish, 
London gage, year.Ir 

12 Bushells of Oates, and one four year 
old unshorn mutton 

Ten Horses and Carrs (rather their ,vork 
for a specified number of <lays) 

All Salmon Fish taken there till Easter, 
and 2 Salmon every <la,· that ffish is . . 
taken from Easter to the end of the 
Season 

One Bowle of Oates 
One Bowle of Oates 
Two Days' \York, ~Ian and Horse 

LIBERTIES OF CoLERAI~E. 

Hugh .t\ Ilison, Island Fflacky 
Edmond & \Vidow Nelson, l\Iaghereboy 

\Villiam Glen, of I\1aghremenagh 

\Villiam Houston, 11addcbainey 
David Kerr, B. Gelagh 
Robert Kerr, Cappagh 
l\lrs. I\Iary i\I'Cartan, B.nagg 
James l\lacCollum, Carnanrigg 
Hugh l\Iac.L'.fullan, B:lllylag:111, now 

possed. by Charlt!s l\l'Clainc 
Hugh ~foorc, Ihllyvdton 
Jam~s and Rob. Nelson, Craigstown 

A Bowle of Oates 
12 Bushells of Oates, and 4 Days' \York of 

l\,Ian and Horse 

One Bowle of Oates and 4 days' \York of 
~Ian and Horse 

One Bowle of Oa tcs 
2 Bowles of Oats 
6 ffat l\Iuttons 
24 Bushells of Oates 
One Bow le of Oates 

One BO\vle of Oates 
12 Bushells of Oates 

Bowle and halfe of Oates, and 4 days' 
work, Horse and ?\!an 
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Hugh & Thos. Reed, -arid .-\ndre\v Hunter, 
Corstowne, Kill, or rather Keel 

Lieut. John Stewart, B. lease 

\Villiam and Adam Smith, Galvally com­
monly called N are 

Rachel Todd, i\fo<ldebainey 

Sir Herculs Langford's Tents. pay yearly 
26 days' Labr. of l\'fo.n and Horse out of 
the follo,\·i ng lq. nds: 

'fhe 2 Kilgrcens 

The 2 Cloyfins 

The 2 Ballyversalls 

The 2 Ballyndreens 

The 1 Drumduoin 

The 1 Liswatick 

The 1 Ballylagan 

The 1 Ballynagg 

of Ballintov ~· 

Bowle and halfe of Oates, 12 Pullets, and 
6 days' work of Horse and ~fan 

36 l3ushells of Oates, 2 dozen of Pu !lets, 
and 12 days' work of ~fan nnd Horse 

Halfo a Bowle of Oates 
One Bowle of Oates, and 4 days' \\'ork 
l\Ian and Horse. 

4 Horses and l\1cn 

4 Horses and l\len 
4 Horses and ~len 

4 Horses and i\J en 
2 Horses and l\len 
2 Horses and ~fen 

2 Horses and i\Ien 
2 Horses and l\1en 

, The above work was recd. in 7 br 1721, Leading Hay to Ballymagarry. 

'fowN AN"D l)E~rESXES or BALLY~IO);EY. 

\Yilliam Glass, Lidagan 
James Black Henry, Lislagan 
Neil !\IacCooke and Dani. Craig, Ballr­

brack 

Gill, l\lacFfall and Dani. Nickle, Lislagan 

James Randall, James Calve!!, and Adam 
Neill, Droghdult 

One Bowle of Oates yearly 

One Bowle of Oates 

6 Bushells of Oai:es 
1.2 Bushells of Oates 

12 Bushclls of Oates 

BAROXY O:F CAREY 

Hugh Boyd, Drimvillen 
Hugh Boyd, Drumnacross, and ye parcel 

of Land called .Al tan um (now Altneanum) 

Jonn Campbell, Lismureitr 

Peter Jollie, Dnunnakill 
Alex. l\Iac.-\uley, Drumnagee 

Charles ~la~:\lister, Carndutfo 

John ~IacDonnell, Coolnagappage 

Cormac 1facCormack, Creevagh 

l.\lanus O'Cahan, Ballynalea 

\Yidow O'Cahan, Island I\Iac.--\l!an 

Edward O'Cahan, Ardehanan 

Daniel Stewart, Ballynalea 

Andre\\' Stewart, Drumnagola 

One Bowle of Oates at December, yearly 

One Bowle of Oates 

A Bov-1le of Oates 

12 Bushnells of Oates 

12 Bushells of Oates 

12 Bushells of Oates, and '"> good tfa.t 

muttons 

Hnlf a Bowle of Oates 

3 tfat Pulletts 

11 Bushells of Oates and a ~lutton 

3 tfat Pulletts 
A Bowle of Oates 
12 Bushells of Oates 

A Bowl~ of Oates 
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ISLAND OF RATIJLIX. 

Town1and of Kenramer 
" Ballyginl 
" Kill pa trick ,, 
,, 
,, 
I> 

Ba1lynavargan 
Ballycarey 
Ballynoc 
Kankiel 

l\1ore to be paid by the I nha bi tan ts of the 
Island yearly 

2-1 Pulletts and 10 Sheep 
2-1 Pulletts and 10 Sheep 
12 Pullets and 5 Sheep 
24 Pullctts and 3 Sheep 
I 2 Pullet ts and 5 Sheep 
2-1 Pulletts and 10 Sheep 
24- Pulletts and 8 \\'eathers 

19 Sheep 

BARONY OF KILCON'WAY. 

Rev. "·alter Linn, .rvlunineagh 
James Henry and \Vm. Glass 
Patt. and Owen l\1agce, Ballynagabboge 
James I\1 acHenry, Ball 1:macalrdick 
Alex. l\J acCollum and J amcs l\I'Loughlin, 

Lignamanogc 

A L\J utton ,vhen demandd 
Two Bowls of Oares 
12 Horses and Carrs 
A bow le and 2 of Oates 

A Bowle of Oates 
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Thomas l\lac~aghten, Gallanagh 
John l\1acDonnell, Ballrlig 

One ffat beefc yearly, and 3 ffat muttons 
A bole and ½ at IO bus hells to the bole, 

Avrey O'Cahan, Broughmore 
Roger O'Hahan, Kilmandum 
Patt. Orr, Tullyncwy 
Andre,\! Rowan, Clke., Tenement in Old­

stone or Clough 

and 12 good Pulletts 
· One bole of Oates 

6 Bushells of Oates 
A bole of Oates 

15 days' ,vork of i\Ian and Horse 

.Alex. Stewart, who died in 1742, had married his kinswo1nan Anne, 
daughter of John Stewart, C?f Fortstewart, Jan1aica, with who1n he 
received a large dowry. By this lady, who was highly accornplished 
.and ren1arkably endo,ved by nature, he left one son and two daughters. 
His son, Alexander 1'. Stewart, ,vas surnarned Gract?!ess in his own 
neighbourhood, ft-0111 his extravagant n1anner of living. His mother 
,vrote a clever jeu d'esprit, in which she introduced her son as Roderick 
Randon,, an epithet sufficiently significant as to his character and 
habits. I-Jc was not wanting, however, in public spirit, and it ,vould 
.appear that he exerted hi1nself on several occasions for the in1prove­
n1ent. of his native district. In 1757, he petitioned the Irish House of 
Co1n1nons for aid in assisting to open coal n1ines at Ballintoy, stating 
that he had "discovered a large body of coals in his lands there, great 
quantities of ,vhich had been exported to Dublin and other parts of the 
Kingdon1"-that he had "expended £500 in an ateen1pt to construct 
a quay at Ballintoy, but was not able to proceed with the work unless 
aided by Parliarnen t; that such structure, when cornp1eted, would be 
of great advantage to the kingdon1 in general, and to the North of 
Ireland in particular, the sarne being the only harbour of safety between 
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Larne and the Lough of Derry." To accon1plish this work, he asked 
for the sun1 of £2,000 fron1 the public purse. I-Iis petition was referred 
to a con11nittee of sixty mernbers, which conunittee, after exarnining 
three \Vitnesses (viz., Daniel l\-lacCollurn, John L\IacCay, and Thon1as 
~/loon), reported that there was a "large fund of coal in the colliery of 
Ballintoy, that a safe and co1nn1odious harbour znight be n1ade there, 

· and that· the sun1 of £2,000 should be granted for that purpose." 
This sun, was voted for the purpose above-n1entioned. In 1759, l\lr. 
Stewart petitioned again, stating that he had expended £1,73-1 on the 
works, and asking for £1,234 to co1nplete the quay. The con1n1ittee 
reported favourably on this application also, and with this grant 
ended the project of a quay and colliery at Ballin toy. 

Stewart was soon afterwards obliged to sell his en tire property in 
Ballintoy, for \vhich he received £20,000 fro1n--Cupples of Belfast. 
The latter resold it, for the san1e stun, to Dr. FulJerton, a native of the 
Route, who had realized an an1ple con1petency in the \Yest Iridies. 1 

On the sale of Ballintoy) Stewart went to reside on his estate of .felon, 
,vhere he died. By his wife, who ,vas a sister of Sir f-Iugh I-lill, of 
Derry, he left one son, .l\lexander, who n1ight also have been appro­
priately named Gracclt'SS, as he Jived riotously, n1ortgaged the fo.rnily 
property, and died in poverty, at Drurnbanagher, about the year 1790. 
He was untnarried, and with hi1n ended the main line of a fan1ily, which, 
for upwards of two centuries, held a leading position in the coun tr of 
An trin1. 2 

But it ought to be n1entioned that there are traces, in this parish of 
BalJin toy, of another fan1ily which latterly spelled the narne Stuart, 
and which ~yas supposed to be descended frorn an earlier founder than 
John Stewart, the first hereditary sheriff of Bute. Of this fan1ily was 
.. Alexander Stewart, who O\vned considerable property in the towns1ands 
of l(iln1ahamoge and Ballinlea, and \vho died in 1723. I-le n1arried a 
Scotish lady named Elizabeth Fraser, and, by her, left one son_, \Yalter, 
and two daughters. \Yalter,s first wife was a lady of the :\IacCarroH 
fan1ily, once so influential on this coast (see page 1--1-7, Yol. vi), and his 
~econd wife was a daughter of the house of :;\lac~eill of Clare, or Dunan­
anney, near Ballycastle. By the latter he left one son, John, who 
married a lady nan1ed Sin1pson, of Bow1nore, in Isla. He died soon 
after his 1narriage, leaving one son, the late John Stuart of Kiln1a­
han1oge, then only a child of six years old. I'he latter was ren1oved 
to Scotland by his grandmother Sirnpson, and brought up by the old 

lSce note, p::ige 84, vol. vi. 

2This ~entdeman's reckless career may be imagined from the fact that his intim,He a:-soci;, tes :n D;..b!:n 
were the notl)rious \Vlwley .111d :\bguire. the former of whom. fnr a h:t, kapl"J fro;n a ;, inJow (>!I to t!!e tu;, of 
a mail-co:11.:h p:1ssin~ at full speed. '.\Liguirc \,·:is so acrnr:1pli~hcJ as :i. dut'llist, that it was s.:i:J l:e coulJ snuff 
a candle, without extinguishing it, with a pistol ball. Stew:1rt's arm<iri:d bc,,rni:1fs were· the .same ;.s :):,::,se of 
the Bute family. Tht". motto is .:fritu rirtt honore ("}h: tlourishc:s with ,lllC't'StrJ.l honour"), 
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lady in the hope that he would adopt the n1ilitary profession, as he had 
uncles and grand-uncles in the arn1y> and as she> being a Can1pbell 
nearly connected with the Duke of Argyle, could have easily procured 
for her grandson a good position. But his farnily syn1pathies and 
traditions were entirely opposed to the policy of his kinsn1en> the 
Catnpbells, who had always strenuously devoted themselves to the 
interests of th~ I-louse of Hanover; and he, therefore, preferred re­
turning to his native place, and to a hun1 bler, but rnore peaceful lot. 
This gentleman exhibited, in a retnarkable degree, the fine personal 
linean1en ts of the early Steward race from which he was descended. 
His motto was-1Von nos a regibus sr:d rcges a nobis ("~ot we fron1 
kings, but kings frotn us")-thus in1plying that his family was a branch 
of that ancient line which had given kings to the Scottish and English 
thrones. The founder of the Kilrnahan,oge fa1nily was supposed to 
have been ,valter Stewart, the son of Sir John Stewart, who was slain, 
fighting on the side of \Vallace, at the battle of Falkirk, in 1298. At all 
events> the late John Stuart, of Kilmahamoge, ,vas always careful to 
mark the distinction between his O\Vn descent and that of the other 
Stewarts of Ballin toy, and had no atn bition to be supposed as, in any 
degree, connected ,vith the fan1ily of Bute. It is curious that the 
Christian nan1es, ✓1rchibald and Christian, forinerly so co1nn1on in 
aln1ost every branch of the Bute fa1nily, were never known an1ong the 
Stuarts of Kiln1ahamoge. The use of Christian narnes, or their ab­
sence, sometimes truly indicates the fa1nily descent. 

The Kiln1ahan1oge Stuarts daiined kindred with Bernarda, the 
lady buried in the chancel, and the follo\ving inscription on a tablet in 
the southern ,vall-of Ballintoy Church, also records the nan1es of son1e 
n1en1bers of this fa111ilv: .. 

"Here lyeth the body of Alexander 
Stewart, ,vho dep~:i.rtcd this life, October 
the 20th, 1723, aged 78 years. 
Also, the body of Elizabeth Stewart, 
alias Fraser, who departed this 
life .l\Iay ye 12, 1734, aged 82 years. 
Also, their son ll"alter Stewart, 
,vho departed .l\farch ye 6th, 1762." 

1'hc foregoing sketch is but verr i1nperfect., en1bodying only a few· 
scattered gleanings picked up fro1n various sources, but principally 
fron1 traditions and original n1anuscript papers. 'fhere are several 
connexions of the old Stewart families still residing in the R.ou te and 
elsewhere, and, probably, 1nuch 1nore an1ple 1naterials n1ight be found 
in their possession than what ha \'e no\v been su bin i tted. ·rhere were 
tnetnbers of these fa1nilies, pron1inent and influential in their genera-
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tions, who have not' been even na1ned ~n this_ notice, simply because 
nothing of their persc.)nal history is kno\vn to the writer. ..An1ong such 
may be particularly n1enti0ned the na1nes of Alexander Stewart, \vho 
was High Sheriff for the County of An trin1 in 1639; Charles Stuart, 
who was so actively engaged in 1688; c1.nd another Charles Stuart, 
whose death is n1entioned about the year 1720, in a n1anuscript written 
by John O'Neill, of Shane's Castle. 

APPE~DIX. 

The following extract, fron1 the 31S. \ 1 olun1e lettered Antrinz (F. 3. 9. 
1562.) in the Library of Trinity College, l)ublin, refers to the n1assacres 
n1ention(:.d at page 78, vol. vi, as oc_curring in, and near Ballyn1oney: 

"'The Exainination of J an1es l\IacDonnell, of Ballymanagh, Cooper, 
taken 12th day of 11arch, 1652. \Yho being duely sworne and exa111-
ined saith, '"fhat he dwelt at Portlnaw and \Vrought there upon his sd 
trade at the beginning of the rebellion, That all the Irish on the \Yest 
side of the Bann being in rcbeliion, and the English and Scotch _who 
formerly dwelt there and could not escape being murdered, as he 
heard, Archibald Stewart raised a regiment and leagured at Portna\v, 
to keep the Bannside; That .. -\IJester ~IacColl l\IacDonnel) and ~firlagh 
Oge O'Cahan had con11nand of two co1npanies of the sd regin1ent, and 
that they and their n1en being Highlanders and Irish, upon the second 
day of January, 1641, before day, did fall upon seaven or eight of the 
British regin1ents, who also kept the Bannside and lay in their quarters at 
Portnaw, so1ne quarter, half-mile, or n1ile distance one from another, 
and murdered the1n all to a very fevv' who were saved by their old Irish 
acquaintance. 'Iha· this exa1ninate was taker~ prisoner by the said 
Allester I\.t!acColl and Tirlagh Oge's followers the same n1orning and 
stript, but his life was saved by one ~ ... eile l\-Iodder l\lac11ullan> his 
neighbour; That after he was taken prisoner, the said ... ;\.llester ~lacColl 
and Tirlagh Oge \vith all the whole Irish of the country, who after the 
said nnirqer did rise with the1n, with a great 1nultitude of Irish under 
the co1n1nand of John ~-1ortirner and other Irish officers who ca1ne over 
the Bann, n1arched into Ja1nes :t\lacCol 1\IacDonnell's house at the 
Vow, neere the Bannside, where they dre\v uo their men, and he, this 
exa111inate, being carryed along as prisoner, and having s01ne ac­
quain ta nee with the said J a111es l\lacColl I\IacDonnell, he desire! him 
to save this exarninate's \vife's life, who answered he coul<l not save 
his owne wife, if they would kill her; That thence the whole Irish, 
·on both sides the Banne there present with their \vi ves and children, 
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feareing the remnant of Stewares Regi1nen t, as he conceived, kept 
together and n1arched in to the Crosse and sett the towne on fire and 
killed all the British they could lay their hands on, save a very few who 
,vere spared by their acquaintance, but afterwards if they went but 
out of their acquaintance sight) they were killed by others of the Irish. 
'fhat fro1n the Crosse they 1narched unto Ballyrnoney, anc.l ca1ne there 
in the evening of the day the 1nurder ,vas con11nitted, and burnt the 
Towne., and murdered the British not fled thence, ,vi thou t distinction 
of age or sexe; That one Donnell Gann l\1acDonnell, of Killoquin in 
l'v1aheresharkin, being with the Irish arn1y, there took notice of this 
examinate, and told the Irish that he would 1nake use of the exan1inate, 
and soe sent him the next day back againe with his tenants unto his 
o,vne house at Killoquin, T'hat he sa\.v ly dead in the way as they 
returned, at least one I-Iundred men, won1en, and children, of the 
British, which had been n1urdered the daye before, and yt he believes 
many \Vere killed, on both sides, the \Vay they returned. _That i:he 
said Donnell Gorn1 i\,facl)onnell did not returne unto his owne house 
until t,vo or three days after yt; 1'hat all the O'I-laggans went over the 
Banne fron1 their own houses, in the absence of Stewart's Regi1nent, 
which ,vent to ~Iagherehoghill, (.A.hoghill) or the Braid, except Brian 
O'Haggan then sicke; That he staid at the said Donnell Gorn1 l\-1ac­
Donnell's I-louse about a fortnight, and in that tin1e he saith he often­
ti1nes heard the Irish call hi1n Captain, and further he saith not. 

"Richd. Brasier, rvlajor. 
"H C " . OOTE. 

The following is a full copy of the "Baptisn1al Register" of the 
fan1ily of Alexander Boyd, of Clarepark, referred to at page 85 (note), 
vol. vi: 

1. "l\1ary "'as born 9th Noven1ber, 1736; n1other \Yilson and sister 
Duncan, god1nothers, and brother Boyd, godfather. 

2. l\1argaret ,vas born 7th January, 1738; 1\-Irs. l\lacA.ulay and 
sister Ann Boyd, god1nothers, and archdeacon Boyd and brother 
\Yi Ison, godfathers. _ 

3. J an1es ,vas horn 28th i\Jarch, 1739; sister .. Ann Boyd and l\1rs. 
,Yray> god1nothers, brother Charles Boyd, and cousin \Y111. Boyd, no,v 
High Sheriff of ye county of .Antri1n, godfo.thers. . 

4. Rose was born 5th ~larch, 1740; l\lrs. 0Iac:N'eile, of Dnuna­
willen, and sister \Yilson, godn1others, l\-Ir. \Yilliarn I-Iutchinson and 
Daniel Boyd, godfathers. 

5. Ann was born 13th l\:Jarch, 1741; sister Orr and ~-Irs. Harrison, 
of Churchfield, godn1others, John Cuppage, Esq., and brother Ezekiel 
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\Yilson, godfathers. Brother Boyd stood for I\-Ir. Cuppage, ye Rev. 

r,-Ir. J)inison for brother Ezekiel, and l\lrs. for sister Orr. 

6. .Alexander was born ye 14th June, 1742; rvfiss .. Ann Catherine 
Jackson and sister l\Telly ,Yilson, godn1others, Counsellor ... :\lexander 

l\.facAulay and Jackson \Vray, godfathers. \Ym. Boyd, of Dru1na­

wiilen, Esq., stood for IVIr. l\Jact\ulay. 
7. Eliza \Viison. was born ye 16th July, 1744; mother \Yilson was 

god1nother, brother I-Iugh Boyd and Alexander rviacAulay, Esq., god­
fathers. 

8. Elinor was born ye 28th July, 17-!5; I'virs. Jean Stev-.rart and 

sister Nelly \Vilson, godmothers, brother Charles Boyd and brother 

\Yi Ison, godfathers. 

9. Hugh was born ye 21st of November, 1746; sister Charlotte Orr 

was godn1other, brother Hugh Boyd and brother \Villian1 \Yilson, 
godfathers. 

10. \Yilliam was born ye 29th of l\larch, 1748; his uncles, \Yn1. 
Boyd, of Cullybackey, and \V1n. Boyd, of Drun1awillen, Esqrs., god­

fathers and l\!Irs. Stewart, of Ballintoy, godn1other. 

11. Leonora Boyd was. born i\·fay 13th, 17-19; Doctor Stewart, of 
Ballintoy, godfather, l\1rs. \Vray, of Shelfield, and l\Jrs. Harrison, of 
lVIallindober, were god1nothers.· 

12. Davys Boyd was born .August 16th, 1750; his uncle, Davrs 

,Yilson, Esq., and the Rev. l\,fr. Ja1nes S1nith, of i\.rn1oy, godfathers, 

and 1vliss Cri tty Close, his godrnother. 

13. i\lexander was born on ,vednesday, ye 22nd January, 1i51, 
N. S.; my daughter, l\!folly, his godmother, her aunt Boyd stood for 

her, Archdeacon Sn1ith and Richard Jackson, Esq., godfathers. Brother 

Hugh Boyd, and his son, \Villia1n Boyd, stood for the1n. 

Dru1nawillen, n1entioned in the foregoing paper, is near Ballycastle, 

and ~Iallindober, more correctly lVIallintober, is in the neighbourhood 

of Bush1ni1ls. 

NOTE BY THE REV. \\7
• T'. LATH.IER. 

\Vhile rnaking a search very Ja tely in the Office of Records, Dublin, 

I haf1pened on a copy of the petition presented in 1663 by Archibald 

Ste,vart to Onnonde. Thinking that it 1night be of interest to your 

readers in connection ,vi th the reproduction of R.ev. George I-Iill's 

valuable pan1phlct, I asked T. A. Groves to transcribe 1t. 'fhis he 

·has done, and I now forward a copy for publication. 
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THE PETITION OF ARCHIBAI.D STEWART TO ORMO~DE IN 1663. 
Carle Papers, vol. 33. 

To his Grace James, Duke of Ormonde, Lord Lieu'tenan t General of I1:cla11d, and 
General Governor of t!ic said Kingdoin. The Humble Petition of Archibald Stewart 
Humbly Shcwcth,-

That he makes bold to represent to your Grace, how he hath been used by the Scotti~h 
/\rmy and the Usurpers, before and since your Grace.left this Kingdom.· 

In the year 1643, your Grace was pleased to grant h_im a Commission to raise a Troop 
of Horse, and a Foot Company, and your .Grace assigned hi1)1 his own lands for quar.tcrs 
for them. 

Your Petitioner raised them, and \vent to the Field, and joined with l\Iajor Gener;tl 
IVlonro, to serve against the Common Enemy, according to your Grace 1s order, and ,1,·:1s 
upon the Field with them from June till the last of October. . 

\Vhen your Grace's Petitioner came off the Field, he was denied quarters for one man 
by Argilc's Lt. Colonel, which forced your Petitioner to disband his men, after· all rhc 
charge he was at in raising of them. ., 

In the year 16 .. , he was the means (by God's Providence) to break the said Rt>gimen t 
of Agrile's, ,ind procured 500 men of the said Regiment to join with Sir. George :'-.Ionro, to 

go to England upon Duke Hamilton's engagement, under the command of your Petition­
er's son-in-law, 1\1ajor Alexander I\Iac:\ulcy, for which, after the· Duke was broken at 
Preston, your Grace's Petitioner was prosecuted by Atgile's Lt. Colonel before the now. 
Duke of Albemarle, then Commander of Ulster, and was brought to a Council <.)t° \Y :i_r ,· 
held at Belfast, f~r life and estate, as the Lord Conway and l\Iajor George Rawdon .c;rn 
testify. 

ln the year 1656, The Barony of Cary, which was made O\'Cr by Lease for 99. years in 
the year 1637 by the now l\larquis of An trim to your Grace's Peti rioncr and others for 
their secur.biy for their eng~1gement for the said I'Vlarquis his debts, which your Petitioner 
was in possession of, and did manage for himself and his Co Lessees, w;ts taken out of his 
possession by r-.Iiles Corbett, then Chief Baron, by reason of the annexed Examinations, 
being declared a Delinquent for opposing Sir Charles Coote, then President of Connaughr, 
when he took in Coleraine, in the year 1649; and was laid out by that Govcrn.ment to the 
Regiments of Horseancl Foot belonging lo Fleetwood; and his Freehold House of Ballin toy 
was given out to Sir \Yilliam Petty; 

In the year ] 657, he peti rioncd Henry Cromwell and the-then Council, to he admitted 
to a Composition, according to their o\vn Ordinance made in the year J 654·, as ·all other· 
Protestants were admitted hr them, but was absolutely denied, which no Protestant in 
Ireland was denied, to be admitted to his composition, except your Grace's Petitioner, And 
all the reason that Corbett did give for this, his unjust act, was, that, a Barony was too 
great a Command for a Stewart amongst them, especiaHy for him of whom they had such a 
character. 

The Lord ~Iassereene, getting illl' Adventurer's Lott of 1,200 acres in the Barony of 
Dunluce, your Petitioner having £50 a year in the said Lott, His Lordship entered upon it, 
and keeps it yet from y<.1ur Grace's Petitioner, tinder pretence c.;f his Delinquency, and says 
he will not part with it, untill he gets rcprizals, although yoGf Petitioner be a Protestant. 

I\'lay it therefore pk,1sc your Grace, since it hath pleased God to restore unto us our King, 
and your Grace our former Governor, your Grace's Petitioner's sufferings being for his 
loyalty, Either by your Grace's immediate Order, to restore your Petitioner to his just 
right and interest in the Premises, or, to recommend him to the Commissioners now 
appointed by His l\lajcsty for dettrmining of Claims. 

And, that your Grace may hl' plcasL·d to look upon him in times coming as :1 Suffacr for 
l lis i\lajesty, 

And he Humbly Prays, etc. 




